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NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT FUND
Not-for-Profit Transmittal and Approval Form

Applicant/Program: American Red Cross - Louisville Area Chapter

Applicant Requested Amount: $10,000
Appropriation Request Amount:-$6:000- $10,000

Executive Summary of Request
Funding of $5,000 from D-2 NDF (of the $10,000 total requested by the agency) to the American Red Cross -
Louisville Area Chapter for home fire and disaster relief. The Red Cross uses this funding in the Metro area to
provide monetary assistance to residents experiencing fire or other home disasters, free smoke alarms for at-
risk neighborhoods, training in lifesaving skills, etc.

Is this program/project a fundraiser? []Yes [®]No
Is this applicant a faith based organization? [JYes [®@ No
Does this application include funding for sub-grantee(s)? [JYes [E] No

I have reviewed the attached Neighborhood Development Fund Application and have found it complete and
within Metro Council guidelines and request approval of funding in the following amount(s). 1 have read the
organization's statement of public purpose to be furthered by the funds requested and I agree that the public
purpose is legitimate. 1 have also completed the disclosure section below, if required.

)./ M v $5,000 02/05/2021

District # Primary Sponsor Signature Amount Date

Primary Sponsor Disclosure
List below any personal or business relationship you, your family or your legislative assistant have with this

ﬁ;ﬁ&nizaﬁon, its volunteers, its employees or members of its board of directors.

Approved by:

Kld: MWLU, 2/19/2021

Appropriations Committee Chairman P Date
/

oo,

Final Appropriations Amount:

1] Page Approved Committes

Iffective May 2010



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8D1FECBE-227E-4179-A85F-DC583EA04D12

Applicant/Program:
$5,000 to American Red Cross - Louisville Area Chapter for home fire and disaster relief.

Additional Disclosure and Signatures

Additional Council Office Disclosure

List below any personal or business relationship you, your family or your legislative assistant have with this
organization, its volunteers, its employees or members of its board of directors.

N/A :

Council Member Signature and Amount

District 1 $
District 2 $
District 3 kus(ux Domu’( $ 250
District 4 ' $
District 5 $
District 6 $

District 7 V W M’m’u? $ 200
C..

District 8 $ 500
V'Y
District 9 [ $_500
District 10 /D W $ 500
District 11 $
District 12 $
District 13 $
District 14 __ $
District 15 Kw it $ 500

2| Page
Effective May 2016
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Applicant/Program:

$5,000 to American Red Cross - Louisville Area Chapter for home fire and disaster relief.

Additional Disclosure and Signatures

Additional Council Office Disclosure
List below any personal or business relationship you, your family or your legislative assistant have with this
organization, its volunteers, its employees or members of its board of directors.

District 16 $
District 17 /g = $ 500
District 18 $

District 19 ﬂ“ﬂw"“? Piaguntini $ 500
SW Bunson ¢ 500

District 20

District 21 Meole éwy\% $ 300
District 22 $
District 23 $
District 24 M‘J’o Wira. 1;’('001 $ 500
District 25 ‘L\M‘T M% $ 250
District 26 h)

3| Page
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LOUISVILLE METRO COUNCIL

NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT FUND APPLICATION

Legal Name of Appllcant Organlzatlom.owsvme Area Chapter of the Amencan Red Cross

Program Name and Request Amount$5,000 to American Red Cross - LAC for home fire and disaster relief.

Is the NDF Transmittal Sheet Signed by all Council Mémber( )} Appropriating Fundlng7

Is the fundmg proposed by Council Member( ) less than or equal to the request amount?

Yes/No/NA

D
nl

Is the proposed public purpose of the program viable and well-documented?

Will all of the fundmg g0 to programs speanc to Louisville/Jefferson County?

Has Council or Staff relatlonshlp to the Agency been adequately disclosed on the cover sheet?

Has prior Metro Funds committed/granted been disclosed?

Is the application properly signed and dated by authorized signatory?

= Z M=

<]
[¢n
w

Is proof of Tax Exempt status of 501(c) 3, 4,6, 19, 1120-H included?

D
n

If Metro funding is for a separate taxing district is the funding appropriated for a program outside the
legal responsibility of that taxing district?

EfE

Is the entity in good standing with:
» Kentucky Secretary of State?
» Louisville Metro Revenue Commission?
» Louisville Metro Government?
» Internal Revenue Service?
» Louisville Metro Human Relations Commission?

Iii
2

Is the current Fiscal Year Budget included?

2]

Is the entity’s board member list (with term length/term limits) included?

Is reccommended fundiog less than 33% of total agency operati‘h’gr budget?

Does the application budget reflect only the revenue and expenses of the pro;ect/program7

g

=
1
o

Is the cost estimate(s) from proposed vendor (if request is for capltal expense) included?

Is the most recent annual audit (if required by organization) included?

Is a copy of Signed Lease (if rent costs are requested) included?

Is the Supplemental Questionnaire for ohurches/religious organizations (if reduesting orgahization is
faith-based) included?

>

Are the Articles of Incorporation of the Agency included?

es

i

Is the IRS Form W-9 included?

Is the IRS Form 990 included?

Are the evaluation forms (if program participants are given evaluation forms) included?

<l
[
1]

id

Affirmative Action/Equal Empioymeht Opp'onun'ity‘plén and/or policy statement included (if
reqmred to do so)"

<
42
(2}

Has the Agency agreed to pamclpate in the BBB Charlty review program? If so, has the applicant
met the BBB Charity Review Standards?

Prepared by: Caleb Howard Date: 02/05/2021

E

4 | Page
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Howard, Caleb A. i}

From: Shanklin, Barbara

Sent: Friday, February 5, 2021 10:04 AM

To: Evans, Pamela; Howard, Caleb A.

Cc: Colvin, Valerie

Subject: Re: American Red Cross NDF Grant (Email 1 of 2 - additional attachments sent in

separate email)

To whom it may concern, it is ok for Caleb Howard to sign off on the ordinance for the Red Cross for home fires and
disaster relief. Cost (5,000). In my behalf. Thanks
Council Barbara Shanklin.

Get Qutlook forios

From: Evans, Pamela <pamela.evans2 @redcross.org>
Sent: Thursday, February 4, 2021 9:52:55 AM
To: Shanklin, Barbara <Barbara.Shanklin@louisvilleky.gov>; Howard, Caleb A. <Caleb.Howard@louisvilleky.gov>

Cc: Colvin, Valerie <valerie.colvin@redcross.org>
Subject: American Red Cross NDF Grant (Email 1 of 2 - additional attachments sent in separate email)

CAUTION: This email came from outside of Louisville Metro. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe

Dear Councilwoman Shanklin,

Thank you for your $5,000 commitment to support the Neighborhood Discretionary Fund Grant from the American Red
Cross and our work around home fire and disaster relief. We've attached the proposed grant and supporting documents
for your review and would ask for your endorsement in engaging other council members to join in by contributing to the

fund.

The first Kentucky chapter of the American Red Cross was chartered in 1917. Today, there are five chapters in Kentucky
which comprise the Kentucky Region. The American Red Cross is not a government agency; it relies on donations of
time, funding, and resources from individuals in the local community, corporate partners, and foundations to do its
work. Red Cross Services are provided throughout Kentucky thanks to the generous commitment of thousands of local

volunteers.

The Louisville Area Chapter of the American Red Cross is proud to serve the communities of Anderson, Bullitt, Carroll,
Clark (IN), Floyd {IN}, Franklin, Gallatin, Harrison (IN), Henry, Jefferson, Marion, Nelson, Oldham, Owen, Shelby, Spencer,
Trimble and Washington counties.

Last Fiscal Year we provided the following services to the Louisville Chapter:

e Responded to 306 home fires and other disasters, helping 1,562 individuals, and providing over $330,000 in
client assistance.

e Installed 978 free smoke alarms in at-risk neighborhoods.



Print Form —g

LOUISVILLE METRO COUNCIL NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT FUND APPLICATION

| Legal Name of Applicant Organization:

American Red Cross Louisville Chapter
(as listed on: http://www.sos ky. gov/business/records

Main Office Street & Mailing Address: 510 E. Chestnut St., Louisville, KY 40202
Website: www redcross.org/local/kentucky

Applicant Contact: Pam Evans Title: Regional Philanthropy Officer
Phone: 502-919-1150 Email: pamela.evans2@redcross.org
Financial Contact: Valerie Colvin Title: Grants Specialist

Phone: 502-381-2998 Email: valerie.colvin{@redcross. org

Organization’s Representative who attended NDF Training:Valerie Colvin
GEOGRAPHICAL AREA(S) WHERE PROGRAM ACTIVITIES ARE (WILL BE) PROVIDED

Program Facility Location(s): Louisville
Council District{s): All Zip Code(s): All

PROGRAM/PROJECT NAME:Home Fire and Disaster Relief
Total Request: ($§) ]1 0,000 [ Total Metro Award (this program) in previous year: ($) }O

Purpose of Request (check all that apply):
[] Operating Funds {generally cannot exceed 33% of agency’s total operating budget)
[E] Programming/services/events for direct benefit to community or qualified individuals
[T] Capital Project of the organization (eguipment, furnishing, building, etc)

The Following are Required Attachments:

7 IRS Exempt Status Determination Letter Signed lease if rent costs are being requested
\//Current year projected budget '//SRS Form W9
v~ Current financial statement Evaluation forms if used in the proposed program
v Most recent IRS Form 990 or 1120-H v Annual audit {if required by organization)
v/Articles of Incorporation (current & signed) Faith Based Organization Certification Form, if applicable
Cost estimates from proposed vendor if request is for
capital expense

For the current fiscal year ending June 30, list all funds appropriated and/or received from Louisville Metro
Government for this or any other program or expense, including funds received through Metro Federal Grants,
from any department or Metro Council Appropriation (Neighborhood Development Funds). Attach additional
sheet if necessary.

Source: Amount: ($)
Source: Amount: {$)
Source: Amount: ($)

Has the applicant contacted the BBB Charity Review for participation? [®] Yes []No
Has the applicant met the BBB Charity Review Standards? [m] Yes [(INo

Page 1 Vo
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LOUISVILLE METRO COUNCIL NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT FUND APPLICATION

Describe Agency’s Vision, Mission and Services:

The mission of the American Red Cross is to alleviate human suffering in the face of emergencies by mobilizing the
power of volunteers and the generosity of donors. We fulfill this mission by helping people affected by disasters in
communities all across the United States, including here in Louisville. The American Red Cross was founded in 1881
by Clara Barton, and the Louisville Area Chapter opened its doors in 1917, Since its founding, the American Red
Cross has been the nation's premier emergency response organization. In addition to its renowned domestic disaster
preparedness and response activities, the Red Cross offers compassionate services in four other areas: educational
programs that promote health and safety; support and comfort for military members and their families; the collection,
processing, and distribution of lifesaving blood and blood products; and international humanitarian service programs.

Through our chapter network, we respond to emergencies in local communities every eight minutes. When disaster
strikes, we provide food. shelter, direct financial assistance, emotional support, and casework for longer-term
recovery. In preparation for disasters, we: provide a series of preparedness education classes as well ag health and
safety courses on life-saving techniques; identify facilities and partners with the capacity to provide disaster-related
mass care services; address community issues and the needs of special populations; and train a corps of disaster
volunteers. Year-round, more than 500,000 volunteers work side-by-side with Red Cross staff to ensure that
community members in need receive the care and comfort they deserve.

Page 2
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LOUISVILLE METRO COUNCIL NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT FUND APPLICATION

Board Member Term End Date
Marcia Brey Tun 30, 2021
Curtis Clark Jun 30, 2021
Pamela Conniff fun 30, 2021
Tom Cottingham Jun 30, 2021
Saundra Gibson Jun 30, 2022
Till Howard Jun 30, 2023
Dr. Shirl Johnson Hun 30, 2022
Ainsley Jones Jun 30, 2021
Joseph King Jun 30, 2022
Shawn Malone Jun 30, 2021
[ .ance Mann Jun 30, 2021
Mary McKinley Jun 30, 2022
Christy Moreno Jun 30, 2023
Regan Nichols Tfun 30, 2023
Josh O'Bryan Jun 30, 2022
Dr. George Pantalos Jun 30, 2021
Corden Porter Jun 30, 2021

Describe the Board term limit policy:

Each Board member serves a three-year term. with the Chair serving for 2 years, and Vice-Chair serves 2 years and
then replaces the Chair. See Attachment for full Board list.

Three Highest Paid Staff Names Annual Salary #%

KSteve Cunanan
Rick Sheehy
Ueremy Jarvi

“Confidential information. Please contact Rick Sheehy, Regional COO, at 859-229-9072 if required.

Page 3
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LOUISVILLE METRO COUNCIL NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT FUND APPLICATION

A: Describe the program/project start and end dates, a description of the program/project and applicable data
with regards to specific client population the program will address (attach related flyers, planning minutes,
designs, event permits, proposals for services/goods, etc.):

Here in Kentucky, our Disaster Services Team aims to prevent, prepare for, and respond to local disasters, from the
most common ~ home fires — to tornadoes, flooding, and other events. Last fiscal year, our Louisville Chapter
responded to 306 disasters, assisting 1,562 individuals and providing over $330,000 in direct client emergency
assistance. When a family is displaced from their home, Red Cross case workers arrive on the scene any time of day or
night to provide clients not only with their immediate needs such as shelter, food, clothing, and help with replacement
medications and eyeglasses, but also assistance connecting them with Jong-term recovery needs such as mental health
support and housing needs with the goal of helping them get back on their feet quickly and preventing homelessness.

According to a Federal Reserve report on the economic well-being of U.S. households, 40% of families lack the
means to cover a $400 emergency. The majority of our disaster services clients are below the poverty line, and about
half have permanent housing needs following a disaster. Due to COVID-19 and in the current economic situation,
many of our clients are in even greater need than ever before.

Disaster relief is an ongoing program. While we cannot predict when the next disaster event will occur, our trained
volunteers and staff are dedicated to remaining ready to respond and help our neighbors during their times of need.

B: Describe specifically how the funding will be spent including identification of funding to sub grantee(s}:

Funding would support the purchase of disaster relief program materials, including comfort kits, clean-up kits,
blankets, Moving Forward booklets, and disaster survey cards. These materials are essential items to help families
during crisis situations.

Metro Council Support

The Red Cross Kentucky has support from Councilwoman Barbara Shanklin, who endorsed this grant application to
support home fire and disaster relief support for her district.

We worked with Councilwoman Keisha Dorsey to address her concerns about families facing disaster situations in her
district and provided guidance and assistance to help prepare her for what to expect and the steps she can take to

connect families with Red Cross support.

Several other council members indicated that they would be interested in the proposal for support.

Page 4
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LOUISVILLE METRO COUNCIL NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT FUND APPLICATION

C: If this request is a fundraiser, please detail how the proceeds will be spent:
N/A

D: For Expenditure Reimbursement Only — The grant award period begins with the Metro Council approval date
and ends on June 30 of Metro fiscal year in which the grant is approved. If any part of this funding request is for
funds to be spent before the grant award period, identify the applicable circumstances:

[T] The funding request is a reimbursement of the following expenditures that will probably be incurred after the
application date, but prior to the execution of the grant agreement:
v If selecting this option, the invoice, receipt and payment documentation should not be available as of the date of this
application.
The Grantee will be required to submit financial reporting in accordance with the reporting schedule provided in the
grant agreement.

[[] Reimbursements should not be made before application date unless an emergency can be demonstrated
by the primary council sponsor. The funding request is a reimbursement of the following expenditures (attach
invoices or proof of payment):
¥ Attach a copy of invoices and/or receipts to provide proof of purchase of activities associated with the work plan
identified in this application.
v" Attach a copy of cancelled checks to provide proof of payment of the invoices or receipts associated with the work
plan identified in this application.

Page 5 NG
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LOUISVILLE METRO COUNCIL NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT FUND APPLICATION

E: Describe the program'’s benefits to those being served {(measurable outcomes). include the program’s
process for collecting data and the indicators that will be tracked to measure the benefits to those being served:

Whether a disaster affects one family or many families, the Red Cross seeks to meet the immediate and urgent needs
of survivors. Then, as families and communtties travel the long road toward recovery, the Red Cross aims to remain a
resource. Much of our recovery work focuses on helping the most vulnerable populations and people who need extra
help with services that bridge the gap between clients’ current resources and those required for full recovery. We
measure the number of disasters to which we respond, the number of individuals assisted, and the amount of client
assistance provided. The Red Cross uses several internal tools to measure our effectiveness in resolving disaster-
related needs. We use an online dashboard that visualizes the data and shows trends, month-over-month and year-
over-year results.

We also measure client satisfaction surveys such as the percent of clients who give an excellent rating of our services.
We take pride in providing critical services and monitoring the success of our efforts through disaster client
satisfaction surveys. The survey evaluates how effectively the Red Cross fulfilled their immediate needs and how well
they were assisted onto their path of recovery.

F: Briefly describe any existing collaborative relationships the organization has with other community

organizations. Describe what those partners are bringing to the relationship in general and to this

programy/project specifically.
The American Red Cross works with many social service groups, schools, religious organizations, volunteers,
government agencies, and local first responders to ensure response and recovery in the case of a home fire or other
disaster event. From our local homeless shelters and food pantries, to police and fire departments, hospitals, and
carporations, we all have an active role in the recovery process to support our friends and neighbors after the
devastation of a disaster. Our goal is to know these partners and have these resources identified well before they are
needed. We recruit volunteers from all around the community. It is truly neighbors helping neighbors.

Page 6
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LOUISVILLE METRO COUNCIL NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT FUND APPLICATION

THE PROGRAM/PROJECT BUDGET SHOULD REALISTICALLY ESTIMATE WHAT AMOUNT IS NEEDED FROM METRO
GOVERNMENT AND WHAT IS EXPECTED FROM OTHER SOURCES.

: Personnel Costs including Benefits

: Rent/Utilities

: Office Supplies

: Telephone

: In-town Travel

: Client Assistance (See Detailed List on Page 8}

: Professional Service Contracts

Tl@almimiginojwi>

1 Program Materials 10000 10000

I: Community Events & Festivals (See Detailed List on Page 8)

§: Machinery & Equipment

K: Capital Project

L: Other Expenses (See Detailed List on Page 8)
*TOTAL PROGRAM/PROJECT FUNDS

100 % 0 % 100%

List funding sources for total program/project costs in Column 2, Non-Metro Funds:

Other State, Federal or Local Government

United Way

Private Contributions {do not include individual donor names)

Fees Collected from Program Participants

Other (please specify)

*Total of Column 1 MUST match “Total Request on Page 1, Section 2”
**Must equal or exceed total in column 2.

Page 7 I
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LOUISVILLE METRO COUNCIL NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT FUND APPLICATION

Detail for Client Assistance, Community Events & Column Column Column
Festivals or Other Expenses shown on Page 7 1 2 {1+2)=3
{circle one and use multiple sheets if necessary} Proposed Non- Total Funds
Metro Metro
Funds Funds
Total
Page 8
. ) Ve
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LOUISVILLE METRO COUNCIL NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT FUND APPLICATION

Detail of In-Kind Contributions for this PROGRAM only: Includes Volunteers, Space, Utilities, etc. (include
anything not bought with cash revenues of the agency).

Totof Value of in-Kind

(to match Program Budget Line Iltem,
Volunteer Contribution &0ther In Kind)

* DONOR INFORMATION REFERS TO WHO MADE THE IN KIND CONTRIBUTION. VOLUNTEERS NEED NOT BE
LISTED INDIVIDUALLY, BUT GROUPED TOGETHER ON ONE LINE AS A TOTAL NOTING HOW MANY HOURS PER
PERSON PER WEEK

Agency Fiscal Year Start Date: 7/1 2020

Does your Agency anticipate a significant increase or decrease in your budget from the current fiscal year to the
budget projected for next fiscal year? NO [i] YES [

If YES, please explain:
N/A

Page 9
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LOUISVILLE METRO COUNCIL NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT FUND APPLICATION

gning S n 7 of the Grant Application, the authorized official signing for the applicant organization certifies and assures to the best of
his or her knowledge and/or belief the following Assurances and Certifications. If there is any reason why one or more of the assurances or
certifications fisted cannot be certified or assured, please explain in writing and attach to this application.

Standard Assurances

1.  Applicant understands this application and its attachments as well as any resuiting grant agreement, reports and proof of
expenditure is subject to Kentucky's open recards law.

2. Applicant understands if the grant agreement is not returned to Louisville Metro within 90 days of its mailing to the applicant, the
approval is automatically revoked and the funds will not be disbursed to our organization.

3. Applicant and any sub grantee will give Louisville Metro Government access to and the right to examine all paper or electronic
records related to the awarded grant for up to five years of the grant agreement date.

4.  Applicant assures compliance with the grant requirements and will monitor the performance of any third party (sub-grantee).

5. The Agencyis in good standing with the Kentucky Secretary of State, Louisville Metro Government, the Jefferson County Revenue
Commission, the Internal Revenue Service, and the Louisville Metro Human Relations Commission,

6.  Applicant understands failure to provide the services, programs, or projects included in the agreement will result in funds being
withheld or requested to be returned if previously disbursed.

7. Applicant understands they must return to Louisville Metro any unexpended funds by July 31 following the Metro Louisville's fiscal
year end.

8.  Applicant understands they must provide proof of all expenditures {canceled checks, receipts, paid invoices). The Applicant
understands the failure to provide proof of expenditures as required in the grant agreement could result in funding being withheld
or request to be returned if previously dishursed.

9.  Applicant understands if this application is approved, the grant agreement will identify an award period that begins with the Metro
Council approval date, and will end with June 30 of the fiscal year in which the grant is approved, Expenditures associated with this
award expected to occur prior to the award period (approval date) must be disclosed in this application in order to be considered
compliant with the grant agreement.

10.  Applicant understands if we choose to incur expenditures prior to the approval of the application by the Metro Council, there is no
guarantee that funding will be reimbursed, as the Council may choose not to award the application.

11.  Applicant will establish safeguards to prohibit employees or any person that receives compensation from awarded funds from using
their position for a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of personal or organizational conflict of interest, or personal
gain.

Standard Certifications

1. The Agency certifies it will not use Louisville Metro Government funds for any religious, political or fraternal Activities.

2. The Agency has a written Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Policy.

3. The Agency does not discriminate in employment or in provision of any service/program/activity/event based on age, color, disabled
status, national origin, race, religion, sex, gender identity or sexual orientation, or Vietnam era veteran status.

4. The Agency certifies it will not require clients, recipients, or beneficiaries to participate in religious, political, fraternal or like
activities in order to receive services/benefits provided with Louisville Metro Government funds.

5. The Agency understands the Americans with Disabilities Act {ADA} and makes reasonable accommodations.

Relationship Disclosure: List below any relationship you or any member of your Board of Directors or employees has with any Councilperson,
Councilperson’s family, Councilperson’s staff or any Louisville Metro Government employee.

{ certify under the penalty of law the information in this application {inciuding, without limitation, “Certifications and Assurances”] is
accurate to the best of my knowledge. | am aware my organization will not be eligible for funding If investigation at any time shows
falsification. if falsification is shown after funding has been approved, any allocations already received and expended are subject to be
repaid. | further certify that | am legally authorized to sign this application for the applying organization and have initialed each page of the
application.

Signature of Legal Signatory: Wc R P R Date: [Feb 3, 2021

Legal Signatory: {please print): |Valerie Colvin Title:  |Grants Specialist
Phone: 5023812998 Extension: l Email: ivalerie.co}vin@redcross.org
Page 10 e
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Louisville Metro Government
Office of Management and Budget

Neighborhood Development Fund Training Attestation

Grantee Organization Name:  American Red Cross Kentucky Region

Grantee Representative Name: Valerie Colvin

I agree that | am an authorized representative and/or signatory of the organization named above and attest to
having viewed the Neighborhood Development Fund training presentation. | understand the reporting
requirements of the Neighborhood Development Fund grant. Additionally, after viewing the presentation, | have
correctly answered the below questions.

Please check:

| viewed the NDF training material on the website

Answer the following questions before signing (Circle or write in the correct answer).

1. The NDF funding your agency received is a gift from LMG? True or False False
Name the three budget categories that require a detail list.
client assistance _ community events/festivals and other expenses

3. If your agency charged gross pay to NDF, you are required to provide additional documentation to
satisfy reporting requirements. True or False True

4. Which four questions should your financial support documentation answer at all times?
who ,__What ,__when and Where

5. Youragency is considered noncompliant if you do not account for funds received and/or your financial
report is missing support documentation? True or False  True

6. Canceled check, bank statement, invoice and receipt are considered proof of payment. True or False. True

foalec Lol Z-2-202)
Grantee Representative Signature Date ’

NOTE: Please return to Roxanne Steele

E-mail address: Roxanne.Steele@louisvilleky.gov Fax: 502-574-3219
Mailing Address: Louisville Metro Government

ATTN: NDF Coordinator

611 West Jefferson St.

Louisville, KY 40202




internal Revenue Service Department of the Treasury
P.O. Box 2508
Cincinnati, OH 45201

Date: April 10, 2019 Employer Identification Number:
63-0196605
Person to Contact:
AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS R. Meyer ID# 0110429
SHARED SERVICES CENTER Toll Free Telephone Number:
% JENNIFER HAWKINS 877-829-5500

431 18™ ST NW
WASHINGTON, DC 20006-5310

Dear Sir or Madam:

This is in response to your April 9, 2019, request for information regarding your tax-exempt status. You have
represented that you are a chapter, branch or auxiliary of the American National Red Cross.

Our records indicate that in December 1938, the American National Red Cross was held to be exempt from
Federal income tax under section 101(6) of the Internal Revenue Act of 1938, which now corresponds to
section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. In a subsequent determination, the American Red Cross was
classified as a publicly supported organization described in sections 508(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(a)(vi) of the Code.

Even though the American National Red Cross was issued an individual ruling, this ruling covers its chapters,
branches, and auxiliaries.

Donors may deduct contributions to you as provided in section 170 of the Code. Bequests, legacies, devises,
transfers, or gifts to them or for their use are deductible for Federal estate and gift tax purposes if they meet
the applicable provisions of sections 2055, 2106, and 2522 of the Code.

If you have any questions, please call us at the telephone number shown in the heading of this letter.

Sincerely yours,

stbphoe a . natlivc
Stephen A. Martin
Director, Exempt Organizations

Rulings and Agreements
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(Rev. October 2018)
Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

Request for Taxpayer
Identification Number and Certification

» Go to www.irs.gov/FormW9 for instructions and the latest information.

Give Form to the
requester. Do not
send to the IRS.

T 1 _
Amr’_r-u'ca n_hed C/V'ﬂSj

1 Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank.

2 Business name/dissegarded entity name, if different from above

following seven boxes.

[J individualsole propristoror L1 C Corporation

single-member LLC

Print or type.

| Other (see instructions) > f"\j',,,, e s _f? |

D S Corporation

|:| Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Partnership) »
Note: Check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member owner. Do not check | Exemption from FATCA reporting
LLC if the LLG is classified as a single-member LLC that is disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC is ode (if
another LLG that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member LLC that| ©°% (i any)
is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of its owner.

3 Check appropriate box for federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one of the | 4 Exemptions (codes apply only to

certain entities, not individuals; see
instructions on page 3):
D Partnership L__.l Trust/estate

Exempt payee code (if any)

{Applies to accounts maintained autsida the U.S)

Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no)) See instructions.

50 E. Chestnut St

See Specific Instructions on page 3.

Requester’s name and address (aptional)

L()M(‘SUI ‘} I(

6 City, state, and ZIP code ) )
; K\r; HoRo2

7 List account number(s) here (optional)

m Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoid
backup withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part |, later. For other - -
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). Iif you do not have a number, see How to get a

TiN, later.

Note: If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and
Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter.

[ Social security number

Certification

Under penalties of perjury, | certify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or | am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and
2. | am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) | am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) | have not been notified by the Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) that | am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that | am

no longer subject to backup withholding; and
3.1 am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that | am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because
you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax retum. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid,
acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments
other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for Part il, later.

Sign Signature of

Here | us.person» :,; ;M /%{;éf?,

oot . /3 207

General Instructions

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise
noted.

Future developments. For the latest information about developments
related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted
after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormW8.

Purpose of Form

An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an
information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer
identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number
{SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (IT! IN), adoption
taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number
(EIN), to report on an information retum the amount paid to you, or other
amount reportable on an information retum. Examples of information
retums include, but are not limited to, the following.

« Form 1099-INT (interest eamed or paid)

« Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual
funds)

» Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross
proceeds)

» Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other
transactions by brokers)

« Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)

« Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)
« Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest),
1098-T (tuition)

« Form 1099-C (canceled debt)

« Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person {including a resident
alien), to provide your correct TIN.

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might
be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding,
later.

Cat. No. 10231X

Form W=-9 Rev. 10-2018)



American Red Cross Kentucky Region: Budget for Year Ending June 30, 2021

REVENUE

Federated Revenue - Program Restricted

Unrestricted Federated

Federated

Monetary Contributions
Corporate Contributions
Foundation Contributions
Individual Contributions

Net Special Events

Legacies & Bequests

In-Kind Contributions

Investment Income

Income From Endowments

Contracts

Products & Services

Other Revenues

TOTAL LOCAL REVENUE

Support from other ARC units

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSES
Compensation
Employee Benefits
Payroll Taxes
Travel
Conference & Meetings
Financial Assistance
Supplies and Materials
Printing and Promotionals

Equipment Maintenance & Rentals

Rent
Utilities
Building Maintenance
Professional Fees
Contractual Services
Insurance
Communications
Postage & Shipping
Other Contractual Services
Depreciation
TOTAL LOCAL EXPENSES
Support to other ARC units
TOTAL EXPENSES

SURPLUS (DEFICIT)

887,307
887,307

947,991
274,481
2,826,327
270,000
698,137
556,299

4,103
6,438,018
824,407
173,415
13,900,485
3,972,347
17,872,832

9,516,471
2,174,181
728,010
162,336
3,533
1,510,407
258,808
73,877
516,561
174,522
194,274
206,961
989,969

279,166
133,224
39,249
273,880
637,403
17,872,832

17,872,832



THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position - Restriction

As of March 31, 2020
(with comparative information as of June 30, 2019)
(in thousands)

March 30, 2020 June 30, 2019

Assets Total Total
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 147,795 101,101

Investments 377,931 460,187

Trade receivables, including grants, net of allowance for 180,799 196,172

doubtful accounts for $2,082 in 2020 and $4,727 in 2019

Contributions receivable 36,286 31,948

Inventories, net or allowance 1or obsolescence or »1Y3

in 2020 and $356 in 2019 39,095 38,800

Other current assets 56,800 49,516
Total current assets 838,706 877,724
Investments 1,035,199 1,067,866
Contributions receivable 14,689 14,689
Land, Buildings, and other property, net 924,844 762,726
Assets held for sale, net - 71,480
Other assets 261,236 255419
Total assets 3,074,674 3,049,904
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 211,112 272,134

Current portion of debt 67,222 43,888

Postretirement benefits 3,824 3,824

Other current liabilities 168,451 133,210
Total current liabilities 450,609 453,056
Debt 702,984 537,413
Pension and postretirement benefits 103,345 495,161
Other liabilities 105,210 122,110
Total liabilities 1,362,148 1,607,740
Net assets:

Without Donor Restrictions net assets (deficit) 312,600 (5,469)
With Donor Restrictions net assets 1,399,926 1,447,633

Total net assets 1,712,526 1,442,164
Commitments and contingencies
Total liabilities and net assets $ 3,074,674 3,049,904

Note: According to ASC 842, operating leases of 5132 million are included in both assets and liabilities in the following lines of



Harward, Sonxa

Subject: FW: Metro Council Attachments
Attachments: ARC W-9 2021.pdf; ARC Louisville Area Chapter Good Standing Certificate.pdf

From: Howard, Caleb A. <Caleb.Howard@Ilouisvilleky.gov>
Sent: Monday, February 8, 2021 2:58 PM

To: Harward, Sonya <Sonya.Harward @louisvilleky.gov>
Cc: Shanklin, Barbara <Barbara.Shanklin@louisvilleky.gov>
Subject: Fwd: Metro Council Attachments

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Evans, Pamela" <pamela.evans2 @redcross.org>
Subject: Metro Council Attachments

Date: February 8, 2021 at 10:52:52 AM EST

To: "Howard, Caleb A." <Caleb.Howard @louisvilleky.gov>
Cc: "Colvin, Valerie" <valerie.colvin@redcross.org>

CAUTION: This email came from outside of Louisville Metro. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe

Caleb,

Attached please find our Certificate of Good Standing for the Louisville Area Chapter. As we are a
national corporation incorporated by the US Congress, we are not registered in any individual state. In
lieu of articles of incorporation, all chapters of the American Red Cross provide a copy of our
Congressional Charter in its place when requested. I've also attached an updated W-9.

Please let me know if you need any additional information.
Thank you!

Pam Evans
Regional Philanthropy Officer

American Red Cross

Kentucky Region

510 E. Chestnut St.

Louisville, KY 40202

502-919-1150
hitps://www.redcross.org/local/kentucky.html




National Headquarters

Amerlcan Office of Corporate Secretary
/ Red Cross 430 17" Street, NW
— Washington, DC 20006

(202) 303-5028
(202) 639-9811 Fax
simone.white@redcross.org

CERTIFICATE

The American National Red Cross is a single national corporation chartered by Act of
Congress of January 5, 1905, reference to which is found codified at 36 U.S.C. Section 3001
et. seq., to discharge the responsibilities of the United States Government under the
Geneva, or so-called Red Cross, Conventions in international law. As such, The American
National Red Cross is an instrumentality of the United States, immune from certain taxation
and regulation, such as registration or qualification to do business under the foreign
corporation statutes of the several states, absent Congressional waiver of such immunity.

On December 12, 1938, the Internal Revenue Service issued a ruling letter confirming The
American National Red Cross and its units [all under EIN 53-0196605] are exempt from the
payment of federalincome tax and are entitled to receive tax-deductible donations. This
ruling was reaffirmed in aletter ruling on April 10, 2019 and can be further verified by visiting
www.irs.gov/charities-and-nonprofits.  Additionally, IRS Publication 78, which lists all
organizations designated by the Internal Revenue Service to receive tax-deductible
contributions under Section 170 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, lists
“The American National Red Cross, and its Constituents, Chapters, and Branches,
Washington, D.C."”

In accordance with Section 300103(b) of the Congressional Charter of The American
National Red Cross and Section 8.1 of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the
corporation, chapters of the corporation are local units of the corporation and are not
legal entities separate from the corporation. As such, chapter financial information is
included as part of the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and the IRS Form 990 of
The American National Red Cross.

The American Red Cross Louisville Area Chapter located at 510 E. Chestnut Street,
Louisville, Kentucky 40202, is such a chapter as recognized by the corporation; and, is a
chapter in good standing.

Date: February 5, 2021 THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS

Name: Lauren Sullivan
Title:  Assistant Corporate Secretary



http://www.irs.gov/charities-and-nonprofits

OMB No, 1545-1879

. Exempt Organization Declaration and Signature for
rom 8453-E0 Electronic Filing

For calendsar year 2018, or tax year beginaing ___ 07 /01 | 2018, snd ending 06/30,2019 2@1 8
Department of the Trsasury For use with Forms 890, 980-EZ, 980-PF, 1120-POL, and 8868

internal Revenue Service
Name of exempt organization Employer identification number

AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT CHAPTERS 53-0186605

[GEREE  Type of Return and Return Information (Whole Dollars Only)

Check the box for the type of return being filed with Form 8453-EC and enter the applicable amount, if any, from the return. If you
check the box on line 1a, 2a, 3a, 4a, or 5a below and the amount on that line of the return being filed with this form was blank, then
leave fine 1b, 2b, 3b, 4b, or 5b, whichever is applicable, blank (do not enter -0-). If you entered -0- on the return, then enter -0- on the

applicable line below. Do not complete more than one line in Part |.
1a Form 990 check here b b Total revenue, if any (Form 990, Part Vill, column (A), line 12) . . .

1b _2813454935

2a Form 980-EZ check here b b Total revenue, if any (Form 980-EZ, lne8). . . . .. ... .. 2b
3a Form 1120-POL check here b b Total tax (Form 1120-POL, line 22). . . . . . . . .. ... 3b
4a Form 890-PF check here b [EI b Tax based on investment income (Form 990-PF, Part VI, line 5)  4b
5a Form BB68 check here b b Balance due (Form 8868, line3¢c) . .. ... ... .. sl e e 5b

EEEl  Declaration of Officer

6 U | authorize the U.S. Treasury and its designated Financial Agent to initiate an Automaled Clearing House (ACH) electronic funds
withdrawal (direct debit) entry to the financial institution account indicated in the tax preparation software for payment of the
organization's federal taxes owed on this return, and the financial institution o debit the entry to this account. To revoke a payment,
| must contact the U.S. Treasury Financial Agent at 1-888-353-4537 no later than 2 business days prior to the payment (settlement)
date. | also authorize the financial institutions involved in the processing of the electronic payment of taxes to receive confidential
information necessary to answer inquiries and resolve issues related {o the payment.

D If a copy of this return is being filed with a state agency(ies) regulating charities as part of the IRS Fed/State program, | certify that |
executed the electronic disclosure consent contained within this return allowing disclosure by the IRS of this Form 880/890-EZ/
980-PF (es specifically identified in Part | above) to the selected state agency(ies).

Under penslties of perjury, | declare that | am an officer of the above named organization and that | have examined a copy of the
organization's 2018 electronic return and accompanying schedules and statements, and, to the best of my knowledge and belief, they are
true, correct, and complete. | further declare that the amount in Part | above is the amount shown on the copy of the crganization's electronic
return. | consent to allow my intermediate servicg-proyider, transmitter, or electronic return originator (ERC) to send the organization's retum
to the IRS and to receive from the IRS (&) an a€knowledgement of receipt or reason for rejection of the transmission, (b} the reason for any

delay in processing the retPrn of refund,

&

Sign ) ey 2120 1a CFO

Here Signature of officer u Dafe ¢ Title

Declaration of Electronic Return Originator (ERO) and Paid Preparer (see instructions)

| declare that | have reviewed the above organization's retun and that the entries on Form 8453-EOQ are complete and correct to the best of
my knowledge. If 1 am only a collector, | am not responsible for reviewing the return and only declare that this form accurately reflects the data
on the return. The organization officer will have signed this form before | submit the return. | will give the officer a copy of all forms and
information to be filed with the IRS, and have followed all other requirements in Pub. 4163, Modernized e-File (MeF) Information for Authorized
IRS e-file Providers for Business Returns. If | am also the Paid Preparer, under penalties of perjury | declare that | have examined the above
organization's return and accompanying schedules and statements, and, to the best of my knowledge and belief, they are true, correct, and

complete. This Paid Preparer declaration is based on all information of which | have any knowledge.

Date Check if Check if ERQ's 8SN or PTIN
v ERO's also paid self-
ERO'’s signature > W %_ 11-12-19 preparer employed ! P01205643
Use Firmsname or ) KPMG LLE L EN 13-5565207
Only yours if self-employed), 1 - T
address, and ZIP code 8350 BROAD STREET, SUITE S00 MCLEAN VA 22102 Phoneno. 703-2P6-8000

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined the above return and accompanying schedules and statements, and, to the best of my knowledge
and belief, they are true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer is based on all information of which the preparer has any knowledge.

Paid Print/Type preparers name Preparer's signature Date Check L_J it PTIN
Preparer seit-employed
Use Only Firm's name B> Firm's EIN b

Firm’s address b~ Phone no.
For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see back of form. Form 8453-E0O (2018)
JSA
BE167S 1.000

PAGE 1

06583L 2502



OMB No. 1545-0047

.- 990 Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 6§27, or 4847(a)(1) of the internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)
B Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.

Dep artmant of the Treasury
internal Revenue Service I Go to www.irs.gov/Form880 for instructions and the latest information. . t
A_For the 2018 calendar year, or tax year beginning 07/01, 2018, and ending 06/30,20 19
C Name of organization AMERICAN N .TICNAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT D Employer identification number
B Chockdspicebie | CHAPTERS AND BRANCHES 53-0196605
Mot Doing business as
Name change Number and street {or P.O. box If mall is not delivered to street address) Room/suite E Telephone number
intis! return 431 18TH STREET, NW (202) 303-4498
:m;‘t:;n! City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code
Amended WASHINGTCON, DC 20006-5009 G Grossreceipts § 3,622,168, 931.
Apphestion  |F Name and address of principal officer: GAIL MCGOVERN H{a) Is this a group returs for Yes | X | No
pending subordinales?
430 17TH ST. NW, WASHINGTON, DC 20006 H{b} Are ax wmmmmmmB Yes H No
| Tax-exemp! siatus: l X l 501(c)(3) ] l 501(c) ( y < (insetno) ’ ] 4947(a)(1) or ] 1527 If *No,” altach a list. (see instructions)
J  website: p WWW,REDCROSS.ORG H(C) Group exemption number >
K Form of organization: | X | Corporation | | Trust] | Association | | other B [ L vear of formation: 1900[ M State of legal domicile:  DC
Summary
1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities; THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS PREVENTS
8 AND ALLEVIATES HUMAN SUFFERING IN THE FACE OF EMERGENCIES BY
& MOBILIZING THE POWER OF VOLUNTEERS AND THE GENEROSITY OF DONORS.
g 2 Check this box b I:] if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
3 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VL line 1a) . . . . . . . . . v v i v v s e e e e 3 15.
%1 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, ine 16y . . . . . . . . . . . ... ... 4 14.
3 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2018 (PartV, line2a), . . . . . . . v v v v o v v v .. 5 19,363.
% 6 Total number of volunteers {estimate if necessary} , , . . , . e e e e e e e e e e P, 3 300,000.
<} 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VI, column (C).INE 12 « . o . o v v e e e e e e Ta 7,358,868,
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 890-T, lin@ 38 . . . . . v v v i w v v u v u ee e e 7b
Prior Year Current Year
! 8 Contributions and grants (Part Vil linethy, . . . .. ... .... SRV EOR 1,508,477,297. 817,365,759.
g 9 Program service revenue (Part Vil fine2g) . . . . . . .. . . ... PUBLIC INSPECTION 1,849,335,300.1,883,680,966.
é 10 Investment income (Part ViII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d), ., . . . 205,319,131. 65,889,415,
11 Other revenue (Part VI, column (A), lines 5, 60, 8¢, 9¢, 10c, and 116}, . . . . .. .. ... 44,870,368. 46,518,795,
12 Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIil, column (A), line 12). . . . . . . 3,608,002,096. 12,813,454, 935.
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), tines 1-3) . . . . . . . ... .. e 496,367,091.] 398,388,883,
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part 1X, column (A), lined) . . . . . . . . . . ... ... . 0. 0.
§ 15 Sailaries, other compensation, employee banefits (Part IX, column {A), lines 5-10), . . . . . . 1,382,359,180.11,361,722,953.
£ | 16 Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11€) . . . . ., . .. ... ..... 413,231. 247,242,
&1 b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), ine 25) p 177,040,894,
“117 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11£-24e) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,263,844,558.1,176,822,797.
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) . . . . . . .. .. 3,142,984,060.[2,937,181,875.
19 Revenue less expenses. Sublract i@ 18 from N 12, . . o v v v v v s v e v e 465,018,036. | -123,726, 940.
Bg Beginning of Current Year End of Year
£5/20 Total sssels (Part X, fine 16) . . . . . ... .. .. ... L 3,240,247,122.|3,049,504,049.
20121 Total liabilities (Part X, e 26), . . . . . . .. .. .. ... 1,658,095,198. 1,607,739, 689.
25122 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 Lo (e 1,582,151,924. 1,442,164, 360.

m Signature Block )
r;’e'g/l ‘sgw including accompanying schedules and statemenls, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, il is
p&: s

Under penalties of perjury, | d8glare thal | have[exami
) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.
111 [2015

frue, correcl, and complet {aralion of prepayer (othi
Date [ /

Sign % Signature of officer
Here BRIAN J. RHOA CFO
Type or print name and title

PTIN

Print/Type preparer's name Pregarer's signature Date Check L_J it
Pald ~ |RaYMOND LY CZ{/M/{ }4( 11-12-19 | selfemployed |  P01205643
1 w—l d \% ‘é

Preparer
UsePOnly Firm's name P KPMG LLP FimsEIN b 13-5565207
Fim's address B>8350 BROAD STREET, SUITE 900 NCLELN, VA 22102 Promeno. 703-286-8000
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions) , . , . . . . . . . e e [X]ves | [no
Form 980 (2018

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.

JSA

SE1010 1 000
06583L 2502 PAGE 2



AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605

Form 990 (2018) Page 2
Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or notetoanylineinthisPartil | , . . . . . .. . .. . ... ... ., . ..

1 Briefly describe the organization's mission:
THE AMERICAN RED CROSS PREVENTS AND ALLEVIATES HUMAN SUFFERING IN THE

FACE OF EMERGENCIES BY MOBILIZING THE POWER OF VOLUNTEERS AND THE
GENEROSITY OF DONORS.

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior FOrM 990 0 990-EZ2 . . . . . e e e e e e [ ves [X]No
If "Yes,"” describe these new services on Schedule O.

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
SBIVICES 2. o v v it i it e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e D Yes No
If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4 Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by
expenses. Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,
the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code: ) (Expenses $ 1,740,714,613. including grants of § 2,3138,513. ) (Revenue $ 1,741,301,835. )
RIOMEDICAL SERVICES - SEE SCHEDULE O

4b (Code: )(Expenses $  629,883,386. including grants of $ 357,446,355. ) (Revenue $ )
DOMESTIC DISASTER SERVICES - SEE SCHEDULE O

4¢ (Code: )} (Expenses $ 144,066,392, including grants of $ 912,945. )(Revenue $ 142,379,131, )
TRAINING SERVICES - SEE SCHEDULE O

4d Other program services (Describe in Schedule O.) ATTACHMENT 1

(Expenses $  141,948,833. including grants of § 40,029,584. ) (Revenue $ )
4e Total program service expenses b 2,656,613,224.
321020 1.000 Form 990 (2018)

06583L 2502 PAGE 2



AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605

Form 990 (2018)

1

Page 3
Checldist of Required Schedules
Yes | No
Is the organization described in section 5601(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If "Yes,”
complete Schedule A. . . . . . . . i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 1 X
Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instructions)? . . . ... ... 2 X
Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to
candidates for public office? If "Yes," complete Schedule C,Part]. . . . . . . . . o v v v v it et s st n e e e 3 X
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h)
election in effect during the tax year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C,Partll. . . . . .. . ... ... 4 X
Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197 If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Partlil . | § X
Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors
have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If
"Yes,"complete Schedule D, Partl. . . . . . . . i v i i it e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 6 X
Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part!l . . . . .. .. .. 7 X
Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes,"”
complete Schedule D, Part Hl . . . . . . . . . . i it et e e e e e e e e e e e e 8 X
Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or
] X

10

11

12a

13
ida

15

16

17

18

19

20a

b
21

debt negotiation services? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IV . . . . . . . . . . i v i i i e et e
Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted

endowments, permanent endowments, or quasi-endowments? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part V, , . ., . ... ;

If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts Vi,
VI, VI, IX, or X as applicable.

Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? If "Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part VI . . . . @ . @ @ i i i it e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e
Did the organization report an amount for investments-other securities in Part X, line 12 that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part Vil . . . . . . .. ... ... ...
Did the organization report an amount for investments-program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 If "Yes," complete Schedule D, PartVill. . . . . . ... .. ... ...
Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more of its total assets
reported in Part X, line 167 If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IX. . . . . . « . v v v v v i i e e e e e e e e
Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25?7 If "Yes," complete Schedule D, PartX . . . . .. .
Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)7? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part X . . . . . .
Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Parts Xland Xl . . . .« i o i v i e et e e s e e s e e e et e e e e e e e
Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If
"Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts Xi and Xil is optional .
Is the organization a schoo! described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii)? If "Yes," complete Schedule E. . . . . .. . ...

Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking,
fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate
foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Partsland IV, . . .. ... ...
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or
for any foreign organization? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Partslland IV . . . . . . . . . . . v v v v,
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other
assistance to or for foreign individuals? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Partsllland IV . . . . ... ... ... ...
Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on
Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part | (see instructions), . . .. .. ... ...
Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on
Part VII|, lines 1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Partll . . . . . . . . .« v v i i it et e e e e n
Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VI, line 9a?
If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part lll . . . . . . . . . i it i e e e e e e e e e

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 17 If "Yes,” complete Schedule | Partsland ll . . . .. ... ..

11a X
11b X
14c X
11d X
ite X
11f X
12a X
12b X

13 X
14a| X
i4b X

15 X

16 X
17 X

18 X

19 X
20a X
20b

21 | X

JSA
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Form 990 (2018) Page 4
Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)
Yes | No
22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column (A), line 2? If "Yes," complete Schedule |, Parts land Ill . . . . . . . .. ... ..., 22 X
23 Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VI, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the
organization's current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated
employees? If "Yes,"complete Schedule J . . . . . .. . . i i et e e e e e e e e e s 23 X
24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than
$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 If "Yes,” answer lines 24b
through 24d and complete Schedule K. If "No,"gotoline25a . . . . . . . . . o v i i i v i i i i i e v e v e e e n s 24a| X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? . . . . ... 24b X
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exempthONAS? . . . v v v vt i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 24c¢ X
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year?. . . . . . . 24d X
25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part!. . . . . .. ... ... 25a X
b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 880 or 990-EZ?
If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part . . . . . o v v v v v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 25b X
26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5, 6, or 22 for receivables from or payables to any
current or former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or
disqualified persons? If "Yes,"complete Schedule L, Partll. . . . . . . . . « i v i i i it et vt 26 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee,
substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled
entity or family member of any of these persons? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Partlll . ., . . . ... ....... 27 X
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L,
Part IV instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):
a A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, PartivV. . . . . ... 28a X
b A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes,” complete
Schedule L, Part IV, . . . i v o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 28b X
¢ An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof)
was an officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV . . . ... ... 28¢ X
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? /f "Yes," complete Schedule M . . . . | 29 X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified
conservation contributions? If "Yes," complete Schedule M . . . . . . . .« . i e e e e 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If "Yes," complete Schedule N, Part | | 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If "Yes”
complete Schedule N, Part I, . . . . . . v v v i i e e i e e e e i e e e e 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 If "Yes,"complete Schedule R, Partl. . . . . . . . . .« v v 33 X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part li, Il],
OrIV,and Part V,lINe 1. « v . v i i v e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e 34 X
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? . . . . ... .. ... .. 35a X
b If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a
controfled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2. . . . . . 35p| X
36 Section 501{c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable
related organization? /f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V,line 2 . . . .. ... ... i 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part VI . . . . | 37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and
197 Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O. 38 X
Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to anylineinthisPartV. . . . ... ... .... e e .
Yes | No
1a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0-if not applicable . . . . ... .. ia 1,681
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -O- if not applicable . . . . .. .. 1b 0.
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and
reportable gaming (gambling) winnings to prizewinners? ., . . . . . . . . . .o 4w 4 e w4 s e e . 1ic X
J5A Form 990 (2018)
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AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605

Form 990 (2018) Page 5
Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued)
Yes | No
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return. . | 2a 19,363
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? | 2b X
Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions). . . . ...

3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more duringtheyear?, . . .. ... ... 3a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If "No" to line 3b, provide an explanation in Schedule O . . .. ... 3b X

4a Atany time during the calendar year, did the organization have aninterest in, or a signature or other authority over,

a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)?. . | 4a X
b If "Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country: p ATTACHMENT 2
See instructions for filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).

Sa Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the taxyear?. . . . . . ... Sa X
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? | 5b X
¢ If "Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organizationfile FOrm 8886-T7 . . . . .« « 4t 4 ot i b bk e v et vt e Sc

6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization

solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? . . . . . .. ... .. ... ... 6a X
b If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or
gifts were not taxdeductible? . . . . . . . L i L e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 6b
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods
and services provided t0 the PaYOI? . . . . i v v v v v v e e e e e e e e e e e e e 7a | X
b If "Yes,” did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . . . . .. ... ... 7b X
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was
required 0 file FOIM 82827 . &t vt i i it e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e 7c X
d If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed duringtheyear . . . . . .. ... ... ... l 7d {
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? | 7e S
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? . . . . . 7f X
g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? | 79
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C?. . | 7Th X
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings atanytime duringtheyear?. . . . . . .« . « v v v v o v s 8
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section4966? . . . . ... ... ... ... 9a
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person?. . . . ... ... gb
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VHll, line 12 . . . . . . . . ... ... 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VI, line 12, for public use of club facilites . . . . [10b
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from membersorshareholders. . . . . . . . .. o oo o e o 11a
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
againstamounts due orreceived fromthem.). . . . . . . . . v i v i i s e e e e 11b
12a Section 4847(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 10417 12a
b If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year . . . . . 12b
13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plansin morethanonestate?. . .. ... ... ... .. ... 13a
Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which
the organization is licensed to issue qualified healthplans . . . . . . ... .. ... ... ... 13b
¢ Enterthe amountofreservesonhand., . . . . . . v vt vttt bt e e e e 13¢
i4a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the taxyear? . . . . . . . ... ... 14a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No,"” provide an explanation in Schedule © - . . . . . 14b
15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) during the year? . . . . . . . . . . 0 i i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 15 X
If “Yes," see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.
16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? | 16 X
If "Yes,” complete Form 4720, Schedule O.
Form 990 (2018)
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Form 990 (2018) AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605 Page 6

1201 Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No"
response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule O. See instructions.

Check if Schedule O contains a response or noteto anylineinthis PartVl ., . ... ... . . ... ...
Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes | No

1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the taxyear . . . . . 1a 13

If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or
if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive commitiee or similar
committee, explain in Schedule O.

b Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are independent . . . . . 1b 14

2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with
any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee?. . . . . v« o o o i i i e e e
Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct
supervision of officers, directors, or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? . .
Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 980 was filed?. .+ . . .
Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets?. . . .
Did the organization have members or stockholders? . . . . . .« o v v v v v v s i e e
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint

w

S
oo b
>4

7b X

8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during
the year by the following:
a Thegoverning body?, . . . . v i i i i it e e e e e e e e s e e e s
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governingbody? . . . . . ... ... ... oo

9 |s there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at
the organization's mailing address? /f "Yes," provide the names and addresses in Schedule O, s e ev s 9

Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes | No

10a| X

ga | X
gb | X

10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? . . . . . ... ... oo v v
b If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters,
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? .. . .
41a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? .
b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 980.
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? /f "No," gofoline 13 . . . .. . .. . v v v vt
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give
FISE 10 CONTHCES? « v v v v v v e e e e e m e e e s m s b st e e e e e e e e e e e e e
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If "Yes,”
describe in Schedule Ohow thiISWAS BONE + « « v v+ o s e s et v et e et e i e e i e e e o n e e s e 12¢| X
13 Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy?. . . . . . .« o ot e 13 | X
14  Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy?. . . . . . . . .« oo v v oo 14 | X
i5 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization's CEQ, Executive Director, or top management official . . . . . . ... oo v v v o e
b Other officers or key employees of theorganization . . . . . « . . v v i v v v i vt c e e e e
If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Scheduie O (see instructions).
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement

10b| X
11a| X

12a| X

12bj X

i15a| X
15b| X

16a X

b If “Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization's exempt status with respect to such arrangements? . . . . . . . . o . v v o v s e e x a s s e e 16b

Section C. Disclosure

17 List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed &
18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c)
(3)s only) available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
Own website Another's website Upon request D Other (explain in Schedule O)

19 Describe in Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and

financial statements available to the public during the tax year.

20 State the name, address, and tel%ehone number of the Eerson who possesses the orgjanization‘s books and records b
JENNIFER HAWKING 430 17TH STREET WASHINGTON, DC 2000 202-303-5028

Form 990 (2018)
JSA
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Form 990 (2018) AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605 Page 7
Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or notetoanylineinthisPart VIl . . . . . . . . . v v vt vt v v i v n v oo v o

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the

organization's tax year.

e List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

e List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee.”

e List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations.

e List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

e List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

List persons in the following order: individual frustees or directors; institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest
compensated employees; and former such persons.

D Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

)
(A) (8) Position (D) (E) F)
Name and Title Average (do not check more than one Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | box, unless person is both an compensation compensation from amount of
week (list any] officer and a director/trustee) from related other
hours for es|s|lolxlezlm the organizations compensation
related | o 2| 2| 32383 organization (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
organizations| 82| £ | Q| 3128 | & ] (W-2/1099-MiSC) organization
below dotted| 8 2 g Z? L and related
line) g g 2 g organizations
gia
(1)GAIL MCGOVERN 60.00
PRESIDENT & CEO 0. X X 696,533. 0. 12,631.
(2)JENNIFER BAILEY 5.00
BOARD MEMBER 0. X 0. 0. 0.
(3)AJAY BANGA 3.00
BOARD MEMBER 0. X 0. 0. 0.
(4)AFSANEH M. BESCHLOSS 3.00
BOARD MEMBER 0. X 0. 0. 0.
(5)PAVID A. BRANDON 4.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.7 X 0. 0. 0.
(6)HERMAN E. BULLS 3.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.} X 0. 0. 0.
(7)STEVEN H. COLLIS 3.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
(8)ENRIQUE A. CONTERNO 4.00
BOARD MEMBER 0. X 0. 0. 0.
(9)RICHARD K. DAVIS 4.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
(10)Y. MICHELE KANG 3.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
(11)JOSEPH E. MADISON 3.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
(12)BONNIE MCELVEEN-HUNTER 10.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.7 X 0. 0. 0.
(13)JOHNNY C. TAYLOR, JR. 3.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.1 X 0. 0. 0.
(14)DAVID A. THOMAS 3.00
BOARD MEMBER 0. X 0. 0. 0.

JSA Form 990 (2018)
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AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605

Form 990 (2018) Page 8
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (confinued)
(A) ()] (] (D) () F)
Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | (do not check more than one compensation |compensation from amount of
week (listany | DOX, unless person is both an from related other
hours for officer and a director/trustee) the organizations compensation
reaed |22 | 211858 || organization | (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
organizations = ‘Si F18els 3 g (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
below doteed | & & | & “E f'& 2= and related
line) a8 2 e organizations
2ls| |8 3
|2 z
® g
15) TINA M. TYLER 3.00
"""TBOARD MEMBER ] 0.] x 0. 0. 0.
16) KIRT A. WALKER 4.00
T""TBOARD MEMBER ] 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
17) DENNIS M. WOODSIDE 5.00
T""TBOARD MEMBER | T 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
18) BRIAN RHOA 60.00
TTTTCHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER | ¢ 0. X 482,815, 0. 26,410.
19) JENNIFER HAWKINS 60.00
TT7TCORP SEC & CHIEF OF STAFF | 0. X 216,141. 0. 14,674.
20) MELISSA HURST 60.00
""TTCHIEF HUMAN RESOURCES OFFICER | 0. X 368,943. 0. 26,281.
21) CLIFFORD HOLTZ 60.00
""" CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER | ¢ 0. X 673,708. 0. 26,707.
22) SHAUN GILMORE 60.00
TTTTCHIEF TRANSFORMATION OFFICER |  ( 0. X 626,958 0. 24,280.
23) JAMES C. HROUDA 60.00
T T PRESIDENT, BIOMEDICAL SERVICES| 0. X 617,599. 0. 24,543,
24) NEAL LITVACK 60.00
TTTTCHIEF MARKETING OFFICER | 0. X 362,953, 0. 19,583.
25) DON HERRING 60.00
TTTTCHIEF DEVELOPMENT OFFICER | ¢ 0. X 413,637. 0. 12,255.
1b Sub-total B 696,533. 0. 12,631.
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part VIl, Section A . . . ... .. ..... p| 7.,070,417. 0. 332,352.
dTotal{add linestbandfc) . . . . . . .« o i v it it i e s p| 7,766,950. 0. 344,983.
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization b 1464
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual . . . . . . .. .. ... oo 3 X
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,0007 /f “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such :
IGIVIGUAL . . o o o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 4 | X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for suchperson . . . . . . . . o+ oo+ o 5 X
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax
year.
(A) (B) (€)
Name and business address Description of services Compensation

ATTACHMENT 3

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received
more than $100,000 in compensation from the organization b 320

JSA
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Form 990 (2618) Page 8
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(A) B8) ©) (D) (E) F)
Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | (do not check more than one compensation |compensation from amount of
week (list any | box, unless person is both an from related other
hours for officer and a director/trustee) the organizations compensation
eised |23 F) 218|588 | organization | (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
organizations 5 £ E 8 g ~§ g g (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
below dotted g E_x “:o" €13 o and felat‘ed
line) Sz g % S organizations
& | g ® B
2
26) SHERRI BROWN 60.00
" PRESIDENT, HUMANITARIAN SERVICE| 0. X 389,650. 0. 17,809.
27) HARVEY JOHNSON 60.00
"~ PRESIDENT, HUMANITARIAN SERVICE | 0.] X 258,672. 0. 9,827.
28) GREG WILLIAMSON 60.00
"7 CHIEF INVESTMENT OFFICER | 0.] X 401,308. 0. 5,126.
29) RONNIE STRICKLAND 60.00
"~ CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER | 0. X 371,043, 0. 26,841.
30) JOHN MCMASTER 60.00
" UPRESIDENT, PHSS | 7T 0.] X 414,530. 0. 26,883.
31) JULIO DELGADO 60.00
"7 ANALYST V, INVESTMENT | 0.] X 420,385. 0. 18,617.
32) PAUL SULLIVAN 60.00
T 78VP, COLLECTIONS 7T 0.] X 407,531. 0. 31,390.
33) JENNIFER DO 60.00
~ T TECHNOLOGIST III, IRL | 0.] X 391,829. 0. 18,305.
34) DAVID MELTZER 60.00
"7 "GEN COUNSEL & CHIEF INTL OFFCR| 0. X 252,715, 0. 2,821.
ib Sub-total L B
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part VI, SectionA , , . . . ... ... .. |
d Total (addlinesibandic) . . . . . . . . . . . .. v i i v i i v u b
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization b 1464
Ygs \No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated e
employee on line 1a7 If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual . . . . . . . . . . . i i i i et s e o 3 X
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the E
organization and related organizations greater than $150,0007? /f “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such :
Individual . . . .« . e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 4 | X
§ Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual A
for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for suchperson ., . . ... ... .. ..... 5 X
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax
year.
(A) (B) (o)
Name and business address Description of services Compensation

2 Total number of independent confractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received
more than $100,000 in compensation from the organization b

A

JS,
8E 1055 1.000
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Form 990 (2018) AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605 page 9
sF1g YL Statement of Revenue
Check if Schedule O contains aresponse or note to anylineinthisPartVIll . . . . . ... .. ... e e D
(A) (8) (9] (D)

Total revenue Related or Unreiated Revenue
exempt business excluded from tax
function revenue under sections
revenue 512-514

g 2| 1a Federated campaigns . . . . . . . . 1a 41,538,557,
]
& g b Membershipdues. . . « . . . . . ib
gf ¢ Fundraisingevents . . . « .. . . . ic 18,611,562,
6% d Related organizations . . . . . c..p1d
ga e Government grants (contributions) . . |.1e 42,343,064,
] E f All other contributions, gifts, grants,
g o and similar amounts not included above . [ _1f 714,871,576 .
5 g g Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f § 14,708,574,
Ow h Total. Addlinesfa-1f . . . . . . . . . ¢ v o s s o oo B 817,365,759.
g Business Code
% na BIOMEDICAL PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 541500 1,741,301,835. 1,741,301,835.
f} p OTHER PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 900099 142,379,131, 142,379,131,
O
é c
] d
2 f All other program service revenue . . . . .
& | g TotalAddlines2a2f . . . . . . .o\ ... ... B 1,883,680,966.
3 Investment income  (including dividends, interest,
and other similaramounts). . . « v+« ¢ . o 20 ek | 51,987,786 158,868. 51,828,918
4  Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds . 4 9.
5 Rovyalties . . . v v v v i v h e e i e e e T 0.
(i) Real (ii) Personal
6a GrOSSTENtS + « « « » « « « 25.348,337.
Less: rental expenses . . .
¢ Rental income or (loss) 25,346,337,
d Net rental incomeor (10ss). + + + + » « . e e e e e s B 25,348,337, 25,348,337,
7a  Gross amount from sales of | () Securities (ii) Other
assets other than inventory 786,293,166 30,576,116,
b Less: cost or other basis
and sales expenses . . . . 785,046,388 17,921, 265.
¢ Gainorfloss) . . .. ... 1,246,778 12,654,851,
d Netgainor{loss) « » o = v v v« v o v 0 2 x o o o s .4 13,901,629, 13,901,629
o | Ba Gross income from fundraising
-
£ events (not including § ___18.611.562.
>
& of contributions reported on line 1c).
5 SeePartiV,iine18 . . « . v « v v v . s a 4,572,337,
£
s b Less: direCtexpenses . . . « « + » « & & b 5,746,343,
¢ Net income or (loss) from fundraising events . . . . . . B -1,174,006. -1,174,006.
8a Gross income from gaming activities.
SeePart IV, line19 , . .. ... .... a 0.
b Less: direCtexpenses « « « « « + « « 4 . b 0.
¢ Net income or (loss) from gaming activities. . . « . » . B 0.
10a Gross sales of inventory, less
returnsand allowances . . . . . ... . a 0.
b Less:costofgoodssold. . « . . . ... b 0.
¢ Netincome or (loss) from salesof inventory, , , . . ... [ 3 0.
Miscellaneous Revenue Business Code
11a OTHER MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 900099 22,344,464, 15,144,464 . 7,200,000,
b
c
d Allotherrevenue . . . « « « « v o « « « &
e Total. Addlines 17a-11d « v « v+ v o v o v v v o n vt B 22,344,464,
12 Total revenue. See instructions,_. . . . . . o+ v v . . . . | 2,813,454,935, 1,898,825,430. 7,358,868 . 89,904,878,
JSA Form 990 (2018)
BE 1051 1.000
PAGE 10
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Form 9980 (2018)

AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT

53-0196605

Page 10

-l ) Statement of Functional Expenses

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX ,

Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, 7b,
8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIii.

(A)
Total expenses

|
Program service
expenses

(€)
Management and
general expenses

D)
Fundraising
expenses

1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governments. See Part IV, line21 . . . .
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line22 ., . . . ... ..
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16
Benefits paid to or for members

5 Compensation of current officers, directors,

trustees, and key employees

6 Compensation not included above, to disqualified
persons {as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B)
Other salaries and wages

Pension plan accruals and contributions {include

section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions)

9 Otheremployeebenefits . . . . . ... .. ..

10 Payrolifaxes . « . . . ¢ . . . v v v i e 0. .
11 Fees for services (non-employees):

a Management

b Legal

¢ Accounting

diobbying . . ... ..............

e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17,

f Investment management fees

@ Other. (f tine 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column

362,613,528.

362,613,528.

35,775,355.

35,775,355,

0.

5,593,870.

1,958,541.

2,798,120.

837,2009.

0.

1,096,208,468.

970,056,145.

42,392,736.

83,759,587.

33,467,167. 31,003,2009. 1,385,040. 1,078,918.
143,724,955, 122,269,856. 7,218,722. 14,236,377.
82,728,4893. 76,227,248. 1,881,909. 4,619,336.

0.
3,503,303. 1,967,788 1,035,756. 499,759.
1,569,510. 1,084,745. 426,721. 58, 044.
238,893. 131,350. 42,667. 64,876.
247,242, 247,242.

0.

229,046,753,

165,308,883.

20,552,066.

43,185,804.

(A) amount, listline 11g expenses on Schedule 0.} . . . . .
12 Advertising and promotion , . . . . . . .. .. 13,862,842. 12,427,628. 446,212. 989, 002.
13 OffiCeeXpenses . . v v v v v o v v e e e s 104,473,621. 99,733 ,566. 399,921. 4,340,134.
14 Information technofogy. » + « « v v v v v v v . 47,394,174. 35,183,961. 10,309,311. 1,900,902.
15 Royalies. . . . . ..o vvn v e ne ... 0.
16 OCCUPANCY . . . . e e e e e 65,685,414. 57,284,786. 4,116,767. 4,283,861.
17 Travel . . . e e e 77,432,810. 71,193,553. 2,254,719. 3,984,538.
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officiais 0.
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings , . . . 6,715,232. 5,038,201. 285,535. 1,391,496.
20 Interest | . . . . .. e e e e e e e e e e e 39,629,986. 36,648,376. 920,630. 2,060,980.
21 Paymentstoaffiliates. . ... ......... 0.
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization , | | , 72,369,514. 62,340,998, 4,628,954. 5,399,562.
23 INSUMANCE | . . . e e e e 37,014,510. 34,176,072. 681,676. 2,156,762.
24 Other egenses. liemize expenses not covered
above (List miscellaneous expenses in line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O.)
aBIOMED SUPPLY & BLOOD TESTIN 445,244,512. 445,244,512.
pyOTHER PROGRAM SUPPLIES 29,598,940. 26,606,410. 1,410,375. 1,582,155.
¢OTHER ASSISTANCE 3,042,783. 2,338,513. 339,920. 364,350.

d

e All other expenses

25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e

2,937,181,875.

2,656,613,224.

103,527,757.

177,040,894.

26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the
organization reported in column (B) joint costs
from a combined educational campaign and
fundraising solicitation. Check here if

following SOP 98-2 (ASC 968-720) , . . . ...

JSA

8E1052 1.000
06583L 2502
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AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT

Form 990 (2018)
Balance Sheet

53-0196605

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X

....................

(A)

(8)

Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash-non-nterest-bearing . , ... ... ...... ...t uunn- 129,488,423.] 14 101,100,808.
2 Savings and temporary cashinvestments _ . . ... .. ... ... ... .. 645,064,375.] 2 460,187,222
3 Pledges and grantsreceivable, net . . . . . . . ... ..t 49,320,194.1 3 46,637,314,
4 Accountsreceivable, Met | . . . . ... .. ... ... 204,631,414.| 4 | 196,172,063.
5 Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors,
trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees.
Complete Partllof Schedule L . . . . .. ... ... ....0o.uououon 0.5 0.
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under section
4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing employers
and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary employees' beneficiary
@ organizations (see instructions). Complete Part Il of ScheduleL . . . . .. .. 0.1 & 0.
§ 7 Notes and loans receivable, Net . . . . . . . . . i i i e e e e 047 0.
21 8 |Inventoriesforsaleoruse. .. ... ............i.eeenans 38,825,558. 8 38,800,370.
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges . . . .« . o v v v b v i e 0 309,956,913.1 ¢ 304,934,330.
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or
other basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 10a |1,754,829,367.
b Less: accumulated depreciation. . . . - . . . . . 10b 920,623, 075. 840,525,578.140¢ 834,206,292.
11 Investments - publicly traded securities . . . . .. . .. .. e e e 489,246,665.] 11 440,595,650.
12 Investments - other securities. See Part iV, line 11, ., . .. ... .. ... 533,188,002.) 42 627,270,000.
13 Investments - program-related. See Part IV, line 11 |, , . ... ... ..... 0.113 0.
14 Intangible @ssets . . . . . .. ... ... e 0./14 0.
15 Other assets. SeePart IV, line 11 . . . . . . . . i s i e e 0.115 0.
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 34) . . . .. . . ... 3,240,247,122.146 |3,049,904,049.
17 Accounts payable and accrued @Xpenses, | . . .. . . . . v . e e e e 286,653,715.117 272,134,174.
18 Grantspayable. . . . . . ... ...t 0-l18 0.
19 Deferred reVENUE . . . . . v vt et et e e e e e e 0.1 19 0.
20 Tax-exemptbondliabiliies . . . . . . .. . v it e 54,760,000.] 20 51,125,000.
21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D 0.1 21 0.
¢122 Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors,
i_-_" trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, and
| disqualified persons. Complete Part Il of Schedule L, , . . . ... ...... 0. 22 0.
~1123 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties | | . . . . 4,851,848.) 23 13,076,106.
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties, , . . ., .. 552,100,000.) 24 517,100,000.
25 Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of ScheduleD | ... . ... ... i i e 759,729,635.| 25 754,304,409
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17through 25, . . . . . . . . o v o v v e o2 o 1,658,095,198.126 {1,607,739,689.
Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here » [ﬂ and
¢ complete lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
£|27 Unrestricted netassets | ... ... -46,450,794.|27 | -5,468,828.
&|28 Temporarily restricted netassets ... L. .. ... .. ... 768,546,038.) 28 570,238,508.
129 Permanently restrictednetassets. . . .. ... ... ... 860,056,680.| 29 877,394,680.
E Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here | 2 [:] and
s complete lines 30 through 34.
% 30 Capital stock or trust principal, or currentfunds . . ... .... 30
%131 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund | 31
f 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 32
2133 Totalnetassetsorfundbalances . . . ... .. .. ... 1,582,151,924.] 33 |1,442,164,360.
34 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances, , ., . . .. .. ... . . ... 3,240,247,122.| 34 |3,049,904,049.
Form 990 (2018)
JSA
BE1053 1.000
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AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605

Form 990 (2018) Page 12
Reconciliation of Net Assets
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to anylineinthisPart XI. . . . .. ... ... ... .....
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VHil, column (A), fine 12) . . . . . . . . . . v o i i it i e e 1 2,813,454,935.
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A}, line25) . . . .. ... ... .. 2 2,937,181,875.
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtractline2fromiine 1. . . . . . . . . .. i i it ittt 3 -123,726,5940.
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, column (A)) . . ... 4 1,582,151,924.
5 Netunrealized gains (lossesjoninvestments . . . . . . . . . . i i it it i i it e e, 5 20,725,847,
6 Donated services anduseoffaciliies . . . . . . . . . i it i i it i e e e e e e e 6 0.
T INVesStMent EXPENSES . . . . v v v v v e e ke e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 7 0.
8  Priorperiodadjustments . . . . . . .. ... e e e e e e e e e e 8 0.
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explainin ScheduleO). . . . .. ... ... .... 9 -36,986,471.
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line
K LR G 10 | 1,442,164,360.
Financial Statements and Reporting
Check if Schedule O contains a response or notetoanylineinthisPart Xl . ... ... . ... .. ... ... D
Yes | No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: D Cash Accrual D Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain in
Schedule O.
2a Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant?, . . . . . . 2a X
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or
reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
Separate basis Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independentaccountant? . . . . .. ... ... .. 2b | X
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
Separate basis Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis
¢ If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight
of the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? 2 | X
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in
Schedule O.
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in
the Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-1337 . . . v . v o ot s o i e e e e e e e e e e e 3a | X
b If "Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? if the organization did not undergo the
required audit or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits. 3b | X
Form 990 (2018)
JSA
8E1054 1.000
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OMB No. 1545-0047

2018

Open to Public

SCHEDULE A Public Charity Status and Public Support

(Form 990 or 990-EZ) Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.
B Attach to Form 980 or Form 990-EZ.

Department of the Treasury N . " . .

Internal Revenue Service B Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organizaton AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT Employer identification number
CHAPTERS AND BRANCHES 53-0196605

Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)
1 A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170{b)(1){A)(i).
A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ).)
A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)}{1}(A)iii).
A medical research organization operated in conjunction with 2 hospital described in section 170(b)}{1)(A)(iii}. Enter the
hospital's name, city, and state:
An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
___ section 170(b)(1}(A)(iv}). (Complete Partl.)
6 A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1}{(A)(v).
An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described in section 170(b)(1)(A)}{vi). (Complete Part Il.)
8 | | A community trust described in section 170(b}{1){A)(vi). (Complete Part i)
9 | | An agricultural research organization described in section 170(k}(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college
or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or
university:
10 D An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 331/3 % of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions - subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 331/3 %of its

support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part lli.)

11 An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes
of one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a){1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3).
Check the box in lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

D Type L. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving

the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the
supporting organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b Type Il. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having

control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported

organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

Type I functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,

its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must compilete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d D Type Il non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)

that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

2
3
4

L]

| ]

N

(¢}

e Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS thatitis a Type i, Type Il, Type lll

functionally integrated, or Type i non-functionally integrated supporting organization.
f Enter the number of supported organizations . . . . . . . . v ¢t v i r b e e e e e e e e e e e e e s [::]
g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).

(i) Name of supported organization (i) EIN (iii} Type of organization | {iv) Is the organization | (v} Amount of monetary {vi) Amount of
(described on lines 1-10 {listed in your goveming support (see other support (see
above (see instructions)) document? instructions) instructions)

Yes No

(A)

(8)

(€)

(D)

(E)

Total

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 980 or 990-EZ. Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018

JSA
BE 1210 1.000
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AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605

Schedule A (Form 890 or 880-EZ) 2018 Page 2
Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b){1)(A){iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under
Part lll. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part l11.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) b (a) 2014 {b} 2015 (c) 2016 (d) 2017 (e} 2018 "~ (f) Total
i Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.”) . . . . . . 660,035,660.| 637,862,655.] 700,040,441.|1,508,477,297.| 817,365,759.|4,323,781,812.
2 Tax  revenues levied  for the
organization's benefit and either paid
to orexpended onitsbehalf . . . . . . . 0.
3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge . . . . . . . o
4  Total Add lines 1 through 3. . . . . . . 660,035,660.| 637,862,655.| 700,040,441.|1,508,477,297.] 817,365,759.|4,323,781,812.
5 The portion of total contributions by
each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
shownon line 11, column (f). . . . . . . 0.
6 Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4 4,323,781,812.
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) b (a) 2014 (b) 2015 {c) 2016 {d) 2017 {e) 2018 (f) Total
7 Amounts fromlined. « « « v v v u v . 660,035,660.| 637,862,655.| 700,040,441.]1,508,477,297.| 817,365,759.|4,323,781,812.
8 Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties, and income from
SiMmilar SOUrces » o » v v v m v e e e . 64,037,255, 66,839,043 . 58,953,690.] 171,118,839. 77,336,123.| 438,284,950.
9 Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the business
is regularly carriedon . . . . . . . ... 2,362,466, ~2,179,093. 183,373.
10  Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explainin Part Vi) ATCH. 1. ... . 11,483,427, 4,852,030 5,372,243, 4,953,228 4,572,337. 31,233,265,
11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 . . 4.793,483,400.
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (SeeinStructions) « . « v v ¢ & v v 4 4 v b s v n e e e e e e 12 9.446,704,471.
13 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this boxand stop here. . . . . . . . . . v i i i v i v e v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e b
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2018 (line 8, column (f) divided by line 11, column{f). . . .. .. .. 14 90.209
15 Public support percentage from 2017 Schedule A, Part il line14 . . . . . . . . .. .o oo v v v .. 15 90.62¢9
16a 331/3% support test - 2018. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 331/3 % or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization. . . . . . ... ... ... .. A &
b 331/3% support test - 2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 331/3 % or more, check
this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . .. .. ... ... ...« . .. L g D

17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test - 2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is

10% or more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here. Explain in

Part VI how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization. . . .. ... ... ... e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e b D

b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test - 2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line

15 is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here.

Explain in Part VI how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test. The organization qualifies as a publicly

SUPPOMEd OrganiZation . . . . . . i i ittt i e e e ke e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e | &
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see
L= (e oY 1 - L 4 D

Schedule A (Form 990 or 980-EZ) 2018
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AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT
Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018

53-0196605

Page 3

Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 5098(a)(2)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Il.
If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part Il.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) B (2) 2014 (b) 2015 (c) 2016 (d) 2017 (e) 2018 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and membership fees
received. (Do not include any "unusual grants.”)
2 Gross receipts from admissions, merchandise
sold or senvices performed, or facilities
furnished in any activity that is related to the
organization's tax-exempt purpose . « .+ .+ . .
3 Gross receipts from activities that are not an
unrelated trade or business under section 513 .
4 Tax revenues levied  for the
organization's benefit and either paid to
orexpended onitsbehalf . . . . . ...
5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge . . . . . . .
6 Total. Add lines 1 through5. . . . . ..
Ta Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and 3
received from disqualified persons , , . .
b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3
received from other than disqualified
persons that exceed the greater of $5,000
or 1% of the amount on line 13 for the year
¢ Addiines7aand7b. « « « v v v v v o
8 Public support. (Subtract line 7¢ from
HNeB.) o v v v v v a e e e e u e
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) B (a) 2014 (b) 2015 (c) 2016 (d) 2017 (e) 2018 (f) Total
8 Amounts fromline6. . . ... ... ..
10a Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties, and income from similar
SOUMCES + =« + = « v ¢ » ot s v s s o & o
b Unrelated business taxable income (less
section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975 . . . . . .
¢ Addlines 10aand10b . .« « v« & v .
11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included in line 10b,
whether or not the business is regularly
carried ONe « « « » s & o+ 5 v 0w 0w o
12  Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(ExplaininPartVL) . ., ... ......
13  Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11,
and12.) ¢ ¢ v v o v e v e e e e e
14  First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check thisboxandstophere. . . . . . « . &« w4 v a u s w44 e e e 4w e s e s e e st b G e e B
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15  Public support percentage for 2018 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) , . . . ... ... . .. L 15 %
16  Public support percentage from 2017 Schedule A, Partill,line15, . . . . . . . . . . . .. v i vty 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2018 (iine 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)), ., . . . . . . .. 17 %
18  Investment income percentage from 2017 Schedule A, Part il line17 , , . . . ... ... .. ... . ... 18 %

19a 331/3% support tests - 2018. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 331/3%, and line
17 is not more than 331/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . 4

b 331/3% support tests - 2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 18a, and line 16 is more than 331/3 %, and
line 18 is not more than 331/3 %, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization |
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions | 4

JSA
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AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605
Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 4
Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part I. If you checked 12a of Part |, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked 12b of Part |, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 12c of Part I, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked 12d of Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)
Section A. All Supporting Organizations

Yes| No

1 Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization's governing
documents? If "No,"” describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 1

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)7 If "Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported

organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 2
3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If "Yes," answer
(b) and (c) below. 3a

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If "Yes," describe in Part VI when and how the

organization made the determination. 3b

¢ Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c})(2)(B)
purposes? If "Yes,"” explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3¢

4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization")? If
"Yes," and if you checked 12a or 12b in Part I, answer (b} and (c) below. 4a

b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? If "Yes," describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b

¢ Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes. 4c

Sa Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If "Yes,”
answer (b) and (c) below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (i) the reasons for each such action;
(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action

was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document). Sa
b Type | or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already

designated in the organization's organizing document? Sb
¢ Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control? Sc

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited
by one or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also support or
benefit one or more of the filing organization's supported organizations? If "Yes," provide detail in Part V1. 6

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4858(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity

with regard to a substantial contributor? /f "Yes,"” complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 890 or 990-E2). 7
8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 77
If "Yes,” complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 8

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described

in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. Ya
b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controliing interest in any entity in which

the supporting organization had an interest? If "Yes," provide detail in Part V1. 9b
¢ Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit

from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9c

16a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type Il supporting organizations, and all Type !l non-functionally integrated

supporting organizations)? If "Yes,” answer 10b below. 10a
b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to
determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.) i0b

JSA Schedule A (Form 990 or 890-EZ) 2018
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AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 5

={¢d)'l  Supporting Organizations (continued)

Yes! No

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controis, either alone or together with persons described in (b) and )
below, the governing body of a supported organization? 11a
b A family member of a person described in (a) above? 11b
c A35% controlied entity of a person described in (a) or (b) above? If "Yes” to a, b, or ¢, provide detail in Part VI. 11c
Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

Yes| No

1 Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to
regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization's directors or trustees at all times during the
tax year? If "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or
controlled the organization’s activities. If the organization had more than one supported organization,
describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove directors or trustees were allocated among the supported
organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 1

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If "Yes," explain in Part
VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
supervised, or controlled the supporting organization. 2

Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

Yes| No

1 Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization's supported organization(s)? /f "No,” describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed

the supported organization(s). 1
Section D. All Type Il Supporting Organizations

Yes!| No

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization's tax year, (i} a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior
tax year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of
the organization's governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously

provided?

2 Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (i) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If "No," explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 2

3 By reason of the relationship described in (2), did the organization's supported organizations have a
significant voice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization's
income or assets at all times during the tax year? If "Yes," describe in Part VI the role the organization's

supported organizations played in this regard. 3

Section E. Type lii Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations
1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).
a The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.
b The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.

c The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a government entity (see instructions).
Yes| No

2 Activities Test. Answer (a) and (b) below.

a Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If "Yes," then in Part Vi identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined

that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. 2a

b Did the activities described in (a) constitute activities that, but for the organization’s involvement, one or more
of the organization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If "Yes," explain in Part VI the
reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s} would have engaged in these
activities but for the organization's involvement.

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer (a} and (b) below.
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or
trustees of each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part VI. 3a
b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each

of its supported organizations? If "Yes," describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard. 3b
Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018
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AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 6
Type Hi Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations
1 Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI). See
instructions. All other Type lil non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.
Section A - Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year (B) Current Year
(optional)
1 Net short-term capital gain 1
2 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 2
3 Other gross income (see instructions) 3
4 Add lines 1 through 3. 4
§ Depreciation and depletion 5
6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or
collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or
maintenance of property held for production of income (see instructions) 6
7 Other expenses (see instructions) 7
8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4) 8
Section B - Minimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year ®) Currlent Year
(optional)
1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):
a Average monthly value of securities ia
b Average monthly cash balances ib
¢ Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets ic
d Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1¢) id
e Discount claimed for blockage or other
factors (explain in detail in Part Vi)
2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets 2
3 Subtract line 2 from line 1d. 3
4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 (for greater amount,
see instructions). 4
5 Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3) 5
6 Multiply line 5 by .035. 6
7 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 7
8 Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6) 8
Section C - Distributable Amount Current Year
1 Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, Column A) 1
2 Enter 85% of line 1. 2
3 Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, Column A) 3
4 Enter greater of line 2 or line 3. 4
5 Income tax imposed in prior year 5
6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency femporary reduction (see instructions). 6
7 [_} Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type il supporting organization (see

instructions).

Schedule A (Form 990 or 890-EZ) 2018
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AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018

Page 7

Type lli Non-f-'unctionally Integrated 508(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)

Section D - Distributions

Current Year

1

Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes

2

Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
organizations, in excess of income from activity

Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations

Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required)

Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions.

Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6.

i~ W

Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
(provide details in Part Vi). See instructions.

w

Distributable amount for 2018 from Section C, line 6

Line 8 amount divided by line 8 amount

. i)
Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions) Excess D(igtributi ons Underdistributions
Pre-2018

{iii)
Distributable
Amount for 2018

Distributable amount for 2018 from Section C, line 6

Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2018
(reasonable cause required - explain in Part VI). See
instructions.

(2]

Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2018

From 2013 ... ....

From2014 .. ... ..

From?2015 .. .....

From2016 .. ... ..

From 2017 .. ... ..

Total of lines 3a through e

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2018 distributable amount

Carryover from 2013 not applied (see instructions)

= sle|=ie oo |oe

Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from 3f.

-9

Distributions for 2018 from
Section D, line 7: $

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

o

Applied to 2018 distributable amount

Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4.

Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2018, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result
greater than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

Remaining underdistributions for 2018. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part VI. See instructions.

Excess distributions carryover to 2019. Add lines 3j
and 4c.

Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2014, . . .

Excess from 2015, . . .

Excess from 2016. . . .

Excess from 2017. . . .

®iIRioiTin

Excess from 2018, ., . .

Jsa
8E1232 1.000
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AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2Z) 2018 Page 8

Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part li, line 10; Part Ii, line 17a or 17b; Part
lil, line 12; Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section
B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b,
3a and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V, Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E,
lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions.)
ATTACHMENT 1

SCHEDULE A, PART II - OTHER INCOME

DESCRIPTION 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 TOTAL
SPECIAL EVENT & GAMING REVENUE 11,483,427, 4,852,030, 5,372,243, 4,953,228, 4,572,337. 31,233,265
TOTALS 11,483,427, 4,852,030, 5,372,243, 4,953,228, 4,572,337, 31,233,265,
JSA Schedule A (Form 990 or 980-EZ) 2018
8E£1225 1.000
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OMB No. 1545-0047

Schedule B Schedule of Contributors

{Form 990, 990-E2,

S of the Treasary B Attach to Form 990, Form 990-EZ, or Form 990-PF. 2018
.mé’ma. Revenue Service P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information.

Name of the organization
AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT
CHAPTERS AND BRANCHES

53-0196605

Employer identification number

Organization type (check ong):

Filers of:

Form 990

Form 990-PF

Section:
or 990-EZ 501(c)(3 ) (enter number) organization
4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation
527 political organization

501(c)(3) exempt private foundation

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation

OOodo R

501(c)(3) taxable private foundation

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule.
Note: Only a section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. See
instructions.

General Rule

[]

Special R

L]

[]

For an organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that received, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000
or more (in money or property) from any one contributor. Complete Parts | and Il. See instructions for determining a

contributor's total contributions.

ules

For an organization described in section 501(c)(3) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that met the 33 1/3% support test of the
regulations under sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A){(vi), that checked Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2Z), Part |1, line
13, 16a, or 16b, and that received from any one contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1)
$5,000; or {2) 2% of the amount on (i) Form 990, Part Vill, line 1h; or (i) Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts | and Il.

For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10} filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one
contributor, during the year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific,
literary, or educational purposes, or for the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts | (entering
"N/A" in column (b) instead of the contributor name and address), Il, and lil.

For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10} filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one
contributor, during the year, contributions exclusively for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such
contributions totaled more than $1,000. If this box is checked, enter here the total contributions that were received
during the year for an exclusively religious, charitable, etc., purpose. Don't complete any of the parts unless the
General Rule applies to this organization because it received nonexclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions

totaling $5,000 or more during the Year . . . . . . . .. i vttt n e e e B $

Caution: An organization that isn't covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 990,
990-EZ, or 990-PF), but it must answer "No" on Part IV, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its

Form 990-PF, Part |, line 2, to certify that it doesn't meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 980-PF).
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 980, $90-EZ, or 990-PF. Schedule B (Form 980, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2018}
JSA
8E1251 1.000
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Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2018)

Page 2

Name of organization

CHAPTERS AND BRANCHES

AMEBRICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUBRNT

Empioyer identification number
53-0196605

Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is needed.

(a)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

{c)

(d)

Total contributions Type of contribution

1

25,381,137.

Person
Payroll .
Noncash -

(Complete Part i for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

(d)

Total contributions Type of contribution

Person
Payroli .

19,834,810. Noncash L]

(Complete Part |i for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b)
Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

(d)

Total contributions Type of contribution

Person
Payroli
Noncash

(Complete Part 1l for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b)
Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(e

(d)

Total contributions Type of contribution

Person
Payroll
Noncash

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b)
Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

(d)

Total contributions Type of contribution

Person
Payroll
Noncash

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

(d)

Total contributions Type of contribution

Person
Payroil
Noncash

(Complete Part Hl for
noncash contributions.)

JSA
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Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2018)

Page 3

Name of organization ~AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT

CHAPTERS AND BRANCHES

Employer identification number
53-0196605

m Noncash Property (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part Il if additional space is needed.

(a) No. (c)

from D ioti f (b) h rty ai FMV (or estimate) Date f:z:eived
Part| escription of noncash property given (See instructions.)

a) No. c

(fr)om Description of él::)a h rty gi FMV (or(e)stimate) Date :gz:eived
Part | cription of no sh property given (See instructions.)

a) No. c

(fr)om Description fno:gb)ash rty giv FMV (or(e)stimate) Date :gc):eived
Part | escription o ¢ property glven (See instructions.)

a) No. c

(fr)om D iti P (b) h rty ai FMV (or(e)stimate) Date r(:z:eived
Part | escription of noncash property given (See instructions.)

a) No. c

(f')°m Description of " h rty gi FMV (°'(e)5”'"ate) Date r(:z:eived
Part | escription of noncash property given (See instructions.)

a) No. c

(fzom Descrintion of (b) . v aiven FMV (or(e)stimate) Date r‘:ieive §
Part | escription of noncash property give (See instructions.)

JSA Schedule B (Form 890, 990-EZ, or 930-PF) (2018)
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Scheduie B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2018)

Page 4

Name of organization AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT
CHAPTERS AND BRANCHES

Employer identification number
53-0196605

m Exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions to organizations described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or
(10) that total more than $1,000 for the year from any one contributor. Complete columns (a) through (e} and
the following line entry. For organizations completing Part lii, enter the total of exclusively religious, charitable, etc.,

contributions of $1,000 or less for the year. (Enter this information once. See instructions.) & $

Use duplicate copies of Part lll if additional space is needed.

(a) No.
'f,rom‘ (b} Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
art
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No.
;rom| {b) Purpose of gift {c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
art
(e} Transfer of gift
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No.
!f’rom, {b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift {d) Description of how gift is held
art
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
{a) No.
from (b} Purpose of gift {c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
Part |
{e) Transfer of gift
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
JSA Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2018)
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SCHEDULE C Political Campaign and Lobbying Activities | OMB No_ 1545-0047

(Form 990 or 980-EZ) 2@1 8

Open to Public
Inspection

For Organizations Exempt From Income Tax Under section501(c) and section 527

P> Complete if the organization is described below. B Attach to Form 980 or Form 980-EZ.

f T . R . . N
afg;‘;rsg\:e?“}:%eziiuw B Go to www.irs.gov/Form890 for instructions and the latest information.

if the organization answered "Yes,” on Form 990, Part IV, line 3, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 46 (Political Campaign Activities), then
@ Section 501(c)(3) organizations: Complete Parts I-A and B. Do not complete Part I-C.
e Section 501(c) (other than section 501(c)(3)) organizations: Complete Parts I-A and C below. Do not complete Part I-B.

@ Section 527 organizations: Complete Part I-A only.
If the organization answered "Yes,” on Form 990, Part IV, line 4, or Form 990-EZ, Part VI, line 47 (Lobbying Activities), then

e Section 501(c)(3) organizations that have filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h)): Complete Part Il-A. Do not complete Part 11-B.

e Section 501(c)(3) organizations that have NOT filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h)): Complete Part 1I-B. Do not complete Part H-A.
If the organization answered "Yes,” on Form 990, Part IV, line 5 (Proxy Tax) (see separate instructions) or Form 980-EZ, Part V, line 35¢ (Proxy
Tax) (see separate instructions), then

e Section 501(c)(4), (5), or {8) organizations: Complete Part Ili.
Name of organization AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT Employer identification number
CHAPTERS AND BRANCHES 53-0196605
m Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c) or is a section 527 organization.

1 Provide a description of the organization's direct and indirect political campaign activities in Part IV. (see instructions for

definition of "political campaign activities")

2 Political campaign activity expenditures (seeinstructions) , , . . . ... ... .. ... ... . B3

3 Volunteer hours for political campaign activities (seeinstructions). . . . . . . . . . 0. .20
Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3).

1 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by the organization under section 4955, , , | . . B3
2  Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by organization managers under section 4955 , | b §
3 If the organization incurred a section 4955 tax, did it file Form 4720 forthisyear? , . . . ... ... ...... H Yes H No
4a Wasacormectionmade? | . . . . . . ...ttt i e e e e e e Yes No
b If "Yes," describe in Part IV.
Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c), except section 501(c)(3).
1 Enter the amount directly expended by the filing organization for section 527 exempt function
Lot (17113 P $
2  Enter the amount of the filing organization's funds contributed to other organizations for section
527 exemptfunctionactivities . . . . . . . .. .. . ..t e e >$
3 Total exempt function expenditures. Add lines 1 and 2. Enter here and on Form 1120-POL,
11 2T= T 4 oS > $
4 Did the filing organization file Form 1120-POL fOr thiS YEar? . . . . . . o v o v i et et e e e e e e e [ Jves [ _InNo

5 Enter the names, addresses and employer identification number (EIN) of all section 527 political organizations to which the filing
organization made payments. For each organization listed, enter the amount paid from the filing organization's funds. Also enter
the amount of political contributions received that were promptly and directly delivered to a separate political organization, such
as a separate segregated fund or a political action committee (PAC). If additional space is needed, provide information in Part IV.

(a) Name {b) Address {c) EIN (d) Amount paid from (e) Amount of political
filing organization's contributions received and
funds. If none, enter -0-. promptly and directly

delivered to a separate
political organization. If
none, enter -0-.

(1

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018
JSA
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Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2018 ~ AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605 Page 2
Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c){3) and filed Form 5768 (election under
section 501(h)).

A Check I»L__] if the filing organization belongs to an affiliated group (and list in Part IV each affiliated group member's name,
address, EIN, expenses, and share of excess lobbying expenditures).
B Check >[:] if the filing organization checked box A and "limited control" provisions apply.

Limits on Lobbying Expenditures (a) Filing (b) Affiliated
{The term "expenditures™ means amounts paid or incurred.) organization's totals group totals
ia Total lobbying expenditures to influence public opinion (grass roots lobbying). . . . .
b Total lobbying expenditures to influence a legislative body (direct lobbying) . . . . . .
¢ Total lobbying expenditures (add linesfaand1b) . . . . . ... . . ... v ...
d Other exempt purpose expenditures . . . . . . v v v v v vt e b e e e e
e Total exempt purpose expenditures (add linesfcand1d). . . . ... .. .......
f Lobbying nontaxable amount. Enter the amount from the following table in both

columns.
If the amount on line 1e, column (a) or (b) is:[ The lobbying nontaxable amount is:
Not over $500,000 20% of the amount on line 1e.

Qver $500,000 but not over §1,000,000 $100,000 plus 15% of the excess over $500,000.
Over $1,000,000 but not over $1,500,000 [$175,000 plus 10% of the excess over $1,000,000.
Over $1,5600,000 but not over $17,000,000 |$225,000 plus 5% of the excess over $1,500,000.
Over $17,000,000 $1,000,000.

g Grassroots nontaxable amount (enter 25% ofline1f) . . .. ... ... ... ... ..
h Subtract line 1g from line 1a. fzeroorless,enter-0- . . . . .. ... ... ......
i

]

Subtract line 1f from line 1c. If zero or less, enter -0-
If there is an amount other than zero on either line 1h or line 1i, did the organization file Form 4720
reporting section 4911 taxforthisyear? . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4t 0 ittt e e e e e e e e e D Yes D No
4-Year Averaging Period Under Section 501(h)
(Some organizations that made a section 501(h) election do not have to complete all of the five columns below.
See the separate instructions for lines 2a through 2f.)

Lobbying Expenditures During 4-Year Averaging Period

Calendar year (or fiscal year (a) 2015 (b} 2016 {c) 2017 (d) 2018 (e) Total
beginning in)

2a Lobbying nontaxable amount

b Lobbying ceiling amount
(150% of line 2a, column (e})

¢ Total lobbying expenditures

d Grassroots nontaxable amount

e Grassroots ceiling amount
(150% of line 2d, column (e))

f Grassroots lobbying expenditures

Schedule C (Form 980 or 990-EZ) 2018
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AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605

Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 3
Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3) and has NOT filed Form 5768
(election under section 501 (h}).
For each "Yes," response on lines 1a through 1i below, provide in Part IV a detailed () ®)
description of the lobbying activity. Yes | No Amount
1 During the year, did the filing organization attempt to influence foreign, national, state, or local
legislation, including any attempt to influence public opinion on a legislative matter or
referendum, through the use of:

8 VOIINBEIS? . . . o oottt e e e e e e e e e X

b Paid staff or management (include compensation in expenses reported on lines 1¢ through 1i)?, X

¢ Mediagadvertisements? . . . . . . . o i o i s e e e s e e s e e e s e e e e e s X

d Mailings to members, legislators,orthepublic?, . . ... ... ... ... ... ... X 37,812.

e Publications, or published or broadcast statements? , ., . . . . . ... . . . X

f Grants to other organizations for lobbying purposes? . . . . . . .« . .o oo e e e e s X

g Direct contact with legislators, their staffs, government officials, or a legislative body? . . . . . . X 193,581.

h Rallies, demonstrations, seminars, conventions, speeches, lectures, or any similar means?. . . . X 7,500.

i Otheractivities? . . . . . . . i i i i ittt st e et e e e e e e e e s X

j Total. Addlinesfcthrough i . « « o o o v it ot it i s e et e e e 238,893.
za Did the activities in line 1 cause the organization to be not described in section 501(c)(3)? . . . X

b If "Yes,” enter the amount of any tax incurred under section4912. . . . . . . . .. ... .o o

¢ [f"Yes," enter the amount of any tax incurred by organization managers under section 4912 . .,

d If the filing organization incurred a section 4912 tax, did it file Form 4720 for this year?. . . . .

Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(4), section 501(c)(5), or section
501(c)(6).

Yes | No

1 Were substantially all (30% or more) dues received nondeductible by members? . , , ., . ... .. .........

2 Did the organization make only in-house lobbying expenditures of $2,000 orless?, , . ... ... ... ... ...
3 Did the organization agree to carry over lobbying and political campaign activity expenditures from the prior year? | 3

eillz.  Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(4), section 501(c)(5), or section
501(c)(6) and if either (a) BOTH Part llI-A, lines 1 and 2, are answered "No," OR (b) Part ll-A, line 3, is

answered "Yes.”

1 Dues, assessments and similar amounts frommembers . . . . . . . . .. ..o i e e 1
2 Section 162{e) nondeductible lobbying and political expenditures (do not include amounts of
political expenses for which the section 527(f) tax was paid).
B CUMENEYEAM . v o v v e e vt e e e s e e e e e e e 2a
Carryover froM IaSEYEAMN . v . v v v v v e e e e v r e e e e e ke s 2b
P - IS 2c
3 Aggregate amount reported in section 6033(e)(1)(A) notices of nondeductible section 162(e) dues. . . . . 3
4 If notices were sent and the amount on line 2¢ exceeds the amount on line 3, what portion of the
excess does the organization agree to carryover to the reasonable estimate of nondeductible lobbying
and political exPenditure NEXEYEAr? - « « » « + v v« e v v e e e e e e 4
Taxable amount of lobbying and political expenditures (see instructions) . . . . . . . .. .. ... .. ... 5

5

Part IV Supplemental Information

Provide the descriptions required for Part I-A, line 1; Part I-B, line 4; Part |-C, line 5; Part II-A (affiliated group list); Part Il-A, lines 1 and
2 (see instructions); and Part II-B, line 1. Also, complete this part for any additional information.

SEE PAGE 4
JSA Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018
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AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605

Scheduie C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 4
e i'e  Supplemental Information (continued)

PART II-B LOBBYING ACTIVITY

THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS DOES NOT CONTRIBUTE TO OR PARTICIPATE 1IN

ELECTION CAMPAIGNS. IT DOES NOT ENDORSE CANDIDATES FOR ELECTIVE OFFICE,

NOR DOES IT PUBLISH OR DISTRIBUTE INFORMATION THAT DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY

ENDORSES OR OPPOSES A CANDIDATE.

THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS PARTICIPATES IN LOBBYING AND OTHER PUBLIC

POLICY ADVOCACY ACTIVITIES AT THE FEDERAL AND STATE LEVELS (WITHIN THE

LIMITS SET BY IRS REGULATIONS) ON ISSUES THAT ARE RELATED TO THE

ORGANIZATION'S MISSION INCLUDING: BIOMEDICAL SERVICES; HOMELAND SECURITY,

AND ALL HAZARDS PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE; PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY;

EMERGENCY COMMUNICATION SERVICES TO THE ARMED FORCES; INTERNATIONAL

SERVICES; AND THE REGULATION OF NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS. THESE ACTIVITIES

INCLUDE PREPARING AND PRESENTING WRITTEN AND ORAL TESTIMONY AT

LEGISLATIVE HEARINGS AT THE FEDERAL AND STATE LEVELS; COMMUNICATING WITH

POLICYMAKERS AND THEIR STAFFS THROUGH MEETINGS AND BRIEFINGS, AND ISSUING

PUBLIC STATEMENTS RELATED TO PENDING LEGISLATION AND REGULATION.

JSA Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018
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(S,gf:ﬁogg'ﬁ P Supplemental Financial Statements EMEND 2 O
B Complete if the organization answered "Yes” on Form 990,
part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 111, 12a, or 12b.
Department of the Treasury P> Attach to Form 8§90, Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service B Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. lnspection
Name of the organization AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT Employer identification number

CHAPTERS AND BRANCHES 53-0196605
Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 980, Part IV, line 6.
(a) Donor advised funds (b} Funds and other accounts

Total number atendofyear . . .........
Aggregate vaiue of contributions to (during year)
Aggregate value of grants from (during year) . .
Aggregate value atendofyear. . . . ... ...
Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised
funds are the organization's property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legalcontrol? . . . . . . ... .. D Yes D No
6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used

only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose

conferring impermissible private benefit? . . . . . . . . . v e e e s e s s e D Yes D No

Partll Conservation Easements.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or education) Preservation of a historically important land area
Protection of natural habitat Preservation of a certified historic structure

N bW N -

Preservation of open space
2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation

easement on the last day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year
a Total number of conservationeasements . . . . . . .. . . i e e s e 2a
b Total acreage restricted by conservationeasements . . . . . ... . ... ... .. Zb
¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure includedin(a). . . . . 2c
d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 7/25/06, and notona
historic structure listed in the National Register. . . . . . .. . .. . v 2d
3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the
tax year b
4 Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located b
5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of
violations, and enforcement of the conservation easementsitholds? . . .. ... ... ... . ... D Yes D No
6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
| 4
7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
L &)

g Does each conservationeasement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h){4)(B)(i)
and Section 170MANBIIN? - . + .« + + v v e e e e e e e e e e e [Jves [lwo
9 In Part Xill, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and
balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the

organization's accounting for conservation easements.
m Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.
1a If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet

works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of
public service, provide, in Part Xili, the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of
public service, provide the following amounts relating to these items:

(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part Vil line 1. . . . . . oo oo v vt v i e B $
(ii) Assets included iNForm 990, Part X. .+« « c v v vt vt v e e e e L
2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the

following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items:

a Revenueincludedon Form 990, PartVIILline 1. . . . . . . . . o o i i i it it e e e |
b Assets included in Form 990, Part X. .« v o v o v v v s o e b e e e a e e s e e e e e e e s e s s 4 s s L
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form $90. Schedule D (Form 990) 2018
JSA
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AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605

Schedute D (Form 990) 2018 Page 2
=1 Il Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)
3 Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its

collection items (check all that apply):

a Public exhibition d B Loan or exchange programs
b Scholarly research e Other
c Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in Part
X
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar
assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection? , , . . . . [:l Yes No

=1 )Y Escrow and Custodial Arrangements.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form

990, Part X, line 21.
1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not

b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part Xill and complete the following table:

Amount
¢ Beginningbalance . , ., . . ... ... ... .. .. e e ic
d Additionsduringtheyear, . . . . .. .. ... ...ttt 1d
e Distributionsduringtheyear, , , . . . ... ... ... ... ... .. .0..... ie
f Endingbalance . . . ... ... ... ... e e 1

2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability? | | Yes L
b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part Xili. Check here if the explanation has been providedonPart XIli , , .. ... ...
k1Y Endowment Funds.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back (d) Three years back | (e) Four years back
968,352,039. 1047760039.1969,075,039.) 1014382039.| 982,209,039.
19,975,000. 23,501,000. 27,392,000.] 22,824,000. 27,700,000.

1a Beginning of year balance . . . .
Contributions . . . . ... . ...

¢ Netinvestment earnings, gains,
andiosses. . .« . . f e
Grants or scholarships . . .. ..

e Other expenditures for facilities
andprograms . + . . o v ...
f Administrative expenses . . . . .
g Endofyearbalance. . ... ...
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:

61,818,000. 38,352,000.| 88,410,000.|-31,976,000. 38,138,000.

37,047,000. 141,261,000.| 37,117,000.]| 36,155,000. 33,665,000.

1013098039.| 968,352,039.| 1047760039.,969,075,039. 1014382039.

a Board designated or quasi-endowment B %
Permanent endowment p 100.0000 9
¢ Temporarily restricted endowment b %

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c¢ should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the

organization by: Yes | No

(i) unrelated Organizations . . . . . . . . i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 3a(i) X

(i) related Organizations . . . . . . . i v i e e e e e e e e e e e e e 3a(ii) X
b If "Yes" on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? . . . . . . . . . .. . ... 3b

4  Describe in Part Xiil the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.

*r1g. 7/ | Land, Buildings, and Equipment. ) _
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (a) Costorotherbasis | (b} Costorotherbasis | (¢} Accumulated (d) Book value
{investment) {other) depreciation
ta Land. ... ..... ..., 101,810,715. 101,810,715.
b Buildings .................. 987,320,054.1486,585,889. 500,734,165.
¢ Leasehold improvements. . . . ...... 86,546,765.] 65,225,705, 21,321,060.
d EQUPMENt. « » o oo e e 557,066,444 .|368,811,481. 188,254,963 .
e Other . ., . . . . . .. ... e.... 22,085,389. 22,085,389,
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10c.), . . . . . . b 834,206,292,

Schedule D (Form 990) 2018
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AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605

Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 Page 3

Fiecdll  Investments - Other Securities.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 890, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 980, Part X, line 12.

{a) Description of security or category (b} Book value (c) Method of valuation:
(including name of security) Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives , , , . .............
(2) Closely-held equity interests . . . ... .......
(3) Other
(A)ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS 627,270,000. FMV
(B)
©
(D)
E)
F)
<)
H)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 12.) B> 627,270,000.

e VL Investments - Program Related.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

(a) Description of investment (b} Book value (c) Method of valuation:
Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
)
{(8)
(9)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B} line 13.) B>

Elge e Other Assets.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

{a) Description {b) Book value

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B)line 15.), . . . . . . . . . . . 4 o v\ s s o b

Other Liabilities.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X,

line 25.

1. {a) Description of liability (b) Book value
(1) Federal income taxes
(2) PENSTION AND POST-RETIREMENT BE 498,985,349.
(3) INSURANCE (LOSS RESERVES & CLA 88,800,593.
(4) SPLIT INTEREST AGREEMENT LIABI 31,000,000.
(5) SECURITIZATION & MISC LIABILIT 135,518,467.
(6)
(7)
(8)
9)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B} line 25) b 754,304,409.

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. in Part X, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the

organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740). Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIlI [—)q

Schedule D (Form 990) 2018
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AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605
Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 Page 4

i Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.
Compilete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements . . . . . . . .. ... ... .. 1
Amounts inciuded on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part Vill, line 12:

a Netunrealized gains (losses)oninvestments . . . . . ... ... ... .... 2a

b Donated services and useoffacilities . . . . . . . . o v o h e i e e 2b

¢ Recoveriesof prioryeargrantS. . . . . .« v v c vt e v b h e b s e e e 2c

d Other (DescribeinPart XL} .« « « v v v v i e e e e e e e 2d

e ADDNNEs 2athrough 2d « - « v v v v v v et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 2e
3 Subtracthne 2e from liNE . « v v v v v e e s e e e e e e e e e e e e e 3
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIlI, line 12, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part Vill, line7b. . . . . . . 4a

b Other (Describe inPartXIL) « « « o v v vt v e it e e e e e e e e 4b

C AdONiNEsS4a anddb . . . . . i i e e e e e e e e e e e 4c
5 Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Partl line 12.) . . . . . v v v v v u v u 5

Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.
Compilete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements . . . . . . . . . . .. ... .o .n 1
Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:

a Donated services anduseoffacilities . . . . . « v v v v e v e b e e 2a

b Prior year adjustments . . . . v o v v v v i v e e e e e e e 2b

C OthErIOSSES. & v v v ittt et e e et e e e e e e e e 2c

d Other (DescribeinPart XIL) « « v v i o it v i it et e e e e 2d

e Addlines2athrough2d . . . . . v it it i i it e e e e e e Ze
3 Subtractline 2e fromliNE T . v v v v v v it e e e e e e e e e 3
4 Amounts included on Form 890, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part Vill,line7b. . . . . . . 4a

b Other (DescribeinPart XHL) . . . . v v v v v o i e e e s i e e 4b

€ ADDIiNES 43 and4b . . . . v i v i e e e e e e e e e e e e e 4c
5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Partl line 18.). . . . . v v v v v v s . . 5

o4l Supplemental Information.
Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part ill, lines 1a and 4; Part 1V, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line
2; Part Xl, lines 2d and 4b; and Part Xll, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

SEE PAGE §

g??zn 1.000 Schedule D (Form 990} 2018
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605 Page §
=1grdl  Supplemental information (continued)

SCHEDULE D, PART III, LINE 1A

THE AMERICAN RED CROSS ELECTED NOT TO INCLUDE THE VALUE OF THE ART ON THE

BALANCE SHEET UNDER FASB 116.

SCHEDULE D, PART V

ENDOWMENT FUNDS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH ITS CONGRESSIONAL CHARTER, THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED
CROSS HAS MAINTAINED AN ENDOWMENT FUND SINCE 1905 WHICH IS KEPT AND
INVESTED UNDER THE MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL OF A BOARD OF TRUSTEES ELECTED
BY THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS. THE BYLAWS OF THE ORGANIZATION STATE THAT
WHENEVER A GIFT IS DESIGNATED BY THE DONOR TO BE PERMANENTLY RETAINED,
THE GIFT SHALL BE RECEIVED AND HELD IN THE ENDOWMENT FUND. THE AMERICAN
NATIONAL RED CROSS MAKES DISTRIBUTIONS FROM INCOME EARNED ON THE

ENDOWMENT FUND FOR CURRENT OPERATIONS.

SCHEDULE D, PART X

OTHER LIABILITIES ASC 740 (FORMER FIN 48)

ON JULY 1, 2007, THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS ADOPTED THE PROVISIONS
OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS CODIFICATION (ASC) TOPIC 740, ACCOUNTING FOR
UNCERTAINTY IN INCOME TAXES. ASC 740 REQUIRES THAT A TAX POSITION BE
RECOGNIZED ON A 'MORE-LIKELY-THAN-NOT' THRESHOLD. THIS APPLIES TO
POSITIONS TAKEN OR EXPECTED TO BE TAKEN IN A TAX RETURN. AMERICAN
NATIONAL RED CROSS ANNUALLY REVIEWS ITS TAX POSITIONS AND HAS DETERMINED
THAT THERE ARE NO MATERIAL UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS THAT REQUIRE

RECOGNITION IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

Scheduie D (Form 990) 2018
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OMB No. 1545-0047

SCHEDULE F Statement of Activities Outside the United States

(Form 980)
B> Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 14b, 15, or 16. 1
P> Attach to Form 980. -
Obpen to Public
Department of the Treasury WWW.ITs. i ion. g
Intornal Revenue Servise B Go to irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information Inspection
Name of the organizaton AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT Employer identification number
CHAPTERS AND BRANCHES 53-0196605

General Information on Activities Outside the United States. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on
Form 980, Part IV, line 14b.

1 For grantmakers. Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of its grants and other
assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and the selection criteria used to award the
grants or assistance?

Yes D No

2 For grantmakers. Describe in Part V the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of its grants and other assistance
outside the United States.

3 Activities per Region. (The following Part |, line 3 table can be duplicated if additional space is needed.)

(a) Region {b} Number {c) Number of | (d) Activities conducted in the (e) If activity listed in (d) is {f} Total
of offices in employees, region (by type) (such as, a program service, expenditures for
the region agents, and fundraising, program services, describe specific type of and investments
independent {investments, grants to recipients service(s) in the region in the region
contractors tocated in the region)
in the region
{1) CENTRAL AMERICA/CARIBBEAN 2. 6. PROGRAM SERVICES DISASTER RESPONSE 10,911,888.
(2} EAST ASIA AND THE PACIFIC 6. 12, PROGRAM SERVICES DISASTER RESPONSE 15,322,173,
(3) EUROPE 1. 0. PROGRAM SERVICES DISASTER RESPONSE 267,907.
(4} MIDDLE EAST AND NORTH AFRICA 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVICES DISASTER RESPONSE 6,606.
{5) NORTH AMERICA 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVICES DISASTER RESPONSE 844,518,
(6) souTH AMERICA 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVICES DISASTER RESPONSE 105,451,
{7} SOUTH ASIA 2. 7. PROGRAM SERVICES DISASTER RESPONSE 6,990,257,
(8} SUB-SRHARAN AFRICA 1. 1. PROGRAM SERVICES DISASTER RESPONSE 3,399,447,
(9) EUrROPE 0. 0. INVESTMENTS 4,544,040,
{10} CENTRAL AMERICA/CARIBBEAN 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVICES INSURANCE 41,450,143,
(11}
(12)
(13)
(14)
{(15)
(16)
(17)
3a Subtotal, . ., . ....... 12. 26. 83,842,430.
b Total from continuation
sheetsto Partt | . ., .,
¢ Totals (add lines 3a and 3b) 12. 26. 83,842,430,
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 980. Schedule F (Form 990) 2018
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AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT

Schedule F (Form 990) 2018
gl Foreign Forms

53-0196605

Page 4

Was the organization a U.S. transferor of property to a foreign corporation during the tax year? If "Yes,”
the organization may be required to file Form 926, Return by a U.S. Transferor of Property to a Foreign
Corporation (see Instructions for Form 926) | . . . . . . . i 4 s s s s e e e e e e e e

Did the organization have an interest in a foreign trust during the tax year? If "Yes,” the organization
may be required to separately file Form 3520, Annual Return To Report Transactions With Foreign
Trusts and Receipt of Certain Foreign Gifts, and/or Form 3520-A, Annual information Return of Foreign
Trust With a U.S. Owner (see Instructions for Forms 3520 and 3520-A; don't file with Form 990)

Did the organization have an ownership interest in a foreign corporation during the tax year? /f "Yes,"”
the organization may be required to file Form 5471, Information Return of U.S. Persons With Respect To
Certain Fareign Corporations (see Instructions for Form 5471) _ . . . . . . ... e e e e e e .

Was the organization a direct or indirect shareholder of a passive foreign investment company or a
qualified electing fund during the tax year? If "Yes," the organization may be required to file Form 8621,
Information Return by a Shareholder of a Passive Foreign Investment Company or Qualified Electing
Fund (see Instructions for Form 8621)

Did the organization have an ownership interest in a foreign partnership during the tax year? If "Yes,”
the organization may be required to file Form 8865, Return of U.S. Persons With Respect to Certain
Foreign Partnerships (see Instructions for Form 8865) | | | . . . . . . . . i v i i it

Did the organization have any operations in or related to any boycotting countries during the tax year? If
"Yes,” the organization may be required to separately file Form 5713, International Boycott Report (see
Instructions for Form 5713; don't file with Form 990} | . . . . . . . . i v i e« e e s e e r e e

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

DNO

DNO

No

JSA
B8E1277 1.000

06583L 2502
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AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605
Schedule F (Form 990) 2018 Page 5
Supplemental Information
Provide the information required by Part |, line 2 {monitoring of funds); Part |, line 3, column (f) (accounting method:;
amounts of investments vs. expenditures per region); Part {l, line 1 (accounting method); Part lll {accounting method); and
Part lll, column (c) (estimated number of recipients), as applicable. Also complete this part to provide any additionat
information (see instructions).

SCHEDULE F, PART I, LINE 2

PROCEDURES FOR MONITORING THE USE OF GRANT FUNDS OUTSIDE THE U.S.: THE
INTERNATIONAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT OF THE AMERICAN RED CROSS HAS
ESTABLISHED STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES THAT INCLUDE DUE DILIGENCE
PRIOR TO AWARDING FUNDS TO A SUB-RECIPIENT. THIS DUE DILIGENCE IS A
REVIEW OF THE PROGRAMMATIC, STRUCTURAL, AND FINANCIAL HEALTH OF THE
ORGANIZATION AND AN ANALYSIS OF THE RISK LEVEL OF AWARDING FUNDS. THIS
RISK LEVEL DICTATES PROCEDURES TO MITIGATE THOSE RISKS, INCLUDING THE
LEVEL OF DETAIL AND TIMING OF FINANCIAL AND NARRATIVE REPORTS, DURING THE
TERM OF THE AWARD. THESE FINANCIAL AND NARRATIVE REPORTS ARE REVIEWED
AND, IN CONJUNCTION WITH ANY OTHER IDENTIFIED MITIGATING ACTIVITIES, &
DECISION IS MADE TO "ACCEPT" THE REPORTS AND WHETHER TO CONTINUE
PROVIDING FUNDS FOR THE AWARD. AT THE END OF THE AWARD TERM, A FINAL
REVIEW OF PROGRAMMATIC AND FINANCIAL REQUIREMENTS IS PERFORMED TO ENSURE
THE SUB-RECIPIENT MET ITS OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE AWARD. THIS REVIEW FEEDS

INTO FUTURE AWARD DECISIONS WITH THE SUB-RECIPIENT.

JSA Scheduie F (Form 890) 2018
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Supplemental Information Regarding Fundraising or Gaming Activities | oms No. 1545-0047

SCHEDULE G

" Complete if the organization answered "Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 17, 18, or 18, orif the
(Form 890 or 990 EZ) organization entered more than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.
Department of the Treasury B Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service P> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest instructions. Inspection
Name of the organization AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT Employer identification number
CHAPTERS AND BRANCHES 53-0196605

Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17.
Form 990-EZ filers are not required to complete this part.
1 Indicate whether the organization raised funds through any of the following activities. Check all that apply.

a Mail solicitations e Solicitation of non-government grants
b Internet and email solicitations f Solicitation of government grants
¢ | % | Phone solicitations g Special fundraising events

d - In-person solicitations
2a Did the organization have a written or oral agreement with any individual (including officers, directors, trustees,
or key employees listed in Form 990, Part VII) or entity in connection with professional fundraising services? Yes E] No
b If "Yes,” list the 10 highest paid individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser is to be
compensated at least $5,000 by the organization.

S X {v) Amount paid to . .
. o Did fundraiser have ) . N {vi) Amount paid to
(i) Name and address of individual " - (i) (iv) Gross receipts (or retained by) A
or entity (fundraiser) (i) Activity custody or c_ontrol of from activity fundraiser listed in tor reta!neq by)
contributions? col. (i) organization
Yes No
1
ATTACHMENT 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
Total | . . . e e e e e v e e e e e e s B 1,189,071. 247,242, 941,829.

3 List all states in which the organization is registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified it is exempt from
registration or licensing.

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 980 or 990-EZ Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018
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AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605
Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 2
Fundraising Events. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 18, or reported
more than $15,000 of fundraising event contributions and gross income on Form 980-EZ, lines 1 and 6b. List
events with gross receipts greater than $5,000.

(a) Event #1 (b} Event #2 {c} Other events (d) Total events
INTL RC BALL NY GALA 180.| (add col. (a) through
{event type) (event type) (total number) col. (c))
g
o1 Grossreceipts . . . . ... .. .. 1,494,579. 1,327,791. 20,361,529. 23,183,899.
4
2 Less: Contributions . . .. . . 1,138,092. 1,199,041. 16,274,429, 18,611,562.
3 Gross income (line 1 minus
ine2) ... ... ... ... ... 356,487. 128,750. 4,087,100. 4,572,337.
4 Cashprizes . .. .. ... .... . 6,203. 6,203.
5 Noncashprizes . .. ... . .. . 114,321. 114,321.
w
§ 6 Rent/facilitycosts , . . . ... .. 127,299. 91,455, 1,574,155, 1,792,909.
[
Q.
gj | ¥ Food and beverages, . . . . . .. 134,906. 109,322. 2,022,033, 2,266,261,
©
g 8 Entertainment . . . .. ... 23,025. 41,635. 821,410. 886,070.
8 Other direct expenses, . . . . . . 71,258. 28,915. 580,407. 680,580.
10 Direct expense summary. Add lines 4 through Qincolumn(d) . . .. ... ... ... . ... B 5,746,344.
11 Netincome summary. Subtract line 10 from line 3,column(d) . . . ... ... ... ..... » -1,174,007.

Gaming. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 19, or reported more than
$15,000 on Form 890-EZ, line 6a.

o , b) P i - d) Total gaming (add
2 (a) Bingo bargg?:/p‘ﬁgéfebsss'f\'ztﬁé‘fgo () Other gaming c(ol? (a<; tahr%igrlungog.a(c))
5
| 1 Grossrevenue . . .. .......
8| 2 Cashprizes ... ... ...
o
g 3 Noncashprizes. ..........
wi
§ 4 Rentffacilitycosts =~ = .
s

5 Other directexpenses, . . .. ..

| | Yes %|_|Yes % __|Yes %

6 Volunteeriabor = = = No No No

7 Direct expense summary. Add lines 2 through Sincolumn(d) .. . . . .. . . .

8 Net gaming income summary. Subtractline 7 from line 1,column(d) . . . .. ... ... .. b

9 Enter the state(s) in which the organization conducts gaming activities:
a Is the organization licensed to conduct gaming activities in each of these states? === = = = L Jves| [No
b If "No,” explain:

10a Were any of the organization's gaming licenses revoked, suspended, or terminated during the taxyear? | _|Yes | |No
b If "Yes," explain:

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018
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Schedu

AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605

le G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 3

11
12

13
a

b
14

15a

16

17
a

b

Does the organization conduct gaming activities with nonmembers? . , . . . .. . ... ... ... ... ... l_] Yes [_J No
is the organization a grantor, beneficiary or trustee of a trust or a member of a partnership or other entity

formed to administer charitable gaming? . . . . . . o o it bt h e e e e e e e e e e e e D Yes D No
Indicate the percentage of gaming activity conducted in:
The organization's facility . . . . . . .. ottt e e e e 13a %
AN OULSIBE TaCItY . . . . . . e e e e e e e e e e 13b %
Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the organization's gaming/special events books and

records:

Does the organization have a contract with a third party from whom the organization receives gaming

FEVBMUET | . . i e vttt et e m e e e e e e e e e e e e [ Jves L INo
If "Yes," enter the amount of gaming revenue received by the organizaton® $ __ and the

amount of gaming revenue retained by the third party b §

If "Yes," enter name and address of the third party:

Description of services provided B e
D Director/officer D Employee D independent contractor

Mandatory distributions:

Is the organization required under state law to make charitable distributions from the gaming proceeds to

retain the state gaming iCENSEZ, | . . . . . . . i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e s Yes [:I No
Enter the amount of distributions required under state law to be distributed to other exempt organizations

or spent in the organization's own exempt activities during the tax year p $

P12l Supplemental Information. Provide the explanation required by Part |, line 2b, columns (iii) and (v), and

Part Iii, lines 9, 9b, 10b, 15b, 15¢, 16, and 17b, as applicable. Also provide any additional information
(see instructions).

PART I, LINE 3

THE

AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS WAS CHARTERED BY SPECIAL ACT OF CONGRESS

ON JANUARY 5, 1905, AND IS A FEDERAL INSTRUMENTALITY OF THE UNITED

STATES. SEE 36 U.S.C. §§ 300101-300111. AS A FEDERAL INSTRUMENTALITY, IT

IS EXEMPT FROM STATE LAW CHARITABLE REGISTRATION AND LICENSING

REQUIREMENTS. SEE DEPARTMENT OF EMPLOYMENT V. UNITED STATES, 385 U.S. 355

(196

6).

JSA
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SCHEDULE J Compensation Information |_oM8 No. 1545-0047
(Form 980) For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees

B> Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 23. g
Department of the Treasury B> Attach to Form 990. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Senice P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. lnspection
Name of the organization AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT Employer identification number
CHAPTERS AND BRANCHES 53-0196605

Questions Regarding Compensation

t1a Check the appropriate box({es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form
990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part Il to provide any relevant information regarding these items.

First-class or charter travel Housing allowance or residence for personal use
Travel for companions Payments for business use of personal residence
Tax indemnification and gross-up payments Health or social club dues or initiation fees

Discretionary spending account Personal services (such as maid, chauffeur, chef)

b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment
or reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If "No," complete Part Il to

150 =¥ o PN
2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all
directors, trustees, and officers, including the CEO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked on line

- 7255

3 Indicate which, if any, of the following the filing organization used to establish the compensation of the
organization's CEOQ/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a
related organization to establish compensation of the CEQ/Executive Director, but explain in Part Hli.

Compensation committee Written employment contract
Independent compensation consultant Compensation survey or study
Form 990 of other organizations Approval by the board or compensation committee

4  During the year, did any person listed on Form 990, Part Vil, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing
organization or a related organization:
a Receive a severance payment or change-of-control payment?. . . . . . . . . . . . i i i it

¢ Participate in, or receive payment from, an equity-based compensation arrangement?, . . . . .. . ..o ..
If "Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part lil.

Only section 501(c)(3), 501(c)}(4), and 501(c){29) organizations must complete lines 5-9.
5  For persons listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the revenues of:
@ Theorganization? . . . . . . . i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s e s e e e e e
b Anyrelated organization? . . . . . . . i i L e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
If "Yes" on line 5a or 5b, describe in Part lil.
6 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the net earnings of:
a TheorganiZation? . . . . v v v v v v o c ot v v n e s h i ek e e e e e e e e e e e
b Anyrelated organization? . . . . . . . . i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
If “Yes" on line 6a or 6b, describe in Part {il.
7  For persons listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any nonfixed
payments not described on lines 5 and 67 If "Yes,"describeinPartill. . . . . ... ... ... ... .. .. ..
8 Were any amounts reported on Form 990, Part VI, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject
to the initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If “Yes,” describe
1T == T4 |
9 If "Yes" on line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in
Regulations section 53.4958-6(C)? . . . . v v v v v s b e e e e e e e e e s e e e 4 e s e s e e e s 9 X
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule J (Form 990) 2018

6a X
6b X

8 X

JSA

8E1290 1.000
06583L 2502 PAGE 52
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| OMB No. 1545-0047

SCHEDULE M Noncash Contributions
(Form 990) _ _ 2018
P Compilete if the organizations answered "Yes"” on Form 980, Part IV, lines 29 or 30.
Department of the Treasury B> Attach to Form 990. Open to Public
Intemal Revenue Service B Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT Employer identification number
CHAPTERS AND BRANCHES 53-0196605
Types of Property
{c) d
Ch(eac)k if Number of c(gr)mtributions or ':gr;f::tg ‘;g;;rri&;tf: Method of(stermining
applicable items contributed Form 990, Part VIII, line 1g noncash contribution amounts
1 Art-Worksofart, .........
2 Art - Historical treasures , . . . ..
3 Art- Fractional interests . . . . ..
4 Books and publications , .. ...
§ Clothing and household
gOOAS . . . s e e . X 3,1592,046. |FMV
6 Cars and other vehicles. . . . . . . X 762,183 . |FMV
7 Boatsandplanes..........
8 Intellectual property . ... ....
9 Securities - Publicly traded . . . . .
10 Securities - Closely held stock . . .
11 Securities - Partnership, LLC,
ortrustinterests . . ..... ...
12 Securities - Miscellaneous . . . . .
13 Qualified conservation
contribution - Historic
structures . . . ... ........
14 Qualified conservation
contribution- Other, . . ... ...
15 Realestate-Residential . . . . ..
16 Realestate - Commercial. , . . . .
17 Realestate-Other . . .. ... ..
18 Collectibles . . .. .........
19 Foodinventory .. ......... X 7,785,767. |FMV
20 Drugs and medical supplies . . . . X 189,577. |FMV
21 Taxidermy, ..., ..........
22 Historical artifacts, . ... ... ..
23 Scientific specimens . .. .. ...
24 Archeological artifacts . . . . ...
25 Oﬂmr;(VARIOUS ) X 2,777,001, |FMV
26 Other b ( )
27 Other b { )
28 Other b ( )
28 Number of Forms 8283 received by the organization during the tax year for contributions for
which the organization completed Form 8283, Part IV, Donee Acknowledgement . . . . . . . . .. 29 6.
Yes | No
30a During the year, did the organization receive by contribution any property reported in Part |, lines 1 through
28, that it must hold for at least three years from the date of the initial contribution, and which isn't required
to be used for exempt purposes for the entire holding period?. . . . . . . . . . i i i i it it i e e e e 30a X
b If "Yes,” describe the arrangement in Part |1
31 Does the organization have a gift acceptance policy that requires the review of any nonstandard
CONIIDULIONS?. & . v v e i e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 31 X
32a Does the organization hire or use third parties or related organizations to solicit, process, or sell noncash
COMIBUIONST, v v v b v e v et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 32a] X
b If "Yes," describe in Part i,
33 If the organization didn't report an amount in column (c¢) for a type of property for which column (a) is checked,
describe in Part Il
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule M (Form 890) 2018
JSA

8E1268 1.000

06583L 2502 PAGE 61



AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605
Schedule M (Form 990) (2018) Page 2

Supplemental Information. Provide the information required by Part |, lines 30b, 32b, and 33, and whether
the organization is reporting in Part I, column (b), the number of contributions, the number of items received,
or a combination of both. Also complete this part for any additional information.

SCHEDULE M, PART I, LINE 32B

THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS USES THIRD-PARTY VENDORS FOR ITS VEHICLE

DONATION AND CLOTHING DONATION PROGRAMS. THE VENDORS SOLICIT, PROCESS,

AND SELL THE DONATED GOODS.

Jsh Schedule M (Form 990) (2018)

8E1508 1.000
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SCHEDULE O Supplemental information to Form 990 or 990-EZ | OMB No. 1545-0047

{Form 990 or 990-EZ) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.
Attach to F 990 or 890-EZ. i
Department of the Treasury P Attach to Form or Open to Public
internal Revenue Service B> Information about Schedule O (Form 930 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. Inspection
Name of the organization AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT Employer identification number

CHAPTERS AND BRANCHES 53-0196605

FORM 990, PART III, STATEMENT OF PROGRAM SERVICES

4A. BIOMEDICAIL SERVICES: THE ORGANIZATION COLLECTS, TESTS, AND
DISTRIBUTES APPROXIMATELY 40 PERCENT OF THE NATION'S BLOOD AND BLOOD
COMPONENTS THROUGHOUT THE COUNTRY. EACH YEAR, THE AMERICAN RED CROSS
COLLECTS MORE THAN 4.6 MILLION BLOOD DONATIONS AND NEARLY 1 MILLION
PLATELET DONATIONS FROM MORE THAN 2.6 MILLION VOLUNTEER DONORS ON AVERAGE
AND SUPPLIES APPROXIMATELY 2,500 HOSPITALS AND OTHER FACILITIES ACROSS

THE COUNTRY WITH BLOOD AND BLOOD PRODUCTS FOR TRANSFUSION.

4B. DOMESTIC DISASTER SERVICES: THE ORGANIZATION RESPONDED TO MULTIPLE
LARGE SCALE DISASTERS IN FISCAL YEAR 2019, INCLUDING NOTABLY TWO
DEVASTATING HURRICANES AND TWO DEVASTATING TYPHOONS: HURRICANES FLORENCE
(SEPTEMBER) AND MICHAEL (OCTOBER) AND TYPHOONS MANGKHUT (SEPTEMBER) AND
YUTU (OCTOBER). IN ADDITION, THE RED CROSS ALSO RESPONDED TO MULTIPLE
FIRES IN CALIFORNIA (JULY, AUGUST, SEPTEMBER, NOVEMBER), FLOODING IN THE
PLAINS AND MID-WEST (MARCH - JUNE), SEVERE WEATHER ACROSS THE SOUTH AND
EASTERN SEABOARD AND SEVERAL MASS FATALITY SHOOTINGS, INCLUDING THOUSAND
OAKS, CALIFORNIA AND VIRGINIA BEACH, VA. IN ADDITION TO THOSE RESPONSES
THE AMERICAN RED CROSS HAS ONGOING RECOVERY OPERATIONS IN MANY STATES,

INCLUDING STATES IMPACTED BY FLOODING AND HURRICANES IN FY2018.

THROUGH ITS NETWORK OF VOLUNTEERS AND EMPLOYEES IN ALL 50 STATES, THE RED
CROSS RESPONDS TO MORE THAN 60,000 DISASTERS BIG AND SMALL PER YEAR, MOST

OF WHICH ARE SINGLE AND MULTI-FAMILY HOME FIRES. THE ORGANIZATION

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 980 or 890-EZ. Schedule O (Form 980 or $80-EZ) (2018)

JSA
8E1227 1.000
06583L 2502 PAGE 63



Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 2
Name of the organization AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT Employer identification number

CHAPTERS AND BRANCHES 53-0196605

PROVIDES FOOD, SHELTER, EMERGENCY RELIEF ITEMS, EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE,
HEALTH SERVICE, CRISIS INTERVENTIONS AND COMMUNITY MENTAL-HEALTH
DEBRIEFINGS AND/OR OTHER RELATED EMERGENCY CARE TO PERSONS IN NEED. FOR
INDIVIDUALS AND COMMUNITIES AFFECTED BY DISASTERS, THE SERVICES OF THE
AMERICAN RED CROSS BEGIN WITH SAFE SHELTER AND CONTINUE WITH SUPPORT FOR

INDIVIDUALS AND FAMILIES RECOVERING FROM DISASTERS.

AS PART OF A NATIONAL HOME FIRE CAMPAIGN, THE AMERICAN RED CROSS
INSTALLED APPROXIMATELY 425,000 SMOKE ALARMS AND TAUGHT MORE THAN 250,000
YOUTH ABOUT PREPAREDNESS IN FY19. THE OVERALL GOAL OF THE CAMPAIGN IS TO
REDUCE THE LOSS OF LIFE DUE TO HOME FIRES BY 25 PERCENT. AS OF JUNE 30,
2019 THE RED CROSS CAN CONFIRM AT LEAST 610 LIVES HAVE BEEN SAVED AS THE

RESULT OF THE HOME FIRE CAMPAIGN.

PREPAREDNESS :
THE RED CROSS SUPPORTS PUBLIC PREPAREDNESS THROUGH A COMBINATION OF NEW

TECHNOLOGY, EDUCATION AND AWARENESS CAMPAIGNS, AND DIRECT ACTION:

* QUR HOME FIRE CAMPAIGN INCLUDES A COMPONENT IN WHICH VOLUNTEERS AND
PARTNER ORGANIZATIONS GO DOOR-TO-DOOR TO INSTALL SMOKE ALARMS AND

PROVIDE FIRE-SAFETY EDUCATION IN AT-RISK HOMES NATIONWIDE.

* QUR MESSAGING AND EDUCATIONAL CAMPAIGNS INCLUDE PUBLIC TIPS ON
STAYING SAFE, PRESENTATIONS TO COMMUNITY GROUPS, AND EDUCATION OF YOUTH

IN SCHOOL AND AFTER SCHOOL AROUND HOW THEY CAN BE SAFE.
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* OUR EMERGENCY! AND YOUTH-ORIENTED MONSTER GUARD APPS PROVIDE
STATE-OF~-THE ART INFORMATION ON WHAT TO DO TO KEEP YOURSELF AND YOUR
FAMILY SAFE FROM COMMON HAZARDS. OUR READY RATING WEBSITE PROVIDES SMALL
AND MIDSIZED BUSINESSES WITH AN AUTOMATED, CUSTOMIZED ASSESSMENT OF

THEIR DISASTER READINESS AND RECOMMENDATIONS FOR IMPROVEMENT.

4C. TRAINING SERVICES: AMERICAN RED CROSS TRAINING SERVICES PROVIDES
TRAINING PROGRAMS THAT HELP SAVE LIVES AND STRENGTHEN
COMMUNITIES--IMPARTING HOPE AND CONFIDENCE ALONG WITH PRACTICAL SKILLS.
IT IS THE PREMIER PROVIDER OF EDUCATION, TRAINING, AND PRODUCTS THAT
ENABLE PEOPLE TO PREVENT, PREPARE FOR AND RESPOND TO DISASTERS AND OTHER
LIFE-THREATENING EMERGENCIES. AMERICAN RED CROSS EMPLOYEES AND AUTHORIZED
PROVIDERS HELP SUSTAIN AND DELIVER HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS AND
SERVICES INCLUDING: FIRST AID/CPR/AED (WITH AUTOMATED EXTERNAL
DEFIBRILLATION (AED) INFORMATION AND SKILLS) BOTH FOR THE LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL AND THE LAY RESPONDER; AQUATICS (LEARN-TO-SWIM, WATER
SAFETY, LIFEGUARDING, LIFEGUARD MANAGEMENT, AND AQUATIC EXAMINER FACILITY
SERVICES); CAREGIVING (BABYSITTER'S TRAINING, FAMILY CAREGIVING, NURSE

ASSISTANT TRAINING AND TESTING) .

4D. INTERNATIONAL RELIEF AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES:
THE ORGANIZATION HELPS VULNERABLE PEOPLE AROUND THE WORLD, PREVENT,
PREPARE FOR, RESPOND TC AND RECOVER FROM DISASTERS, COMPLEX HUMANITARIAN

EMERGENCIES, AND LIFE-THREATENING HEALTH CONDITIONS THROUGH GLOBAL

JSA Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018

8E 1228 1.000
06583L 2502 PAGE 65



Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 2
Name of the organization AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT Employer identification number

CHAPTERS AND BRANCHES 53-0196605

INITIATIVES AND COMMUNITY-BASED PROGRAMS. WITH A FOCUS ON DISEASE
PREVENTION ON A MASS-SCALE, DISASTER MANAGEMENT, AND THE DISSEMINATION
OF INTERNATIONAL HUMANITARIAN LAW, THE ORGANIZATION PROVIDES RAPID,
EFFECTIVE, AND LARGE-SCALE HUMANITARIAN ASSISTANCE TO THOSE IN NEED. TO
ACHIEVE OUR GOALS, THE ORGANIZATION WORKS WITH OUR PARTNERS IN THE
INTERNATIONAL RED CROSS AND RED CRESCENT MOVEMENT AND OTHER
INTERNATIONAL RELIEF AND DEVELOPMENT AGENCIES TO BUILD LOCAL CAPACITIES,

MORBILIZE AND EMPOWER COMMUNITIES, AND ESTABLISH PARTNERSHIPS.

4E. SERVICE TO THE ARMED FORCES: THE ORGANIZATION PROVIDES MILITARY
MEMBERS, VETERANS, AND THEIR FAMILIES WITH EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS
SERVICES, PROGRAMS AND SERVICES FOR THE SICK, WOUNDED AND RECOVERING AT
VETERANS AND MILITARY MEDICAL FACILITIES, JOB TRAINING AND EDUCATION,

AND OTHER VITAL SERVICES FOR U.S. MILITARY FAMILIES AROUND THE WORLD.

FORM 990, PART V, LINE 3B

THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS COMPLIES WITH ITS UNRELATED BUSINESS
INCOME FORM 990-T RETURN FILING BY THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE PERMITTED
EXTENDED DUE DATE OF MAY 15, 2020. PER THE FORM 990 INSTRUCTIONS FOR
PART V, LINE 3B, THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS IS REQUIRED TO ANSWER
'NO' TO FILING A FORM 990-T BECAUSE IT WILL NOT FILE ITS FORM 990-T BY
THE TIME IT FILES ITS FORM 990 ON NOVEMBER 15, 2019. COMPLETE UNRELATED
BUSINESS INCOME INFORMATION RELATED TO ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENT
PARTNERSHIPS WERE NOT YET AVAILABLE AT THE TIME OF THE RED CROSS'S FORM

990 FILING AT NOVEMBER 15, 2019. THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS IS
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ANNUALLY AND TIMELY COMPLIANT WITH ITS FORM 990-T REQUIREMENTS.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION A, LINES 4, 6 & 7A

4. IN FY2019 THE AMERICAN RED CROSS BOARD OF GOVERNORS APPROVED CHANGES

TO A SERIES OF GOVERNING DOCUMENTS AS A RESULT OF TRANSITIONING TO AN

OUTSOURCED CHIEF INVESTMENT OFFICER FIRM.

6. AS DEFINED IN THE CONGRESSIONAL CHARTER: "MEMBERSHIP IN THE

CORPORATION IS OPEN TO ALL THE PEOPLE OF THE UNITED STATES AND ITS

TERRITORIES AND POSSESSIONS, ON PAYMENT OF AN AMOUNT SPECIFIED, OR AS

OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THE BYLAWS."

SECTION 7 OF THE AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS OF THE AMERICAN NATIONAL

RED CROSS DESCRIBES MEMBERSHIP IN THE CORPORATION AND DEFINES MEMBERSHIP

AND THE TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP.

7A. DELEGATES OF THE CHAPTERS ELECT ALL MEMBERS OF THE GOVERNING BODY

EXCEPT THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS, WHO IS APPOINTED BY THE

PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES.

AS MANDATED IN THE CONGRESSIONAL CHARTER, SECTION 4 (A) (3) (B) (I): MEMBERS

OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS OTHER THAN THE CHAIRMAN SHALL BE ELECTED AT

THE ANNUAL MEETING OF THE CORPORATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUCH PROCEDURES

AS MAY BE PROVIDED IN THE BYLAWS.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINES 11B, 12C, 15A & 15B

LINE 11B - THE COMPENSATION AND MANAGEMENT DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE REVIEWED

JSA Schedule O (Form 930 or 890-EZ) 2018

8E1228 1.000
06583L 2502 PAGE 67



Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 2
Name of the organization AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT Employer identification number

CHAPTERS AND BRANCHES 53-0196605

THE COMPENSATION PORTIONS OF THE IRS FORM 990 (PART VII AND SCHEDULE J)
DURING THE MEETING HELD ON OCTOBER 23, 2019. A COPY OF
THE FINAL FORM 990 WAS SUBMITTED TO EACH MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS

BEFORE IT WAS FILED WITH THE IRS.

THE MANAGEMENT REVIEW PROCESS ENTAILS THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
COORDINATING THE COMPLETION OF THE IRS FORM 990 WITH THE GENERAL COUNSEL
AND THE CHIEF HUMAN RESOURCES OFFICER FOR FINAL REVIEW BY THE PRESIDENT

AND CEO.

LINE 12C. AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 2.3 (A) OF THE AMENDED AND RESTATED
BYLAWS OF THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS, ALL MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
GOVERNORS MUST ANNUALLY REVIEW AND CERTIFY THE CODE OF BUSINESS ETHICS
AND CONDUCT. ADDITIONALLY, TO DISCLOSE AND REMEDY ACTUAL OR PERCEIVED
BUSINESS, FINANCIAL OR PERSONAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST, EVERY MEMBER OF
THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS MUST ALSO COMPLETE A CONFLICT OF INTEREST
QUESTIONNAIRE (THE QUESTIONNAIRE) ANNUALLY. OTHER OFFICERS AND KEY
EMPLOYEES ARE ALSO REQUIRED TO EXECUTE THE CODE OF BUSINESS ETHICS AND

CONDUCT AND THE QUESTIONNAIRE ANNUALLY.

UNDER THE DIRECTION OF THE GENERAL COUNSEL, THE INVESTIGATIONS,
COMPLIANCE AND ETHICS DEPARTMENT STAFF COLLECT THE EXECUTED
QUESTIONNAIRE FORMS FROM THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS AND OTHER
OFFICERS AND KEY EMPLOYEES. THE INFORMATION DISCLOSED IN THE

QUESTIONNAIRE IS REVIEWED AND ACTUAL OR PERCEIVED CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
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ARE IDENTIFIED. THEY ARE DISCUSSED WITH THE GENERAL COUNSEL WHO

DETERMINES ANY NECESSARY REMEDIATION OPTIONS. DEPENDING ON THE MATTER,

THE GENERAL COUNSEL OR A STAFF MEMBER FROM THE INVESTIGATIONS, COMPLIANCE

AND ETHICS DEPARTMENT DISCUSSES THE CONFLICT AND REMEDIATION WITH THE

MEMBER OF THE EBOARD OR THE OTHER OFFICER OR KEY EMPLOYEE, AND IF

NECESSARY THE PRESIDENT AND CEO OR CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD. WHERE

APPROPRIATE, THE CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND REMEDIATION REGARDING A MEMBER

OF THE BOARD ARE INCLUDED IN THE MINUTES OF THE RELEVANT BOARD COMMITTEE

OR FULL BOARD MEETING.

THE QUESTIONNAIRE IS ALSO INTENDED TO MONITOR CONFLICTS OF INTEREST ON

AN ONGOING BASIS. MEMBERS OF THE BOARD AND OTHER OFFICERS AND KEY

EMPLOYEES ARE EXPLICITLY INSTRUCTED THAT THEY HAVE A CONTINUING DUTY

TO UPDATE THE QUESTIONNAIRE DURING THE COURSE OF THE YEAR TO REFLECT

CHANGES IN ANY BUSINESS, FINANCIAL OR PERSONAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.

THE SAME PROCESS OF REVIEW, DISCUSSION AND FOLLOW-UP ON CONFLICTS OF

INTEREST AND REMEDIATION WITH THE BOARD MEMBER OR OTHER OFFICER OR KEY

EMPLOYEE WOULD OCCUR WITH INTERIM DISCLOSURES.

LINE 15A AND 15B - THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF THE AMERICAN RED CROSS HAS

DELEGATED AUTHORITY TO THE COMPENSATION AND MANAGEMENT DEVELOPMENT

COMMITTEE (THE "COMMITTEE") OF THE BOARD TO (1) REVIEW THE COMPENSATION,

BENEFITS AND INCENTIVE PROGRAMS FOR THE CEOQ; (2) MAKE RECOMMENDATIONS TO

THE BOARD FOR THE CEOQO'S ANNUAL SALARY, BENEFITS AND INCENTIVE PROGRAM;

AND, (3) REVIEW AND MAKE DETERMINATIONS REGARDING THE COMPENSATION,
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BENEFITS, AND INCENTIVE PROGRAMS FOR OTHER SENIOR OFFICERS AND EXECUTIVES
OF THE AMERICAN RED CROSS. THE COMMITTEE IS COMPOSED ENTIRELY OF BOARD
MEMBERS WHO DO NOT HAVE ANY CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. ANNUALLY, THE
COMMITTEE REVIEWS AND APPROVES A LIST OF EXECUTIVES WHO ARE OR MIGHT BE
CONSIDERED "DISQUALIFIED PERSONS" PURSUANT TO INTERNAL REVENUE CODE
SECTION 4958. WITH RESPECT TO THOSE PERSONS, THE COMMITTEE CONDUCTS ITS
ANNUAL REVIEW OF THEIR TOTAL COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS BASED ON
COMPARABLE MARKET DATA. THE COMMITTEE RETAINS AN OUTSIDE, INDEPENDENT
COMPENSATION CONSULTANT TO PROVIDE MARKET DATA AND REASONABLENESS
OPINIONS FOR THE DESIGNATED EXECUTIVES AND IT RELIES ON SUCH MARKET DATA
AND REASONABLENESS OPINIONS IN APPROVING NEW SALARIES, BENEFITS AND
PAYMENT OF BONUSES OR INCENTIVES FOR THE DESIGNATED PERSONS. THE
COMMITTEE ALSO THEN DOCUMENTS ITS DECISIONS AS TO ANY CHANGES TO BE
IMPLEMENTED IN COMPENSATION OR BENEFITS FOR THE DESIGNATED PERSONS. THE
COMMITTEE UNDERTOOK THIS PROCESS FOR ALL THE OFFICERS AND KEY EMPLOYEES
REPORTED IN SCHEDULE J WHO ARE CONSIDERED "DISQUALIFIED PERSONS" PURSUANT

TO IRC SECTION 4958.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 19

THE AMERICAN RED CROSS MAKES ITS GOVERNING DOCUMENTS INCLUDING THE CODE
OF BUSINESS ETHICS AND CONDUCT, CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE, AND
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC ON THE

GOVERNANCE PAGE OF ITS WEBSITE, WWW.REDCROSS.ORG

FORM 990, PART XI, LINE 9

PRIMARILY, THIS AMOUNT REPRESENTS EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PENSION AND
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POST-RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN LOSS PER PROVISION OF ASC 715 (FORMER FASB

87 AND 106) IN THE AMOUNT OF -36,986,471.

FORM 990, PART VII, SECTION A, LINES 1A

LINE 1A - SHERRI BROWN, PRESIDENT, HUMANITARIAN SERVICES, RETIRED
EFFECTIVE 12/31/2018. HARVEY JOHNSON ASSUMED THE ROLE OF PRESIDENT,
HUMANITARIAN SERVICES EFFECTIVE 12/29/2018. FOR THE MAJORITY OF 2018, HE
SERVED AS THE SVP, DISASTER CYCLE SERVICES AND PAY REPORTED IN THE FORM

990 IS ASSOCIATED WITH HIS PRIOR ROLE.

ATTACHMENT 1

FORM 990, PART III, LINE 4D - OTHER PROGRAM SERVICES

—EESCRIPT;ng GRANTSW E§E§NSES A§EY§§HE‘
INTERNATIONAL RELIEF AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 35,775,355, 61,302,757.
COMMUNITY SERVICES 3,461,445. 24,672,466,
SERVICES TO THE ARMED FORCES 792,784. 55,973,610.

SEE SCHEDULE O FOR DESCRIPTIONS

TOTALS 40,029,584. 141,948,833.

ATTACHMENT 2

FORM 990, PART V, LINE 4B - FOREIGN COUNTRIES

VIETNAM

KENYA

HAITI
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ATTACHMENT 3

990, PART VII- COMPENSATION OF THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID IND. CONTRACTORS

NAME AND ADDRESS DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES COMPENSATION

MINDTREE LIMITED IT CONSULTING 10,337,9309.
25 INDEPENDENCE BLVD, SUITE 401
WARREN, NJ 07059

ONE & ALL PRINTING AND MAILING 10,368,713.

2 N LAKE SUITE 600
PASADENA, CA 91101

SERVICEMASTER BUILDING SERVICES €,878,565.

150 PEABODY PLACE
MEMPHIS, TN 38103

ADECCO EMPLOYMENT SERVICES INCORPORATED STAFFING 6,347,233.
10151 DEERWOOD BLDG. 200
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32256

WHELAN SECURITY LLC SECURITY SERVICE 6,298,7009.
4300 NORTHLAKE CT # 200
CHARLOTTE, NC 28216

JSA Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2018

8E 1228 1.000
06583L 2502 PAGE 72



£L HDVd

¢0G<C 1€8590

0004 20€138
vse
810z (066 wi04) ¥ 8inpeysyg "066 ULIOZ Joj SUOHONASU| BY) 89S ‘BDON JOV UCHONPaBY HioMmiaded 104
{2}
{9)
(3]
{v)
{€)
(&)
1)
ON S8,
Anus Anus (teX0)1L0g uonoas 1) (Ayunoo ubisloy Jo
pa|0JU0D . .
(ELXA)Z LS uonoas Builjonuod Joa.( snjejs Aieyd diiqng | uoioes spo) wex3 | alels) ajoiwiop jeben Annoe Aewig uoijeziuebio pajelal Jo NiJ pue ‘ssaippe ‘DweN
(8) ) (8) ») (2) (a) (e)
“Jeah xe) ay) Buunp suocgeziuebio Jdwexe-xe) psjejas 810w JO SUO 11124
pey } asnedsq ‘¢ aul| ‘Al Hed ‘066 W04 uo ,SaA, pasamsue uojeziueblo ayj i aja|dwo) "sucneziuebl( jdwexg-xe | pajejay JO Uonedyuap)
{g)
(s}
(2]
{g)
163)
¥/N|021$90LZT J2A ) dY HZILTANDHS 90002 20 'NOLONIHSYM 0€€ HLINS MN IHIYLS H Q0€ELT
ZOVPECT -V DT ANYAWOD SHTEVATIDHN DUy (M)
Ajjus {(Aunoo ubiauoy Jo
Buyilosuod J8uq S}o55€ JBBA-jO-pUT swioout (810 sjes) apolwop (eba Awijoe Aewiig Aujue papuebausip j0 (ajqeondde §f) NIJ pue ‘'SSaippe ‘swen
G) {9) {p) (2) (a) (e)
"€€ Ul ‘Al Med ‘066 Wio4 uo S8, pasemsue uojeziueblo ay) ji ayaidwo) 'sannug papiebaisi Jo uonesynuap| E
5099610-€5 SHHONYIHE NV SYHIJVYHD

isquinu uoieayuap; Jakoidwg

uoijdadsuj
oliand o3 uadn

8L0c

Ly00-S#SL 'ON GWO

LNHALILSNOD SLI ® SSO¥D dHY¥ TUYNOILYN NYOINHWY uoljeziuebio ay) jo awen

AIAIDS SNUBAIY |BULIBIY}

‘UOHBULIOJU] JS0IE| B} PUB SUOHDNIISUI 10} JEEULIOL/AOD SIf MMM 0} 09 Kinseos, o 1 nroOdRG

‘066 W04 03 yoey ¢

"LE 40 '9€ "qGE 'pE 'S dul ‘Al Lied 066 W04 LD ,SBA, palemsue uogeziuebio sy} 41 eja(dwos

sdiysisuped pejejaiun pue suoneziuebip pajejoy

50996T10-¢S

(066 wiog)
¥ 3INAIHOS

INHALILSNOD SLI ® SSO0¥D QHY TUYNOILUN NYOINHWY



YL HDYd

2052 TE€8SG90

000t 80€i38

vsr
8102 (066 wiod) Y sInpayog
{2)
{9}
()
X LS0¥L /N oa oY ¥INI 1ITdS 90002 O ‘NOLONIHSUYM MN °LIHHIS HLBT 1¢v
(¥5)1SMUL TYNLAIHEd (P)
X LSMAL ¥/N na OY MINI 1I7TdS§ 90002 DU ‘NOLONIHSYM MN ‘IITALS HILST T6d
(€2) LSOYL AANTVAEY ETGYLINVHD (§)
b4 LSNAL ¥/N oa OY MINI IITdS 90002 DU 'NOLONIHSYM MN ‘LHTILS HILST T€¥
(Z)aNDA FWOONI QE7100d (Z)
X 10006 00T Jy¥0D D ¥/N ag AONYINSNT ag  ‘NOLTIWVH 08ZZ WH XOH Od ‘HSNOH QNVIIHEWND
QLT ‘ALINWEANI NYWQEYOod (})
ON Wm>
AT {Anunos
pajlonuos - “ K B1a10} JO 91e1S )]
S CIAT] diysioumo | slosse Jeeh-jo-pus SWoIU| (1snay 4o ‘dios g *diod ) Anus ublaio)
uopoag  [obejuUBsIaY 10 aseys [B101 jO 9IBYS Alua jo adAy Buiiosuos Joeuiq | enonuop eba Awgjoe Atewiid uoneziuebio pajelds Jo NI pue ‘'ssalppe ‘awey
W W (8) 4) (o) (») (9 (a) (e)
Jeak Xe} au} mcr:n snly 10 :O_«m(_oeoo B Se pajesl) wCOzNN_:mm..o pejejal alowt 10 BUO pey it asneossq ‘¢ aul| e
,>. 1ed ‘066 ulio-4 U0 S8\, palomsue cosz_cmm..o syl § mzma woJg ysniy 1o :O_umhonuoo e se 8|(gexe} wco_..—wnmcwm._o poajejay Jo uoneoynuap) Al HEd
)
{9)
(s)
{v)
{e)
(@
(1)
ON |89A ON |S9A
(y1G- ZLg suoyoes (Aunoo
(G901 wiog) Japun xe} ubie.oy
Louped | -y ainpauds Jo E@muqu:wxm 10 2je)s)
diysiaumo Buibeuew | (Z X0Q Uj JUNOWR |  ¢sowsoe S)osse Jeahk awosut .oﬁm_mwmv_m._&coc_ Ajue sfowop uoyeziuebio pajejas
abejusdiad | Jo jeieusg 1901 - ABPOD amopcdoider | -J0-PUS JO BIBYS (€0} jo aieyg JUBLILOPaIY Buyjoluoo 10810 feboy Apagoe Asewiug 10 NI3 pue ‘ssaippe ‘swieN
L] n 0] (G} (8) » (o) [t (2 () (e)
1eah Xe} ayl mCt:v Q_cw._mctma e sk pajesal) wco_umNEmm_o pajejal 810w 10 auUo pey )i asnessaq
‘P€ Ul ‘Al HBd ‘066 WJO-4 UO ,SOA, pPalomsue uoneziuebio 8y} §i eyeidwon .Q_p_muwct&& e se ajqexe wco_“—NN_:mmuO pajejay JO uonjeosyuap| It Hed
A abeq

S50996T0-¢€S

INAOLILSNOD SLI ¥ SSO¥D d3Y TUYNOLLUN NYDINAWY

8102 (066 Wio4) ¥ 8|Npayos



SL dDYd

2082 71€8890

00074 60c438

810Z (066 Wwio4) ¥ 8NPaysS vsr
{9)
(s)
r)
()
HSYD | "€¥T‘0S¥‘1¥ s ALT ‘ALINWHANI NYWaavod (2)
HSYD "89% 990 °'1¢ p=! drd ‘ALINWHANI Nynayvog (i)
PAAJOAUI JUROWE (s-e) adA}
Buuiwualep Jo poylep PaAjoAL] JUNOWY uoioRSUBL| uoljezueblo pajelal jo swepn
() (9 (@) (e)
"Spioysasy) uooesued pue sdiysuojeres pasoaod Bulpnjoul ‘aul siy) 8)9|dWOD JSNW OUM UO UOIBWIO)U IO} SUOIIONIISU BY) 995 ,'SBA, St SAOQE BU} JO AUE 0] JOMSUE oL} H z
- st D e S e B i e e e T e - .Amvco_umN_Cmmho pajejas woly Ajadoad io Useo JO Jajsues) BYIO s
” i ......................._...................‘............vaco_umN_cmmpokum_mhou>tmaoha..Or_wmo»o._wuwcmbumzuo..
X _ur DI T P T T T T T T Y « s e s A a s oa e R - T T ) 104 vaCOZNN_CNm»O I >D U_NQ uCOEmm.:JQE_mm b
N Q—‘ e % s & ® x ®» B % 8 % 5 o e s e o L 4 = % 4 W 4 B M 2 W 3 s s a w4 4w & % & & % @ & w oW .wQWCOQXQ ;_Ow vaCO_HNN_CN@hO Umam—m._ Ou U_NQ uCQE@WLSﬂE_Qm Q
x Or 4 ® 8 ¢ ¥ ® 3 B & w & & 8 M & B B ¥ N R W & B & ¥ & & % 8 4 8 4 3 @ & & w v # w = 4 w5 & & a a2 & » . & W va:o_«mN_r—mmko Umﬂm_wb £“_; wwm>0—QEm U_ma bo mcwhmsw o
X upj Tt s s n et (s)uolieziuebio paless Yim Sjesse Jayio Jo ‘sisy Buliew ‘yuswdinba ‘saiioe; jo Buueys u
X Wi TrrroTrrrmrrrmrorm et (s)uojeziueBio pajeal Aq suonepaljos Bussieipuny O diYsIeqUIBW 10 SADIAISS JO SOUBWLIOLSY W
X ] T s e (sjuojjeziueBio pajefas 10) suoieyolos Buisiepun) 10 diysIeqIBW 10 $ADIAISS JO 9OUBWIOHAY |
X T 4 2 s = 4 % @ 8 & 8 8 @ % & % w w w b & s 3 2 s W & & & s 8 = 3 ® & & s 5 & & a2 2 s 4 & = & = @ vaco_me_Cm@LO U@«m~0._ EOL_M muwwmm .hwr_uo 10 .aCQEQ:JU@ .wm_u:_numw %O mmmmJ v_
MW -ﬁF a4 & % & 4 W W W & e 8w H ® w © w 4 & @ ¥ W ® & » M B & 6 B W & B ¥ W & ¥ ¥ & a o @ ¥ M % e & = % 'Amvcgwwsmcmmho Umwmnm.h ON mﬂmwmm ..—mcuo hc »“CmEQ_:Um .wm_“:_omh wo mwmmlu -q
Mm mF « & a = s “ 8 = 4 = & = & ¥ ¥ & & w® W w & 8 = = & # 4 % & w8 4 W & & B % ¥ R ® M s & & 84 % & 8- W B 4 #© w & = & & x @ W .AWVCO_MNN_CthO Umﬂm_wh :v_g mwmwwm %o mmcmzuxm _
= GE| T (Gioleae6I0 PoJEel WO SIOSSE 10 SSBUDING |
x mﬂ. 4 ® e & 4 @ & @& ® 8 ¥ S € 6 83 B s W 4 = W ¥ B S5 ¥ W 8 & B B T 8 W 4 w @ & % B 5 2 @ 4 ¥ & W B ¥ 5 ¥ & B & w - ¥ m & = w ¥ 4 s w s a -AmvcomumN_Cmmho Um“m—m;— OM Wmewm .%O m_mm m
e DRI T GionezeBIo Polelel WOl SPUSPING 3
o e R Tt (ueeBio poleiel A SOBIUBIENG UEO| 10 SUBOT 6
N v—‘ ® & W« W & 8 8 ® * a 5 a2 = ® % & 8 W 4 4 @ s & W W ® W W » B 5 8 8 & ®m ® W & & & 8 @ w w * & 2 & @ & W R 3 8 & AWVCO_me_CNm.hO Umam_mh ;_O% LO o~ wwmucmhm:m Cmo— ;—O mcmc'u v
% OF o s 5 s & 4 & & & & 8 ® « s e T “ s & s s a4 % W 4 oa s s w8 s ow o w “ s 6w e .vaCO_umchm@.ho Umum_m.— EO.C CO—uSD:uCOO _m«_QmO o JCNLQ .t_o 9
Mﬁ. DF 4 ® & ® &4 ¥ @ @ & 4 = A W B 4 & ® H» 4 a W k B & @ = & @& % ¥ & ® 4 @ 8w 3 4 & 4 & @ a « & ® B - ™ & W W & = vacomwmucmmho nmuw_mb 0“ comuzgmhﬂcou —mwmamo Lo »Hcmbm _whmw n
% NP ® B 3 s & = koA @ 8 3 x = a2 N % 8 & 8 6 % 6 © s w 5 w 4 4 T & = & uw & & w ¥ & & & a .>u_uC® UO:OSCOO e EO.C sl A>; 10 .mw_u_N\AO‘_ Q:v .mw_u_DCCN A__v ...—mm._wuc_ A_v %O un_wowm e
SNl SWed Ul pasi| suoleziueBbio paje|al 910W 10 BUO YIm suoijoesues) Bumoljo} ay) Jo Aue uj sbebua uoneziueblio ay) pip ‘Jeah xey ayj Buung L
ON |S8A "BINPBYDS SILY JO Al 0 ‘fif 'i| s1ied ul palsyi st Aljus Aue ji | auy slo|dwoy) :8joN
"9€ 10 'qS¢E 'PE dul| ‘Al Hed ‘066 W04 uo SaA, pasemsue uoneziuebio sy i ejoidwo) ‘suoneziuebip pajeiay UM suoloesue.l | E
¢ abed 8102 (066 Wiod) ¥ 8INpaysg

S099610-¢S

LINHALILSNOD SLI ® SSO¥D dHY TYNOILUN NYDINHIWY



9L HDYJ

8102 (066 uuo4) ¥ ainpayog

20&c¢ TE£8990

000°4 01€438
st

{91}

{s1)

{#1)

{c1)

(z1)

(i11)

{ot)

(6)

(s}

()

(o)

()

()

()

2}

()

diysiaumo
sbejuasied
()

ON | S8A

lauped
Buibeuew
i0 {eIBues)
(]

(5901 wuod)
13 3INpaYdS jo
0z x0q ut jJunowe
18N - A 8p00
(]

ON | seA

suoneooye
sjeuonsodosdsig

(W

S}asse
1eak-jo-pus
jo aleys
(6)

BUIOOU jeY0}
o 2teyg
G)

ON | SoA

isuoneziueBio
€)X2)08
uooes

siauped jje ary

(e)

(PLG-ZLS suondes
Jepun xe} woy
papnoxs ‘pajejeiun
‘pajelad) swiooul
BUIOPaIg
P}

(Anunos
ubissof jo ajelrs)
ajonuop [ebay

(3)

Awoe Aewud

(a)

Anua o NI pue 'ssaippe ‘swen

(e)

‘sdiysseulsed JUSWISSAUL UIBLISD J0j UOISN|OXa Buipiebal suononsul 8aS “uoneziuebio pale|al e J0U Sem Jey) (Bnuaaal ssoib 1o
S}asse (.10} Aq painseawl) SAIAIOE S} JO Judiad BAY LBy} BJ0W PBjONPUOd uoneziuebio ayy yaym yBnoy) diysiauped e se paxe) ANUS YOBa o) UOHBLLIOJ! BUIMO}|0) B} apIADld

"LE Ul ‘Al Hed ‘066 W0 U0 SBA, paiamsue uoleziuebio sy) ji sja|dwo) ‘diysisupied e se ajqexe] suopeziuebig pajejasun  IHEICH)

¥ abeq

9099610-t9

INIOALILSNOD SLI ¥ SSOUD dHd TUNOILUN NUYDINAWY

8102 (066 Wiod) ¥ 8|npayos



AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS & ITS CONSTITUENT 53-0196605

Schedule R (Form 990) 2018 Page 5

g YL Supplemental Information
Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule R. See instructions.

Schedule R (Form 990) 2018

8E1510 1.000
06583L 2502 PAGE 77



CONTENTS

Section 1
Section 2
Section 3
Section 4
Section §
Section 6
Section 7
Section 8
Section 9
Section 10
Section 11
Section 12
Section 13

May 2007

Organization

Purposes

Membership and chapters
Board of Governors

Powers

Emblem, badge, and brassard

Annual meeting

Buildings

Endowment fund

Annual report and audit

Authority of the Comptroller General of the United States
Office of the Ombudsman

Reservation of right to amend or repeal

Related Provisions of the United States Criminal Code

Use of The American National Red Cross in Aid of the Armed Forces

Page 1

36 U.S.C. §§300101-300113 recodified 2007 Congressional Charter of The American National Red Cross



CONGRESSIONAL CHARTER OF THE
AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS

(a) FEDERAL CHARTER. The American National Red Cross (in this chapter, the "corporation") is a
Federally chartered instrumentality of the United States and a body corporate and politic in the District of

Columbia.

(b) NAME. The name of the corporation is "The American National Red Cross". The corporation may
conduct its business and affairs, and otherwise hold itself out, as the ‘American Red Cross’ in any jurisdiction.

(c) PERPETUAL EXISTENCE. Except as otherwise provided, the corporation has perpetual existence.

The purposes of the corporation are:

(1) to provide volunteer aid in time of war to the sick and wounded of the armed forces, in
accordance with the spirit and conditions of:

(A) the conference of Geneva of October, 1863;

(B) the treaties of the Red Cross, or the treaties of Geneva, of August 22, 1864, July 27,
1929, and August 12, 1949, to which the United States of America has given its adhesion; and

(C) any other treaty, convention, or protocol similar in purpose to which the United States of
America has given or may give its adhesion;

(2) in carrying out the purposes described in clause (1) of this section, to perform all the duties
devolved on a national society by each nation that has acceded to any of those treaties, conventions, or protocols;

(3) to act in matters of voluntary relief and in accordance with the military authorities as a medium
of communication between the people of the United States and the armed forces of the United States and to act in
those matters between similar national societies of governments of other countries through the International
Committee of the Red Cross and the Government, the people, and the armed forces of the United States;
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(4) to carry out a system of national and international relief in time of peace, and apply that system in
mitigating the suffering caused by pestilence, famine, fire, floods, and other great national calamities, and to devise
and carry out measures for preventing those calamities; and

(5) to conduct other activities consistent with the foregoing purposes.

(a) MEMBERSHIP. Membership in the corporation is open to all the people of the United States and its
territories and possessions, on payment of an amount specified, or as otherwise provided, in the bylaws.

(b) CHAPTERS.

(1) The chapters of the corporation are the local units of the corporation. The corporation shall
prescribe policies and regulations related to:

(A) granting charters to the chapters and revoking those charters;
(B) territorial jurisdiction of the chapters;
(C) the relationship of the chapters to the corporation; and
(D) compliance by the chapters with the policies and regulations of the corporation.
(2) The policies and regulations shall require that each chapter adhere to the democratic principles of

election specified in the bylaws in electing the governing body of the chapter and selecting delegates to the annual
meeting of the corporation.

(a) BOARD OF GOVERNORS--

(1) IN GENERAL.—The board of governors is the governing body of the corporation with all
powers of governing and directing, and of overseeing the management of the business and affairs of, the
corporation.

(2) NUMBER.-—The board of governors shall fix by resolution, from time to time, the number of
members constituting the entire board of governors, provided that—

(A) as of March 31, 2009, and thereafter, there shall be no fewer than 12 and no more than 25
members; and
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(B) as of March 31, 2012, and thereafter, there shall be no fewer than 12 and no more than 20
members constituting the entire board. Procedures to implement the preceding sentence shall be provided in the
bylaws.

(3) APPOINTMENT .—The governors shall be appointed or elected in the following manner:
(A) CHAIRMAN.—

(1) IN GENERAL.—The board of governors, in accordance with procedures provided
in the bylaws, shall recommend to the President an individual to serve as chairman of the board of governors. If
such recommendation is approved by the President, the President shall appoint such individual to serve as chairman
of the board of governors.

(i1)) VACANCIES.—Vacancies in the office of the chairman, including vacancies
resulting from the resignation, death, or removal by the President of the chairman, shall be filled in the same
manner described in clause (i)

(ii1) DUTIES.—the chairman shall be a member of the board of governors and, when
present, shall preside at meetings of the board of governors and shall have such other duties and responsibilities as
may be provided in the bylaws or a resolution of the board of governors.

(B) OTHER MEMBERS.—

(1) IN GENERAL.—Members of the board of governors other than the chairman shall
be elected at the annual meeting of the corporation in accordance with such procedures as may be provided in the
bylaws.

(i1) VACANCIES.—Vacancies in any such elected board position and in any newly
created board position may be filled by a vote of the remaining members of the board of governors in accordance
with such procedures as may be provided in the bylaws.

(b) TERMS OF OFFICE.—

(1) IN GENERAL.—The term of office of each member of the board of governors shall be 3 years,
except that—

(A) the board of governors may provide under the bylaws that the terms of office of members
of the board of governors elected to the board of governors before March 31, 2012, may be less than 3 years in
order to implement the provisions of subparagraphs (A) and (B) of subsection (a)(2); and

(B) any member of the board of governors elected by the board to fill a vacancy in a board
position arising before the expiration of its term may, as determined by the board, serve for the remainder of that
term or until the next annual meeting of the corporation.

(2) STAGGERED TERMS.—The terms of office of members of the board of governors (other than
the chairman) shall be staggered such that, by March 31, 2012, and thereafter, 1/3 of the entire board (or as near to
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1/3 as practicable) shall be elected at each successive annual meeting of the corporation with the term of office of
each member of the board of governors elected at an annual meeting expiring at the third annual meeting following
the annual meeting at which such member was elected.

(3) TERM LIMITS.—No person may serve as a member of the board of governors for more than
such number of terms of office or years as may be provided in the bylaws.

(c) COMMITTEES AND OFFICERS.—The board—

(1) may appoint, from its own members, an executive committee to exercise such powers of the
board when the board is not in session as may be provided in the bylaws;

(2) may appoint such other committees or advisory councils with such powers as may be provided in
the bylaws or a resolution of the board of governors;

(3) shall appoint such officers of the corporation, including a chief executive officer, with such
duties, responsibilities, and terms of office as may be provided in the bylaws or a resolution of the board of
governors; and

(4) may remove members of the board of governors (other than the chairman), officers, and
employees under such procedures as may be provided in the bylaws or a resolution of the board of governors.

(d) ADVISORY COUNCIL.—
(1) ESTABLISHMENT .—There shall be an advisory council to the board of governors.
(2) MEMBERSHIP; APPOINTMENT BY PRESIDENT.—

(A) IN GENERAL.—The advisory council shall be composed of no fewer than 8 and no
more than 10 members, each of whom shall be appointed by the President from principal officers of the executive
departments and senior officers of the Armed Forces whose positions and interests qualify them to contribute to
carrying out the programs and purposes of the corporation.

(B) MEMBERS FROM THE ARMED FORCES.—At least 1, but not more than 3, of the
members of the advisory council shall be selected from the Armed Forces.

(3) DUTIES.—The advisory council shall advise, report directly to, and meet, at least 1 time per year
with the board of governors, and shall have such name, functions and be subject to such procedures as may be
provided in the bylaws.

(¢) ACTION WITHOUT MEETING.—Any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the
board of governors or of any committee thereof may be taken without a meeting if all members of the board or
committee, as the case may be, consent thereto in writing, or by electronic transmission and the writing or writings
or electronic transmission or transmissions are filed with the minutes of proceedings of the board or committee.
Such filing shall be in paper form if the minutes are maintained in paper form and shall be in electronic form if the
minutes are maintained in electronic form.
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(f) VOTING BY PROXY.—

(1) IN GENERAL.—Voting by proxy is not allowed at any meeting of the board, at the annual
meeting, or at any meeting of a chapter.

(2) EXCEPTION.—The board may allow the election of governors by proxy during any emergency.
(g BYLAWS.—
(1) IN GENERAL.—The board of governors may—
(A) at any time adopt bylaws; and
(B) at any time adopt bylaws to be effective only in an emergency.
(2) EMERGENCY BYLAWS.—Any bylaws adopted pursuant to paragraph (1)(B) may provide
special procedures necessary for managing the corporation during the emergency. All provisions of the regular
bylaws consistent with the emergency bylaws remain effective during the emergency.

(h) DEFINITIONS.—For purposes of this section—

(1) the term ‘entire board’ means the total number of members of the board of governors that the
corporation would have if there were no vacancies; and

(2) the term ‘emergency’ shall have such meaning as may be provided in the bylaws.

(a) GENERAL. The Corporation may:
(1) adopt policies and regulations;
(2) adopt, alter and destroy a seal;
(3) own and dispose of property to carry out the purposes of the corporation;
(4) accept gifts, devises, and bequests of property to carry out the purposes of the corporation;

(5) sue and be sued in courts of law and equity, State or Federal, within the jurisdiction of the United
States; and

(6) do any other act necessary to carry out this chapter and promote the purposes of the corporation.
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(b) DESIGNATION. The corporation is designated as the organization which is authorized to act in matters
of relief under the treaties of Geneva, August 22, 1864, July 27, 1929, and August 12, 1949.

(a) EMBLEM AND BADGE. In carrying out its purposes under this chapter, the corporation may have and
use, as an emblem and badge, a Greek red cross on a white ground, as described in the treaties of Geneva, August
22, 1864, July 27, 1929, and August 12, 1949, and adopted by the nations acceding to those treaties.

(b) DELIVERY OF BRASSARD. In accordance with those treaties, the delivery of the brassard allowed for
individuals neutralized in time of war shall be left to military authority.

(a) IN GENERAL.—The annual meeting of the corporation is the annual meeting of delegates of the
chapters.

(b) TIME OF MEETING.—The annual meeting shall be held as determined by the board of governors.

(¢) PLACE OF MEETING.—The board of governors is authorized to determine that the annual meeting
shall not be held at any place, but may instead be held solely by means of remote communication subject to such
procedures as are provided in the bylaws.

(d) VOTING.—

(1) IN GENERAL.—In matters requiring a vote at the annual meeting, each chapter is entitled to at
least 1 vote, and voting on all matters may be conducted by mail, telephone, telegram, cablegram, electronic mail,
or any other means of electronic or telephone transmission, provided that the person voting shall state, or submit
information from which it can be determined, that the method of voting chosen was authorized by such person.

(2) ESTABLISHMENT OF NUMBER OF VOTES.—

(A) IN GENERAL.—The board of governors shall determine on an equitable basis the
number of votes that each chapter is entitled to cast, taking into consideration the size of the membership of the
chapters, the populations served by the chapters, and such other factors as may be determined by the board.

(B) PERIODIC REVIEW.—The board of governors shall review the allocation of votes at
least every 5 years.
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(a) OWNERSHIP. The United States Government shall retain ownership of the corporation’s permanent
headquarters, comprised of buildings erected on square 172 in the District of Columbia, including:

(1) the memorial building to commemorate the service and sacrifice of the women of the United
States, North and South, during the Civil War, erected for the use of the corporation;

(2) the memorial building to commemorate the service and sacrifice of the patriotic women of the
United States, its territories and possessions, and the District of Columbia during World War 1, erected for the use
of the corporation; and

(3) the permanent building erected for the use of the corporation in connection with its work in
cooperation with the Government.

(b) MAINTENANCE AND EXPENSES. Those buildings shall remain under the supervision of the
Administrator of General Services. However, the corporation shall care for and maintain the buildings without
expense to the Government.

The endowment fund of the corporation shall be kept and invested under the management and control of a board of
trustees elected by the board of governors. The corporation shall prescribe policies and regulations on terms and
tenure of office, accountability, and expenses of the board of trustees.

(a) SUBMISSION OF REPORT.—As soon as practicable after the end of the corporation’s fiscal year,
which may be changed from time to time by the board of governors, the corporation shall submit a report to the
Secretary of Defense on the activities of the corporation during such fiscal year, including a complete, itemized
report of all receipts and expenditures.

(b) AUDITING OF REPORT AND SUBMISSION TO CONGRESS. The Secretary shall audit the report
and submit a copy of the audited report to Congress.

(c) PAYMENT OF AUDIT EXPENSES. The corporation shall reimburse the Secretary each year for
auditing its accounts. The amount paid shall be deposited in the Treasury of the United States as a miscellaneous
receipt.
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The Comptroller General of the United States is authorized to review the corporation’s involvement in any Federal
program or activity the Government carries out under law.

(a) ESTABLISHMENT.—The corporation shall establish an Office of the Ombudsman with such duties and
responsibilities as may be provided in the bylaws or a resolution of the board of governors.

(b) REPORT.—
(1) IN GENERAL.—The Office of the Ombudsman shall submit annually to the appropriate
Congressional committees a report concerning any trends and systemic matters that the Office of the Ombudsman

has identified as confronting the corporation.

(2) APPROPRIATE CONGRESSIONAL COMMITTEES.—For purposes of paragraph (1), the
appropriate Congressional committees are the following committees of Congress:

(A) SENATE COMMITTEES.—The appropriate Congressional committees of the Senate
are—

(i) the Committee on Finance;

(i1) the Committee on Foreign Relations;

(i) the Committee on Health, Education, Labor, and Pensions;

(iv) the Committee on Homeland Security and Governmental Affairs; and
(v) the Committee on the Judiciary.

(B) HOUSE COMMITTEES.—The appropriate Congressional committees of the House of
Representatives are—

(i) the Committee on Energy and Commerce;
(i) the Committee on Foreign Affairs;

(1ii) the Committee on Homeland Security;

May 2007 Page 9
36 U.S.C. §§300101-300113 recodified 2007 Congressional Charter of The American National Red Cross



(iv) the Committee on the Judiciary; and

(v) the Committee on Ways and Means.””’.

Congress reserves the right to amend or repeal the provisions of this chapter.

[The Act approved January 5, 1905 (33 Stat. 599), as amended by the Acts approved June 23, 1910 (36 Stat. 604),
December 10, 1912 (37 Stat. 647), February 27, 1917 (39 Stat. 946), March 3, 1921 (41 Stat. 1354), June 7, 1924
(43 Stat. 665), February 7, 1930 (46 Stat. 66), May 8, 1947 (61 Stat. 80), June 25, 1948 (62 Stat. 862), July 17,
1953 (67 Stat. 179), August 12, 1998 (112 Stat. 1494.), and May 11, 2007.]
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Related Provisions of the United States Criminal Code

Whoever wears or displays the sign of the Red Cross or any insignia colored in imitation thereof for the fraudulent
purpose of inducing the belief that he is a member of or an agent for the American National Red Cross; or

Whoever, whether a corporation, association, or person, other than the American National Red Cross and its duly
authorized employees and agents and the sanitary and hospital authorities of the armed forces of the United States,
uses the emblem of the Greek red cross on a white ground, or any sign or insignia made or colored in imitation
thereof or the words "Red Cross" or "Geneva Cross" or any combination of these words—

Shall be fined not more than $250 or imprisoned not more than six months, or both.

This section shall not make unlawful the use of any such emblem, sign, insignia, or words which was lawful on the
date of enactment of this title. [Sec. 706, Title 18, U.S.C.]

Whoever, within the United States, falsely or fraudulently holds himself out as or represents or pretends himself to
be a member of or an agent for the American National Red Cross for the purpose of soliciting, collecting, or
receiving money or material, shall be fined not more than $500 or imprisoned not more than one year, or both. [Sec.
917, Title 18, U.S.C.]

Use of the American National Red Cross in Aid of the Armed Forces

(a) Whenever the President finds it necessary, he may accept the cooperation and assistance of the American
National Red Cross, and employ it under the armed forces under regulations to be prescribed by the Secretary of
Defense.

(b) Personnel of the American National Red Cross who are performing duties in connection with its
cooperation and assistance under subsection (a) may be furnished—

(1) transportation, at the expense of the United States, while traveling to and from, and while
performing, those duties, in the same manner as civilian employees of the armed forces;

(2) meals and quarters, at their expense or at the expense of the American National Red Cross,
except that where civilian employees of the armed forces are quartered without charge, employees of the American
National Red Cross may also be quartered without charge; and

(3) available office space, warehousing, wharfage, and means of communication, without charge.

(c) No fee may be charged for a passport issued to an employee of the American National Red Cross for
travel outside the United States to assume or perform duties under this section.

(d) Supplies of the American National Red Cross, including gifts for the use of the armed forces, may be
transported at the expense of the United States, if it is determined under regulations prescribed under subsection (a)
that they are necessary to the cooperation and assistance accepted under this section.

(e) For the purposes of this section, employees of the American National Red Cross may not be considered
as employees of the United States. [Sec. 2602, Title 10, U.S.C.]

Note: As contemplated by the above-quoted statutes, the assistance of the American National Red Cross was
tendered to and formally accepted by the President of the United States as of July 17, 1953.
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KY REGION/LOUISVILLE AREA CHAPTER

Madeline Abramson
(Tiffany Circle Chair)

44 Eastover Court
Louisville, KY 40206
Phone: 897-6965
mabramsond4@gmail.com
LIFE MEMBER

Robert Adelberg

94 Valley Road

Louisville, KY 40204-1594
Phone: (502) 451-1639
Cell: (502) 552-9372
rpadelberg@aol.com
LIFE MEMBER

Marcia Brey

{Chair)

Lean Enterprise Leader

GE Appliances, a Haier Company
APS5-1S Mail Room

Louisville, KY 40225

Work: (502) 452-3145

Cell: (502) 797-5724
marcia.brey@geappliances.com

Curtis Clark

V.P. of Transportation Technology
UPS Air Group

1400 N. Hurstbourne Pkwy
Louisville, KY 40223

Work: (502) 329-6273

Cell: (404) 625-2123
curtisclark@ups.com

1% term expires 6/30/2021

Pamela Conniff

For Mail Needs:

85 Avenue de la Mer, Apt. 106
Palm Coast, FL 32137

(502) 773-2316
pamela.conniff@gmail.com
Oldham County Chair

Revised 06.16.20

AMERICAN RED CROSS
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(July 1, 2020 — June 30, 2021)

Jennifer Cooper

V.P., Business Development

First Harrison Bank

4303 Charlestown Crossing

New Albany, IN 47150

Office: (812) 981-6265

Cell: (502) 594-8887
icooper@firstharrison.com

Clark County Board Representative

Tom Cottingham
701 Sunnyside Dr
Louisville, KY 40206
Cell: (502) 419-3061

jthomascottingham@gmail.com
1% term expires 6/30/2021

Saundra Gibson

Business & Community Partnership
Administrator

Metropolitan Sewer District

700 West Liberty Street

Louisville, KY 40203

Office: (502) 540-6352
saundra.gibson@louisvillemsd.org
2" term expires 6/30/2022

Jill Howard

P.O. Box 388

Buckner, Kentucky 40010
Home: (502) 241-1593
Cell: (502) 558-9478
bubbud65@gmail.com

1% term expires 6/30/2023

William G. Howard

CEO and Founder

Fastline Publications

4900 Fox Run Road

Buckner, Kentucky 40014
Phone: 222-8344 FAX: 222-4505
bhoward@fastline.com

LIFE MEMBER




Dr. Shirl Johnson

4417 Rivanna Dr
Louisville, KY 40299

Cell: 502-494-2700
Johnsonshirl28@gmail.com

1%t term expires 06/30/2022

Ainsley Jones

2519 Hawthorne Avenue
Louisville, KY 40205
Phone: (502) 815-3307
Cell: (502) 802-6694
ainsley.jones@gmail.com
2" term expires 6/30/2021

Joseph King

Senior Vice President
Baird

6337 Moonseed St
Prospect, KY 40059
Work: 502-897-5600
Cell: 502-551-9474
JIking55@gmail.com

1 term expires 6/30/2022

Shawn Malone

1908 Rivers Landing Dr
Prospect, KY 40059
502-262-5982
maloneshawnp@gmail.com
1! term expires 06/30/2021

Lance Mann

{(Biomed Committee Chair)
Dean Dorton Allen Ford
500 W. Jefferson Street
Louisville, KY 40202
Phone: (770) 605-8467
Imann@deandorton.com
2" term expires 6/30/2021

Mary McKinley
CPA, FHFMA; Partner
BKD

600 N. Hurstbourne Pkwy, Ste 350

Louisville, KY 40222
Work: 502-581-0435
Cell: 502-963-0854

Fax: 502-581-0723
mmckinleva@bkd.com

1% term expires 6/30/2022

Christy Moreno

President & General Manager
WHAS 11

12812 Deer Cross Dr
Prospect, KY 40059
502-709-2358
cmoreno@whasl1.com

1% term expires 06/30/2023

Regan Nichols

EVP, Scoppechio

154 Wiltshire Ave
Louisville, KY 40207

Cell: 859-333-3281
reganwnichols@gmail.com
1% term expires 06/30/2023

Joshua O’Bryan

Frost Brown Todd

400 West Market St, Ste 3200
Louisville, KY 40202

Work: 502-568-0218

Cell: 502-767-7483

Fax: 502-581-1087
jobrvan@fbtlaw.com

1% term expires 06/30/2022

Dr. George M. Pantalos
University of Louisville

302 East Muhammad Ali Blvd.
Louisville, KY 40202

Phone: (502) 852-4345

Fax: (502) 852-7195
george.pantalos@louisville.edu
gmpant02@louisville.edu

2" term expires 6/30/2021




Rick Pogrotsky

WesBanco Bank, Inc

971 St. Andrews Way

Frankfort, KY 40601

Work Phone: (502) 227-1685

Cell Phone: (502) 418-5268
Rick.pogrotsky@wesbanco.com
Franklin County Board Representative

Corden L. Porter

(Diversity & Inclusion Committee Chair)
Environmental Perf. & Safety Mgr.
Brown-Forman Corporation

850 Dixie Highway

Louisville, KY 40210

Phone: (502) 774-7624

Business Cell: (502) 544-6970
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KPMG LLP

Suite 500

8350 Broad Street
Mclean, VA 22102

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Governors
The American National Red Cross:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The American National Red Cross
(the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and
the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash fiows for the year then ended,
and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financlal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the organization’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of The American National Red Cross as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in their net
assets and their cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

hternational )
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Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in note 1(q) to the consolidated financial statements, in 2019 The American National Red Cross
adopted new accounting guidance, Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-14, Not for Profit Entities
(Topic 958) — Presentation of Financial Statements for Not for Profit Entities, ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Topic 608), and ASU No. 2018-08, Not-for Profit Entities (Topic 958): Clarifying the
Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Coniributions Made. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter,

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited The American National Red Cross’ 2018 consolidated financial statements, and we
expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited consolidated financial statements in our report dated
October 24, 2018. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2018 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial
statements from which it has been derived before the adjustments to adopt ASU No. 2016-14 . As part of our
audit of the 2019 consolidated financial statements, we also audited the adjustments described in note 1(q) that
were applied to adopt ASU No. 2016-14 retrospectively in the 2018 consolidated financial statements. In our
opinion, such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied.

P P

MclLean, Virginia
October 23, 2019




THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2019
(With comparative information as of June 30, 2018)

(in thousands)

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $
Investments (note 4)
Trade receivables, including grants, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $2,364
in 2019 and $1,564 in 2018 (note 11)
Contributions receivable (note 2)
Inventories, net of allowance for obsolescence of $178 in 2018 and $141 in 2018
Other current assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Investments {note 4)
Contributions receivable (note 2}
Land, buildings, and other property, net (note 3)
Assets held for sale, net (note 3)
Other assets (note 9)

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets $
Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $
Current portion of debt {note 5)
Postretirement benefits (note 10)
Other current liabilities (notes 9 and 11)

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabifities:
Debt (note 5)
Pension and postretirement benefits {note 10}
Other liabilities (notes 5 and 9)

Total noncurrent fiabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets (notes 7 and 8):
Without donor restrictions net assets (deficit)
With donor restrictions net assets

Total net assets
Commitments and contingencies (notes 4, 5, 6, 10, 11)
Total liabilities and net assets $

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2019 2018
101,101 129,488
460,187 645,064
196,172 204,631

31,948 40,150
36.800 38,826
49,516 58,799
877,724 1,116,958
1,067,866 1,022,435
14,689 8,170
798,466 828,445
36,740 12,081
265,419 251,158
2,172,180 2,123,289
3,049,804 3,240,247
272,134 286,654
43,888 40,452
3.824 3,730
133,210 136,924
453,056 467,760
§37.413 571,260
495,161 492,884
122,110 126,191
1,154,684 1,180,335
1,607,740 1,658,085
(6.469) (46,450)
1,447,633 1,628,602
1,442,164 1,582,152
3,049,904 3,240,247




THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS
Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2019
{With summarized Information for the year ended June 30, 2018)

(in thousands)

Without With
donor donor Totals
restrictions restrictions 2019 2018
Operating revenues and gains:
Contributions:
Corporate, foundation and individual giving $ 188,396 411,130 500,526 1,237,162
United Way and other federated 9,153 32,387 41,540 50,412
Contracts, including federal government 1,822 48,770 51,692 58,551
Legacies and bequests 65,988 32,211 98,199 97,066
Services and materials 28,132 41,911 70,043 111,680
Products and services:
Biomedical Services 1,741,302 e 1,741,302 1,714,669
Program materiais 142,379 e 142,378 134,666
Investment return, net (note 4) 15,147 38,088 53,235 191,785
Other revenues 70,601 374 70,975 69,880
Net assets released from restrictions 811,845 811,845) — —_
Total operating revenues and gains 3,074,765 (206,974) 2,868,791 3,665,871
Operating expenses:
Program services:
Services to the Armed Forces 73,838 e 73,838 69,319
Biomedical Services 1,740,715 — 1,740,715 1,806,665
Community Services 24,672 — 24672 22,416
Domestic Disaster Services 667,355 — 667,355 766,800
Training Services 144,066 — 144,066 135,998
International Relief and Development Services 61,304 — 61,304 87,507
Total program services 2,711,950 — 2,711,850 2,888,705
Supporting services:
Fundraising 177,041 — 177,041 198,541
Management and general 103,527 — 103,527 113,608
Total supporting services 280,568 e 280,568 312,149
Total operating expenses 2,992,518 — 2,992,518 3,200,854
Change in net assets from operations 82,247 {205,974) (123.727) 465,017
Nonoperating investment return, net {note 4) (4,280) 25,005 20,725 (140,849)
Pension-related changes other than net periodic
Benefit cost {note 10} (36,986) — (36,986 62,061
Change in net asseis 40,981 (180,968) {139,988) 386,229
Net assets, beginning of year {46,450 1,628,602 1,582,152 1,195,923
Net assets, end of year $ (5,469} 1,447 633 1,442,164 1,682,152

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2019
(With comparative information for the year ended June 30, 2018)

{In thousands)

2018 2018
Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets 5 {139,988) 386,229
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets 10 net cash (used in)
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 72,370 64,785
Provision for doubtful accounts receivable 2,085 {1,539)
Provision for obsolete inventories 37 {13}
Net gain on sales of property (12,655) {13,534)
Net investment returns and derivatives gains (38,275) (52,899)
Pension and postretirement-related changes other than net
periodic benefit costs 36,886 (62,061)
Permanently restricted contributions (19,975) (23,501)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables 9,047 30,827
Inveniories {(11) 1,885
Other assets §,022 {14,869)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (14,520) 48,146
COther liabilities (6,239) (18,370}
Pension and postretirement benefits {34,615) (225,023)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (141,721) 120,973
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property {70,745) (72,737
Proceeds from sales of property 11,700 8,839
Proceeds from properties held for sale 18,876 42,766
Purchases of investments {608,128) {420,605)
Proceeds from sales of investments 786,293 338,636
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 136,996 (103,201)
Cash flows from financing aclivities:
Permanently restricted contributions 19,975 23,501
Proceeds from borrowings e 104,845
Repayments of debt (43,637) (138,745)
Net cash used in financing activities (23,662) {10,399)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (28,387} 7,373
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 129,488 122,115
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 101,101 128,488
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest $ 30,365 29,695

Seae accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2018
(With summarized information for the year ended June 30, 2018)

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Organization and Basis of Presentation

The American National Red Cross (the Organization) was established by an Act of the United States
Congress on January 5, 1805 for the primary purposes of furnishing volunteer aid to the sick and
wounded of the Armed Forces in time of war and to carry on a system of national and international
relief in ime of peace to mitigate the suffering caused by fire, famine, floods, and other great natural
calamities. The mission of the Organization has expanded since that time to help people prevent,
prepare for, and respond fo emergencies.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements present the consolidated financial position and
changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows of the Organization. The Organization has
national and intemational programs that are conducted by its headquarters, biomedical services, and
chapters. Also included in the consolidated financial statements are the net assets and operations of
Boardman Indemnity Ltd., a 100% owned captive insurance subsidiary and ARC Receivables
Company, LLC, a wholly owned bankruptcy-remote special purpose entity. All significant
intraorganizational accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Program activities include services to the Armed Forces, biomedical services, community services,
disaster services, training services, and international relief and development services. Biomedical
services include activities associated with the collection, processing, testing, and distribution of whole
blood and components at 36 local blood services region operations, a biomedical research facility, and
related national support functions.

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of
donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, the net assets of the Organization and changes therein are
classified and reported as follows:

Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets that are not subject to any donor-imposed stipulations.

With Donor Restrictions ~ Net assets subject o donor-imposed restrictions on their use that may
be met either by actions of the Organization or the passage of time or other legal restrictions
requiring that the principal be maintained permanently by the Organization. Generally, the donors
permit the Organization to use all or part of the income eamed for either general or donor-specified
purposes.

(b) Measure of Operations

The Organization's measure of operations as presented in the consolidated statement of activities
includes operating revenue from contributions, product and services, contracts, investment retums
made available for current use, and other revenues. The measure of operations includes support for
operating activities from both donor-restricted and without donor restrictions sources. Nonoperating
activities primarily include pension-related gains other than net periodic benefit cost, changes in the fair
value of investments.

7 (Continued)



(c)

(d)

(e

®

(g}

THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2018
{With summarized information for the year ended June 30, 2018)

Summarized comparative information

The consolidated financial statements are presented with certain prior year summarized comparative
information. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity
with U.S, generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the Organization’s consolidated financial statements for the vear ended June 30, 2018
from which the summarized information was derived.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assurptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and labilities in the financial statements. Estimates and assumptions may
also affect disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses. Actual results could differ from management’s estimates.

Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of

three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist of money market mutusl funds
and overnight investments of approximately $91 million and $121 million as of June 30, 2018 and 2018,
respectively.

investments

Investments are reported at fair value except for certain alternative investment funds that, as a practical
expedient, are reported at estimated fair value utilizing net asset values (NAVs). Net asset value, in
some instances may not equal the fair value. The Organization does not intend to sell any of the funds
at an amount different from net asset value per share at June 30, 2019. The Organization reviews and
evaluates the net asset values provided by the general partners and fund managers and agrees with
the valuation methods and assumptions used in determining net asset values of these funds.

investment income classified as operating revenue consists of interest and dividend income on
investmenis and spending approved for use in operations (note 4). All other realized and unrealized
gains or losses are classified as nonoperating activities and are available to support operations in
future years and to offset potential market declines.

Investmenis classified as current investments made by the Organization are expected to be converted
into cash within one year.

Investment management fees are netted against investment returns.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Organization makes use of derivative financial instruments in order to take exposure or mitigate
certain risks. Derivative financial instruments are recorded at fair value (note 4). Derivatives in an asset
and liability position are offset against each other and reported net in investrnents in the statement of
financial position.

8 {Continued)



THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019
(With summarized information for the year ended June 30, 2018)

(h) Endowment Fund

(i)

1)

The Organization has maintained a national endowment fund since 1905. From 1910 until June 30,
2015, any gift to the American Red Cross National Headquarters from a will, frust, or similar instrument
that did not direct the use of the funds was deposited into the endowment fund, recorded as net assets
with donor restrictions to be kept and invested in perpetuity and, accordingly, reported as net assets
with donor restrictions. In fiscal year 2015, the Organization adopted a new policy that gifts to the
American Red Cross National Headquarters from a will, trust, or similar instrument dated on or after
July 1, 2015 without a direction to the application or purpose of the funds shall be allocated at the
discretion of senior management to where the need is greatest. Such amounts will be reported as
increases to net assets without donor restrictions. All gifts to the American Red Cross National
Headquarters that are designated to be invested in perpetuity shall continue to be deposited into the
endowment fund regardless of the date of the gift instrument.

Inventories

Inventories of supplies purchased for use in program and supporting services are valued using the
average cost method. Whole blood and its components are valued at the lower of average cost or net
realizable value.

Land, Buildings, and Other Property

Purchases of land, buildings, and other property having a unit cost per established guidelines and a
useful life of three or more years are capitalized at cost. Donated assets are capitalized at the
estimated fair value at date of receipt. Interest expense incurred during a period of construction, less
related interest income eamed on proceeds of tax-exempt borrowings is capitalized.

Property under capital leases is amortized over the lease term. Any gain or loss on the sale of land,
buildings and other property is reported as other revenues on the consolidated statement of activities.

Application development costs incurred to develop internal-use software are capitalized and amortized
over the expected useful life of the software application. Activities that are considered application
development include design of software configuration and interfaces, coding, installation of hardware,
and testing. All other expenses incurred to develop internal-use software are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Useful life
Class of property in years
Buildings 45
Building improvements 10
Equipment and software 3-15

9 (Continued)



THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019
(With summarized information for the vear ended June 30, 2018)

(k} Long-Lived Assets

U

Long-lived assets, such as land, building, and other property, are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. If circumstances require a long-lived asset be tested for possible impairment, the
Organization first compares undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by an asset to the
carrying value of the asset. If the carrying value of the long-lived asset is not recoverable on an
undiscounted cash flow basis, an impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying value
exceeds its fair value. Fair value is determined through various valuation technigues, including
discounted cash flow models, quoted market values, and third-party independent appraisals, as
considered necessary.

Property and Casualty Insurance

The Organization maintains various insurance policies under which it assumes a portion of each
insured loss. Assumed losses are retained by the Organization through its wholly owned insurance
subsidiary, Boardman Indemnity, Ltd. (Bocardman). The Organization also purchases insurance to
supplement the coverage by Boardman. The liabilities for outstanding losses and incurred but not
reported claims have been determined based on actuarial studies and are reported as other liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position, and were approximately $76 million and $88 million as
of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

{(m) Revenue Recognition

(i} Coniribution Revenue

Contributions, which include unconditional promises to give (pledges), are recognized as revenues
in the period received or promised. Contributions receivable due beyond cne year are stated at net
present value of the estimated cash flows using a risk-adjusted rate. Conditiona! contributions are
recorded when the conditions have been met. Contributions are considered to be without donor
restrictions unless specifically restricted by the donor for time or purpose.

The Organization reports confributions in the donor restricted net asset class if they are received
with donor stipulations as to their use and/or time. When a donor restriction expirss, that is, when a
stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor
restriction are released and reclassified to net assets without donor restriction in the consolidated
statement of activities.

Donor-restricted contributions are initially reported in the with donor restriction net asset class,
even if it is anticipated such restrictions will be met in the current reporting period.

(i} Revenue from Confracts with Customers

Revenue is recognized when control of the promised goods or services is transferred to our
customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration the Organization expects to be entitled to in
exchange for those goods or services. Revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated
between Biomedical and Program Materials on the consolidated statement of activities.

10 (Continued)



(iii)

(iv)

v)

THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019
(With summarized information for the year ended June 30, 2018)

Biomedical Revenues

Biomedical provides goods (blood products for hospitals) and services (blood testing) under single
confracts with customers with multiple performance obligations. Blood products sold fall under two
main categories — Whole Blood Products, which include red cells, plasma, and platelets; and
Apheresis Platelet Products, which are the result of donated specific blood components. Testing
services are performed over all products prior to the sale and delivery of the products. Because the
blood products and blood testing services are not capable of being distinct, the products and
services are treated as a bundled performance obligation.

For products, the performance obligation is satisfied when the customer gains control over the
promised asset, which is generally at the time of shipment based on the contractual terms with our
customers. Blood products have a limited shelf-life, therefore, any associated refunds or discounts,
which historically have not been material, are generally recognized in the same accounting period
in which the initial revenue is recognized.

For services, the service has been substantially performed and the obligation met at the point in
time at which the service is completed. Services are invoiced once the regulated testing process is
complete and documentation is sent to the customer.

Performance obligations for blood products and blood testing services are generally satisfied within
30 days, and therefore, there is no substantial difference in revenue recognition based on bundled
performance obligations.

The expected length of time between when American Red Cross (ARC) transfers the promised
goods or services to the customer and when the customer pays for those goods or services is

30 days. Generally, there is no difference between the amount of consideration promised and the
cash selling price of the blood products and services.

Program Materials Revenue

The organization provides various health and safety preparedness classes and certifications
including CPR, first aid, AED skills, swimming and water safety, lifeguarding, caregiving skills, and
certified nurse assistant (CNA) training and testing. Revenue generated by these training services
is included in Program Materials on the consolidated statement of activities.

Program Materials, which consist primarily of training services, performance obligations are
satisfied at the point in time at which the training is complete and certification is provided. Revenue
is recognized upon completion of distinct performance obligations in the same accounting period in
which each specific performance obligation is met. The transaction price is determined for each
contract using the stand alone selling price and applied to each performance obligation as
completed.

Other Revenue

Revenue from grants and contracts, including federal grants, that are considered to be conditional
contributions are recorded in the statement of activities under Contracts, including federal
government within the contribution section and are recognized as qualifying expenses are incurred

11 (Continued)



THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019
(With summarized information for the year ended June 30, 2018)

under the agreement. The Organization adopted the simultaneous release option for
donor-restricted conditional grants that are recognized and used within the same reporting period,
therefore, these amounts are reported as without donor restriction.

Gains and losses on investments and other assets and liabilities are reported as increases or
decreases in net assets without donor restriction unless their use is restricted by explicit donor
stipulation or by law.

{n} Contributed Services and Materials

Contributed services reflect the important impact volunteers have in delivering the Organization's
mission. Contributed services are reported at fair value in the financial statements for voluntary
donations of services when those services (1) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (2) require
specialized skills provided by individuals possessing those skills and are services, which would be
typically purchased if not provided by donation.

The Organization engages more than 300,000 volunteers. A small percentage of these volunteers meet
the above criteria and are reported in contributed services. Contributed services for the year ended
June 30, 2019 include the services of approximately 13,177 volunteers. The Organization recorded
contributed services revenus and related expense of approximately $51 million. The $51 million and
$53 million recorded in 2019 and 2018, respectively, represent primarily volunteer efforts in support of
disaster services and services to the Armed Forces.

Contributed materials are recorded at their fair value at the date of the gift. Gifts of long-lived assets are
recorded as restricted support.

(o) Income Taxes

The American National Red Cross is a not-for-profit organization incorporated by the U.S. Congress
through the issuance of a federal charter. The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under
Section 501{c)(3) of the internal Revenue Code, except on net income derived from unrelated business
activities. At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Organization has determined that no income taxes are due
for such activities. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been recorded in the accompanying
financial statements. Management annually reviews its tax positions and has determined that there are
no material uncertain tax positions that reguire recognition in the consolidated financial statements.

{p) Accounts Receivable Securitization

The Organization has an accounts receivable securitization program that is accounted under
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 860, Transfers and Servicing (note 11),

{q) Newly Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

in May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update
(ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), requires entities to
recognize revenue when control of the promised goods or services is transferred to customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitied to in exchange for those
goods or services. The Organization adopted this standard on July 1, 2018 using the cumulative catch
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up adjustment method. Due to the short-term nature of the products within the Organization's revenue
streams, the adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the amount and timing of
revenue recognition for revenue from Biomedical and Training Services. Other remaining revenue
streams not related to the biomedical process including Contributions, Contracts including Federal
Government, Investment Income, and Other Revenue are not within the scope of Topic 606 Revenue
Recognition. The adoption of this standard did not materially affect consolidated changes in net assets,
financial position, or cash flows.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) — Presentation
of Financial Statements for Not-for-Profit Entities. ASU No. 2016-14 reduces the number of net asset
classes presented from three to two: net assets without donor restrictions, previously reported as
unrestricted net assets, and net assets with donor restrictions, previously reported as temporarily
restricted net assets of $768 million and permanently restricted net assets of $860 million for fiscal year
ended June 30, 2018. Additionally, ASU No. 2016-14 requires presentation of expenses by functional
and natural classification in one location and increases the quantitative disclosures about liquidity and
availability of financial assets. The Organization adopted ASU No. 2016-14 for Organization's financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2019 and applied the changes retrospectively.

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-08 — Not-for Profit Entities (Topic 958): Clarifying the
Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. The new
guidance applies to all entities that recelve or make contributions. This ASU includes specific criteria to
consider when determining whether a contract or agreement should be accounted for as a contribution
or as an exchange transaction. ASU No. 2018-08 also provides a framework to determine whether a
contribution is conditional or unconditional, which may impact the timing of revenue recognition. Under
the new guidance, if a fransaction is considered an exchange transaction, it is accounted for under the
applicable revenue recognition standards. The Organization adopted this standard prospectively for
contributions received for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The adoption of this standard resulted in
most grants being accounted for as contributions than were under previous guidance. The Organization
does not make significant contributions and the impact of ASU No. 2018-08 related to contributions
made is not expected to be material to the consolidated financial statement or disclosures.

Upcoming New Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) which supersedes the
requirements in ASC Topic 840, Leases. ASU No. 2016-02 requires the recognition of lease assets and
lease liabilities by lessees for ali leases, including operating leases, with a term greater than

12 months. Under the guidance of ASU No. 2016-02, a lessee should recognize in the balance sheet a
liability to make lease payments (lease liability) and a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying asset for the lease term. The accounting applied by a lessor under ASU No. 2016-02 is
largely unchanged from that applied under ASC Topic 840. The ASU is effective for the Organization
for the year ending June 30, 2020. The Organization is currently in the process of evaluating the impact
of the new standard on its consolidated financial statements.

in November 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230):
Restricted Cash. ASU No. 2016-18 provides guidance on the presentation of restricted cash or
restricted cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows. The ASU is effective for the Organization for
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the year ending June 30, 2020. The Organization is still evaluating the final effect that ASU No.
2016-18 will have on its consolidated financial statements and disclosures; however, management
does not expect the adoption of the standard to have a material impact.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-07, Compensation - Retirement Benefits (Topic 71 5):
Improving the Presentation of Net Periodic Pension Cost and Nef Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost.
This ASU requires that an employer report the service cost component in the same line item or items
as other compensation costs arising from services rendered by the pertinent employees during the
period. The other components of net benefit cost, which include interest cost and prior service cost or
credit, among others, are required to be presented in the statement of activities separately from the
service cost component and outside a subtotal of revenue from operations, if one is presented. The
ASU is effective for the Organization for the year ending June 30, 2020. The Organization is still
evalualing the final effect that ASU No. 2017-07 will have on ifs consolidated financial statements and
disclosures; however, management does not expect the adoption of the standard to have a material
impact.

{2} Contributions Receivable

The Qrganization anticipates collection of outstanding contributions receivable as follows at June 30, 2019
and 2018 (in thousands):

2019 2018

Amounts receivable within one year $ 35,158 42,065
Amounts receivable in 1 to 5 years {net of discount of $1,432

and $1,294 for 2019 and 2018, respectively) 14,689 9,170
Total contributions receivable before allowance

for uncollectible amounts 49 847 51,235

Less allowance for uncollectible amounts {3,210 {1,815)

Contributions receivable, net 46,637 48,320

Less current portion 31,948 40,150

Contributions receivable, nei, noncurrent $ 14,689 9,170

Amounts presented above have been discounted to present value using various discount rates ranging
between 0.76% and 3.15%.

As of June 30, 2019, the Organization received conditional grants totaling $54 million. These grants are

conditioned on incurring qualifying expenses and will be recognized as revenue in the periods in which the
conditions are fulfilled.
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{3) Land, Buildings, and Other Property

The cost and accumulated depreciation of land, buildings, and other property were as follows at June 30,
2019 and 2018 (in thousands):

2018 2018

Land $ 88,730 100,481
Buildings and improvements 1,034,271 1,051,348
Equipment and software 557,066 546,508

Total cost of assets placed in senice 1,680,087 1,698,338
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (903,686) (878,157)
Construction in progress 22,085 8,264

Land, buildings, and other property, net $ 798,466 828,445

Assets held for sale were as follows at June 30, 2019 and 2018 (in thousands):

2019 2018
Land $ 13,081 4,451
Buildings and improvements 39,596 21,299
Total cost of assets held for sale 52,677 25,750
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (16,937) (13,669)
Assets held for sale, net $ 35,740 12,081

These assets have been segregated from land, buildings, and other property and presented as assets held
for sale within the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The Organization identified these
assets as not critical to supporting its primary mission as part of ongoing assessment procedures. The
Organization then evaluated the identified assets using the criteria for classification as held for sale
included in ASC 360-10, Impairment and Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. Certain assets or portions of
assets identified were determined to meet the criteria and have been classified as such. The carrying value
of these assets has been compared {o the current appraised values less cost to sell and determined not to
be impaired. During fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the gain on the buildings and improvements assets
held for sale was approximately $6 million, which is included in other revenue on consolidated statement of
activities.

(4) Investments and Fair Value Measurements

The Organization applies the provisions of ASC No. 820, Fair Value Measurements, for fair value
measurements of investments that are recognized and disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, ASC No. 820 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset
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or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. ASC Topic 820
also establishes a fair value hierarchy that requires the Organization to maximize the use of observable
inputs when measuring fair value. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent
sources, while unobservable inputs reflect the Organization’s market assumptions. The three levels of the
fair value hierarchy are as follows:

¢ Level 1~ Quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets

e Level 2 - Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or
similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the asset or liability; or market — corroborated inputs

¢ Level 3 ~ Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant
to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

In certain cases, the inputs to measure fair value may result in an asset or liability falling into more than
one level of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, the determination of the classification of an asset or
liability within the fair value hierarchy is based on the least determinate input that is significant to the fair
value measurement.

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, there were no transfers between levels.

The Organization’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its
entirety requires judgment and considers factors specific to the asset or liability.

As of January 1, 2018, the Organization acquired 40% interest in Creative Testing Solutions. This
investment is accounted for using the equity method, and is reflected in long-term investments on the
Organization’s consolidated statement of financial position. The baiance at June 30, 2019 reflects the
original contribution as well as the Organization’s share of the eamings of the investee, which were
approximately $13 million for the pericd ended June 30, 2019.
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The following table represents investments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and other

investments at June 30, 2019 (in thousands):

June 30, Measured at
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 NAV(1)
Fixed-income commingled funds  § 56,562 e 55,562 —_— —
U.S. government and sovereign 118,234 —_ 118,234 — —
securities
Common and preferred stock 5689 569 e — —_—
Equity commingled funds 184,453 31,037 100,989 -— 52,427
Exchange-traded funds 73,586 73,586 —_ —_ —_
Hedge funds 391,667 e e — 391,667
Private equity and debt 128,698 —_ —_— — 128,699
Real estate and real assets 202 — —_ oo 202
Cash and cash equivalents 520,808 37,751 483,055 e —
Investments stated at

fair value 1,473,778 142,943 757,840 — 572,995

Equity method investments 54,275

Total investments $ 1,528,053

The following table represents investments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at June 30,

2018 (in thousands):
June 30, Measured at
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 NAV(1)
Fixed-income commingled funds $ 167,330 —_ 167,330 — —
Equity commingled funds 163478 — 163,478 —_— —
Hedge funds 432,824 — —_— — 432,824
Private equity and debt 90,655 —_ —_ —_ 90,655
Real estate and real asseis 9,656 — — —_ 9,656
Cash and cash equivalents 750,554 2,731 747,823 — —
Investments stated at
fair value 1,614,497 2,731 1,078,631 e 533,135
Equity method investments 53,002
Total investments $ 1,667,499

(1) Certain investments are measured at fair value using NAV as a practical expedient and have not been
classified in the fair value hierarchy. The NAV amounts have been presented to permit reconciliation of
the fair value hierarchy to the amounts presented in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Organization used quoted prices in principal active markets for identical assets as of the valuation date
(Level 1) to value certain cash equivalents at June 30, 2019 and 2018.
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For the valuation of certain cash equivalents, U.S. government and sovereign securities, and fixed income
and equity commingled funds at June 30, 2018 and 2018, the Organization used significant other
observable inputs, particularly dealer market prices for comparable investments as of the valuation date
{Level 2), The Level 2 commingled funds have a readily determinable fair value.

For the most part, the valuation of hedge funds, private equity and debt funds, private real estate and
private real assets funds, at June 30, 2019 and 2018, are reported at estimated fair value ulilizing the net
asset values provided by fund managers as a practical expedient. In a few instances, additional
supplemental information provided by the fund manager has been utilized to evaluate fund values and level
the investments. Reported fund values utilize significant unobservable inputs; the Organization reviews and
evaluates the values provided by fund managers and general partners and agrees with the valuation
methods and assumptions used in determining the reported fair values of the alternative investments.

The Organization had no Level 3 reportable transactions for the vear ended June 30, 2018. The foliowing
table presents the Organization's activity for investments measured at fair value on a recurring basis using
significant unobservable inpuis (Level 3) for the year ended June 30, 2018 (in thousands):

Balance Change in Balance
as of unrealized as of
June 30, gains/ June 30,
2017 Purchases Settlements {losses) 2018
Hedge funds $ 87 — (86} {1} —
Private equily and debt 4,160 e (2,777) {1,383) -
Total investments $ 4,247 e (2,863) (1,384) —

The following summarizes the nature and risk of those investments that are reported at estimated fair value
utilizing net asset value as of June 30, 2019 (in thousands):

Unfunded Redemption Redemption
Fair value commitments frequency notice period
Equity commingled funds (a) 52,427 —
Hedge funds (b},(d) $ 3,618 — N/A fully redeemed
Hedge funds (&) 388,049 e monthly to 5-80 days
bi-annually™
Private equity and debt (c) 128,699 85,173 None e
Real estate and real assets (¢) 202 7,142 MNone ——
Total $ 572,895 92,315

* biannually defined as every two years
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(a) Equity Commingled Fund Investments. Equity mandates are global or sector focused (i.e., real estate
MLPs). Underlying equity exposures are global equities and cash for liquidity purposes. Positions are
generally long and leverage can be used if managers are aliowed to hedge foreign current exposures.

(b) Hedge Fund Investments. Hedge fund strategies include: equity long/short, relative value, event driven,
arbitrage, macro, and opportunistic strategies. Underlying hedge fund holdings can consist of the full
spectrum of global equity, fixed income, commaodity, and currency instruments. Positions may be long
and short; leverage may also be used. Some funds may invest in side pockets, which are a separate
share class and are not available for redemption until the investment is liquidated by the manager.

{c) Non-Marketable Investment Strategies. Private equity and debt strategies include: leveraged buyout,
growth equity, venture capital, and distressed debt. Real estate and real assets strategies include
natural resources, such as oil and gas or minerals and mining. Nonmarketable funds do not permit
redemptions; capital is returned to investors at the discretion of the investment manager and in
accordance with limited partnership terms. Interim distributions of interest and dividends can be made;
however, capital and realized gains are generally distributed when underlying investments are
liquidated. Funds are able to recall distributions. It is expected that the majority of the nonmarketable
investments will be liquidated over the next 10 years.

(d) Represents expected redemptions related to audit holdbacks, where funds retain a portion of requested
redemptions until the fund’s annual audit is complete in order to accommodate potential final NAV
adjustments.

The Organization transacts in a variety of derivative instruments, including swaps and options, for
investment and hedging purposes, in order to take or mitigate certain exposures. Each instrument's primary
underlying exposure could be equities, commodities, interest rates, credit, or currencies. Such contracts
involve, to varying degrees, risks of loss from the possible inability of counterparties to meet the terms of
their contracts. In the case of over-the-counter derivatives, collateralization and daily marks-to-market
mitigate counterparty risk. The Organization also invests in highly liquid, exchange-traded contracts to
achieve exposure to U.S. Treasury securities; these contracts are also marked-to-market daily, with daily
exchanges of variation margin, but do not require collateralization per se. Foreign exchange derivatives can
be used to facilitate trade purchases and sales as well as for hedging purposes.

The following table lists the notional/contractual amount of derivatives by contract type included in
investments at June 30, 2019 and 2018 (in thousands):

Derivative type 2019 2018
Equity contracts $ — 54,386

There is no reportable fair value of derivatives by contract type as of June 30, 2019 or 2018.
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The following table lists gains and losses on derivatives by contract type included in investment income as
of June 30, 2019 and 2018 (in thousands):

Change in
Realized gains unrealized gains/(losses)
Derivative type 2019 2018 2019 2018
Equity contracts $ (1,488) 11,975 — (1,928)
Total $ (1,498) 11,975 — (1,928)

For the valuation of the Organization's derivative contracts at June 30, 2019, the Organization used
significant other observable inputs as of the valuation date (Level 2), including prices of instruments with
similar maturities and characteristics, interest rate yield curves, measures of interest rate volatility and
various market indices. The value was determined and adjusted to reflect nonperformance risk of both the
counterparty and the Organization.

Investment securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market and credit. Due to the level
of uncertainty related to changes in interest rates, market volatility and credit risks, it is at least reasonably
possible that changes in these risks could materially affect the estimated fair value of investments reported
in the consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019. However, the diversification of the
Organization’s invested assets among these various asset classes and the risk reduction purpose in the
case of hedging assets is management's strategy to mitigate the impact of any dramatic change on any
one asset class.

The following schedule summarizes the composition of investment return for the years ended June 30,
2019 and 2018 (in thousands):

2019 2018
Without donor With donor
restrictions restrictions Total Total
Investment retums awailable
for operations;
Endowment distribution for
the retirement system $ — —_ — 105,000
Other investment returns 15,147 38,088 63,235 86,785
15,147 38,088 53,235 191,785
Net nonoperating investment
refums {4,280) 25,005 20,725 {140,849)
Total return on
investments, net § 10,867 63,093 73,960 50,936
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(5) Debt
Debt consists of the following at June 30, 2019 and 2018 (in thousands):

2019 2018

Fixed rate debt:
Bearing interest rates ranging from 0% to 5.85%, due
calendar year 2018 through 2044 $ 440,176 441,652
Variable rate debt:
Bearing interest rates ranging from 1.60% to 3.31%, due
calendar year 2019 through 2034:

Variable rate debt with demand repayment rights 51,125 54,760
Variable rate debt without demand repayment rights 90,000 115,000

Total bonds and notes payable 681,301 611,712

Less current portion 43,888 40,452
Debt, nencurrent portion $ 537,413 571,260

The Organization’s debt is generally backed only by the full faith and credit of the Organization. Certain
bonds are subject to redemption prior to the maturity at the option of the Organization. The repayment
terms of the variable rate debt generally require monthly payments of interest and annual principal
reduction. The registered owners of the bonds and notes with demand repayment rights may demand
repurchase of the bonds and notes for an amount equal to the principal plus accrued interest. Letters of
credit or standby credit facilities have been established in the aggregate amount of $9 million and $11
million for both fiscal years 2019 and 2018, respectively, to provide liquidity in the event other funding is not
available for repurchasing. As of June 30, 2019, the maturity dates for these liquidity facilities are in
calendar year 2020. Approximately $9 million of the debt with demand repayment rights bears interest at
flexible rates with fiexible rate periods of any duration up to 270 days. The remaining debt with demand
repayment rights is bearing interest rates that are reset weekly.

Certain of the Organization’s debt agreements include covenants that require the Organization to maintain
certain levels of financial ratios. The Organization was in compliance with its covenant requirements as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2018.
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Scheduled maturities and sinking fund requirements of the debt and credit agreements as of June 30, 2019
are as follows (in thousands):

2020 $ 38,735
2021 38,735
2022 43,835
2023 88,935
2024 28,035
Thereafter 328,950

$ 568,225

Interest expense was approximately $30 million for both years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively, which is included in contractual services on the statement of functional exXpenses.

(a

(b)

Bank Lines of Credit

The Organization maintained several committed and uncommitted lines of credit with various banks for
its working capital requirements. There were no borrowings outstanding under lines of credit as of
June 30, 2019 and 2018. The Organization had unused lines of credit outstanding of approximately
$275 million at both June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018. The amounts available to be borrowed on the
lines of credit are subject to the limitations of the Organization’s debt covenants.

interest Rate Swap Agreements

The Organization held variable rate debt of approximately $141 million and $170 million at June 30,
2019 and 2018, respectively. Interest rate swap agreements are used by the Organization to mitigate
the risk of changes in interest rates associated with variable interest rate indebtedness. Under such
arrangements, a portion of variable rate indebtedness is converted to fixed rates based on a notional
principal amount. The interest rate swap agreements are derivative instruments that are recognized at
fair value and recorded on the statement of financial position. At June 30, 2019, the aggregate notional
principal amount under the interest rate swap agreements, with maturity dates ranging from calendar
year 2019 through 2025, totaled $42 million. At June 30, 2018, the aggregate notional principal amount
under the interest rate swap agreements, with maturity dates ranging from calendar year 2018 through
2025, totaled $60 million. The estimated fair value of the inferest rate swap agreements was a liability
of approximately $2.8 million and $1.3 million, respectively, and is included in other liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and 2018.

The change in fair value on these interest rate swap agreements was a loss of approximately
$1.6 million and a gain of approximately $1.6 million for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively, and is included in nonoperating gains in the consolidated statements of activities.

For the valuation of the interest rate swaps at June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Organization used
significant other observable inputs as of the valuation date (Level 2), including prices of instrumentis
with similar maturities and characteristics, interest rate vield curves, and measures of interest rate
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volatility. The value was determined and adjusted to reflect nonperformance risk of both the
counterparty and the Organization. See note 4 for definitions of Levels 1, 2, and 3.

(c) Letters of Credit

The Organization had unused letters of credit outstanding of approximately $53 million at June 30,

2019 and $55 million at June 30, 2018.

Leases

The Organization leases certain buildings and equipment for use in its operations. The following
summarizes minimum future rental payments under operating leases for the fiscal years ending
thousands):

2020 $ 27,662
2021 23,674
2022 20,226
2023 15,946
2024 11,632
Thereafter 67,526

Total minimum lease
payments $ 166,666

June 30 (in

Total rent expense was approximately $48 million and $46 million for the years ended June 30, 2019 and
2018, respectively, and is included in contractual services on the consolidated statement of functional

expenses.

Future minimum rental payments to be received by the Organization for office space leased at the National

Headquarters building as of June 30, 2019 are as follows (in thousands):

2020 $ 19,220
2021 19,392
2022 19,668
2023 19,747
2024 19,931
Thereafter 123,669

Total minimum lease
payments to be received $ 221,527

The rental income was approximately $19 million for both years ended June 30, 2019, and 2018,

respectively, and is included in other revenue on the consolidated statement of activities.
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{7) Net Assets

The Organization monitors cash and investment reserve requirements across the entire enterprise to
ensure service delivery can be performed. Management actively manages short and long-term cash needs
against all available liquidity from cash, investments, and fair value of land, building, and equipment held
for sale. As a result, it continues to have positive mission-related operating net assets, even though the
Organization has pension-related and other long-term liabilities.

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes or periods as of June 30, 2019
and 2018 (in thousands):

2019 2018
Disaster and humanitarian senices $ 199,796 402,418
International relief and dewvelopment senices 60,166 80,621
Endowment 1,013,098 968,352
Other net assets with restriction to be held in perpetuity 174,573 177,211
Total with donor restrictions net assets $ 1,447,633 1,628,602

With donor restrictions net assets in perpetuity at June 30, 2019 and 2018 consist primarily of endowed
contributions, the incoms from which is available principally to fund general operations. Other with donor
restrictions net assets in perpetuity consist of beneficial interests in perpetual trusts and other split-interest
agreements (note 9).

As part of the Organization’s liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial assets to be
available as its operating expenditures and other obligations come due. In addition, the Organization
invests cash in excess of daily requirements in short-term investments. The restricted portion of its financial
assets are excluded from the liquidity disclosure as they are used for restricted purposes.
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As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general
expenditures, such as operating expenses and scheduled principal payments on debt, were as follows (in
thousands):

2019
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 101,101
Short-term investments net 277,187
Trade receivable, including grants, net of 84,064
allowance for doubtful accounts
Contributions receivable 21,716
Total financial assets available
within one year 484,068
Liquidity resources:
Letters of credits and other credit facilities 337,000
Total financial assets and
liquidity resources available
within one year $ 821,068

(8) Endowments

Effective January 23, 2008, the District of Columbia enacted the Uniform Prudent Management of
Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), the provisions of which apply to endowment funds existing on or
established after that date. Based on its interpretation of the provisions of UPMIFA, the Organization is
required to act prudently when making decisions to spend or accumulate donor-restricted endowment
assets and in doing so to consider a number of factors, including the duration and preservation of its
donor-restricted endowment funds. The Organization classifies as net assets with donor restrictions the
original value of gifts donated to be held in perpetuity. The appreciation of the donor-restricted endowment
fund is appropriated for expenditure by the Organization in a manner consistent with the standard of
prudence prescribed by UPMIFA.

The Organization has adopted and the Governing Board has approved the Statement of Investment
Policies and Objectives for the endowment fund. This policy has identified an appropriate risk posture for
the fund, stated expectations and objectives for the fund, provides asset allocation guidelines, and
establishes criteria to monitor and evaluate the performance results the fund's managers.

To satisfy its long-term rate of return objectives, the Organization relies on a total return strategy in which
investment retumns are achieved through both capital appreciation {realized and unrealized) and current
yield (interest and dividends).

The Organization makes distributions from income earned on the endowment fund for current operations
using the total return method. In establishing this method, the Organization considered the long-term
expected return on its funds. To the extent that distributions exceed net investment income, they are made
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from accumulated gains. The Board of Govemnors approves the spending rate, calculated as a percentage
of the five-year calendar trailing average fair value of the endowment fund at the beginning of each fiscal
year.

A spending rate of 3.8% has been approved for year 2019, which resulted in total distributions of
approximately $37 million. For 2018, a one-time spending rate of 15.0% was approved, which resulted in
total distributions of approximately $141 million. The distributions for both years represent utilization of
accumulated realized gains, which were calculated based on the trailing five-year market value. Consistent
with 2018, a spending rate of approximately 3.8% of the trailing five-year market value has been approved
for 2020.

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2019 (in thousands):

With donor

restrictions Total
Endowment net assets, beginning of year $ 968,352 968,352
Total investment return, net 61,818 61,818
Contributions 18,975 19,975
Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure (37,047 (37,047,
Endowment net assets, end of year $ 1,013,098 1,013,098

() Split-Interest Agreements

The Organization is a beneficiary of split-interest agreements in the form of charitable gift annuities,
perpetual trusts held by third parties, charitable remainder frusts, and pooled income funds. The value of
split-interest agreements is measured as the Organization’s share of fair value of the assets. Of the

$253 million and $248 million in assets under these agreements as of June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively, which are included in other assets on the consolidated statement of financial position,

$41 million and $37 million, respectively, are charitable gift annuities and the remainder are assets for
which the Organization is not the trustee. Liabilities associated with these agreements are $31 million and
$28 million for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, of which $7 million and $4 million
included in other current liabilities and $24 million for both years is included in other noncurrent liabilities on
the consolidated statement of financial position, respectively.

(10) Benefit Plans

(a) The Retirement System of the American National Red Cross and The American Red Cross Life
and Health Benefit Plan

Before July 1, 2009, employees of the American Red Cross, including employees of participating local
chapters, were covered by the Retirement System of the American National Red Cross (the Plan) after
one year of employment and completion of 1,000 hours of service during any consecutive 12-month
period. The Plan was closed to employees hired after June 30, 2009.
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Subject to provisions contained in collective bargaining agreements where applicable, the Plan was
frozen on December 31, 2012 (the freeze date). Employees who were participating in the Plan as of
that date keep vested benefits earned, but stop eaming additional pension benefits.

Prior to the freeze date, the benefit formula was based on years of service and the empioyees’ final
average compensation. Final average compensation was calculated using the highest consecutive
48 months of the last 120 months of service before the earlier of retirement or the freeze date.

For funding purposes under the Plan, normal pension costs are determined by the projected unit credit
method and are funded currently. The Plan provides a defined-benefit pension, funded entirely by the
employer. Prior to July 1, 2005, voluntary after-tax contributions could be made by active members to
fund an optional annuity benefit. The Organization’s funding policy is set to comply with the funding
requirements established under the Pension Protection Act of 2006 and to meet the requirements of
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. During fiscal year 2019, the Organization
contributed above the required amount for the plan year.

The Plan was amended on January 1, 2019 to allow participants who have not previously commenced
benefits to elect a lump-sum payment of their full vested benefit value if otherwise eligible to receive
benefits under existing plan provisions, including the provision that the election must be made within
the 180-days period commencing on the first day of the month on or next following termination of
employment or be retirement eligible. In addition, all previously available distribution options continue to
be available.

The Organization also provides medical and dental benefits to retirees and their eligible dependents
under The American Red Cross Life and Health Benefits Plan. Generally, retirees and the Organization
each pay a portion of the premium costs. The medical and dental plans pay a stated percentage of
expenses reduced by deductibles and other coverages. The Organization has the right to modify
cost-sharing provisions at any time. In addition, life insurance benefits of $5,000 are provided with no
contributions required from the retirees. The Organization’s postretirement benefit plans are unfunded.

Effective January 1, 2009, the Organization eliminated plan coverage (retiree medical and life benefits)
for all future retirees that did not meet certain eligibility conditions as of that date. in addition, the plan
was amended to transition Medicare eligible retirees to a private fee-for-service plan and to change the
premium supplement tables and indexing effective July 1, 2009. Beginning in calendar year 2011, most
Medicare eligible retirees were offered a Healthcare Reimbursement Account to utilize in purchasing
individual coverage through an external exchange program through Aon Hewitt Retiree Exchange.
Plans can vary from Medicare Advantage, Part D Prescription Drug, and Medicare Supplement Plans.
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The following table presents the changes in benefit obligations, changes in Plan assets, and the
composition of accrued benefit costs in the consolidated statements of financial position for the years
ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 (in thousands):

Pension benefits Postretirement benefits
2019 2018 2018 2018
Changes in benefit obligations:

Benefit obligations at

beginning of year $ 2,350,105 2,487 441 57,597 63,588
Sendce cost 502 518 53 89
Interest cost 102,369 102,595 2,339 2,283
Plan amendment —— (23,788) e e
Actuarial loss (gain) 128,450 (109,674) 2,148 (4,982)
Berefits paid (131,516) (120,586) (3.147) (3,391)
Annuity purchase and

reimbursements from

insurance cariers 358 13,569 — —
Benefit abligations at

end of year 2,450,269 2,350,105 58,088 57,597

Changes in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at

beginning of year 1,911,088 1,767,341 — e
Actual retum on plan assets 195,992 28,784 — e
Employer contributions 34,349 220,950 e o
Benefits paid {(131,516) {120,586} e e
Annuity purchase and

reimbursements from

insurance carriers 358 13,588 e —
Fair value of plan assets at

end of year 2,010,272 1,911,088 —— —

Funded status-accrued
benefit costs $ (438,997) (438,017 (58,988) (57,587)
28 (Continued)



THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

(With summarized information for the year ended June 30, 2018)

Pension-related changes other than net periodic benefit cost for 2019:

Pension Postretirement
benefits benefits Tofal
Prior senice cost (benefit) $ (2.727) {230) (2.957)
Amortized net loss (gain) 18,797 (2,284) 16,513
Net actuarial (loss) gain {51,664) 1,122 {50,542
$ (35,594) {1,382 (36,986)
Pension-related changes other than net periodic benefit cost for 2018:
Pension Postretirement
benefits benefits Total
Prior senvce cost (benefit) $ 23,788 (1,179 22,609
Amortized net loss {gain) 20,898 (980) 19,919
Net actuarial gain 11,373 8,160 18,533
$ 56,060 6,001 62,061
items not yet recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost for 2018:
Pension Postretirement
benefits benefits Total
Unrecognized prior senice credit $ (21,061) — (21,061)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss (gains) 965,299 (9,598) 855,701
$ 844,238 {9,598) 934,640
ltems not yet recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost for 2018:
Pension Postretirement
benefits benefits Tofal
Unrecognized prior senice credit $ (23,788) (230) (24,018}
Unrecognized net actuarial loss (gains) 913,646 {14,027) 899,619
$ 889,858 (14,257) §75,601
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Estimated amounts to be amortized into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year are as
foliows:

Pension Postretirement
benefits benefits Total
Prior senice credit $ (2,727) — (2,727)
Net actuarial loss (gain) 24,709 {1,302) 23,407
$ 21,982 (1,302) 20,680

The accumulated benefit obligation for the pension plan was approximately $2.4 billion and $2.3 billion
as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations for 2019 and 2018 were as
follows:

Pension benefits Postretirement benefits
2019 2018 2019 2018
Discount rate 3.88% 4.49% 3.45% 4.20%
Rate of compensation
increase e 5.00 . o

The weighted average assumptions used to determine net benefit cost for 2019 and 2018 were as
follows:

Pension benefits Postretirement benefits
2018 2018 2018 2018
Discount rate 4.49% 4,22% 4.20% 3.70%
Expected retum on plan
assets 6.00 6.00 —— —_
Rate of compensation
increase — 5.00 — —_

The expected rate of return assumption on Plan assets was determined by considering current
economic and market conditions and by reviewing asset class allocations, historical return analysis,
and forward-looking capital market expectations. Asset class allocations were established by
considering each class' risk premium commensurate for the level of risk, duration that matches the
Plan’s liabilities, and incremental diversification benefits. Historical returns and forward-looking capital
market expectations were gathered from and compared among the Plan’s investment managers and a
sampling of the consultant community.
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For measurement purposes, approximately a 7.25% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of
covered healthcare benefits was assumed for fiscal year 2019. For measurement purposes,
approximately a 7.50% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered healthcare benefits
was assumed for fiscal year 2018. For both years the rate was assumed to decrease gradually to
4.50% through 2030 and remain at that level thereafter.

The components of net periodic benefit cost (credit) for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 were
as follows (in thousands):

Pension benefits Postretirement benefits
2019 2018 2019 2018
Sendce cost $ 502 518 53 89
Interest cost 102,369 102,595 2,339 2,283
Expected retum on plan
assets (119,207) (128,085) — —_—
Amortization of prior
senvice credit 2,727) — (230) (1,180)
Net amortization loss (gain) 18,797 20,899 (2,284) {980}
Net periodic
benefit cost
(credit) $ {266) (4,073) (122} 212

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the
healthcare plans. A one-percentage-point change in assumed healthcare cost trend rates would have

the following effects (in thousands):

Point Point
increase decrease
Effect on total of senice and interest cost components $ 3 (3)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation 66 (59)

The minimum funding requirement for the pension plan during the year ended June 30, 2019 is
$113 million.
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The following benefit payments, which refiect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to
be paid, as of June 30, (in thousands):

Pension Postretirement
benefits benefits
2020 $ 238,864 3,890
2021 174,566 3,806
2022 172,637 3,834
2023 167,602 3,035
2024 161,703 3,808
2025-2029 760,035 18,668
$ 1,675,407 38,241

The Organization has investment guidelines for the Retirement System (the Plan) assets. The overall
objective of the guidelines is to ensure the Plan’s assets appropriately hedge the liability risks and also
considering other market risks while ensuring that the portfolio income and liquidity are appropriate to
meet the Plan’s benefit payments and other expenses. The Plan’s investments are designed in such
manner that no single investment would have a disproportionate net impact on the plan funded status.
The Plan’s asset allocation is reviewed regularly with current market assumptions to realign the asset
mix with the long-term investment goals for the Plan. (See note 4 for descriptions of the methodologies
used to value Plan’s assets, except for the equity interest in the par annuity and guaranteed
accumulation fund, which are valued based on significant unobservable inputs, including discounted
cash flow analysis, comparable analysis, or third-party appraisals. See note 4 for the definitions of
Levels 1, 2, and 3.)

The Plan’s assets were invested in the following categories at June 30, 2019 and 2018:

Pension assets
2019 2018
Cash and short-term investments 6% 6%
Equity 7 32
Fixed income 64 39
Marketable and nonmarketable alternative funds 23 23
100% 100%

The Plan’s assets were within authorized asset aliocation ranges at June 30, 2019 and 2018.
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The following table represents pension plan assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

at June 30, 2019 (in thousands):

June 30, Measured at
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 NAV(1)

Fixed-income commingled funds $ 95,174 — 95,174 e —
Corporate obligations 323,690 —_ 323,690 _— o
Foreign government and sovereig! 5,948 5,848 e e
securities
U.S. government and sovereign 842,667 e 842,667 e e
sacurities
Equity commingled funds 148,537 38,915 91,609 — 19,013
Hedge funds 316,637 — —_ —_— 316,637
Private equity and debt 150,912 — — —_ 150,812
Real estate and real assets 2447 — — — 2,447
Derivative contracts 32 171 (139) — —
Cash and cash equivalents 123,228 86,249 36,979 — —

Total plan assets § 2,010,272 125,335 1,395,028 — 489,008

The following table represents pension plan assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

at June 30, 2018 (in thousands):

June 30, Measured at
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 NAV(1)

Equity commingled funds $ 273248 - 273,249 — —_

Hedge funds 456,385 — — e 456,385

Private equity and debt 113,625 e e —_— 113,625

Real estate and real assets 16,217 — — e 19,217
U.S. government and sowereign

securities 691,480 691,480 - —_—

Derivative contracts 7.420 7.684 (264) e —

Cash and cash equivalents 349,711 — 349,711 e —

Totalplanassets $ 1,911,087 7,684 1,314,176 o 589,227

(1) Certain investments are measured at fair value using NAV as a practical expedient and have not
been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The NAV amounts have been presented to permit
reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the amounts presented as total plan assets.
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The Organization had no reportable Level 3 transactions for its defined-benefit plan for the year
ended June 30, 2019. The following tables presents the activity of the assets of the Organization’s
defined-benefit plan for assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) for the year ended June 30, 2018 (in thousands):

Balance Change in Balance
as of unrealized as of
June 30, gains/ June 30,
2017 Purchases  Seftlements {losses} 2018
Hedge funds $ 3 — —_— (3) —
Private equity and debt 5,299 —_ (3,888) (1,411) —
Equityinterest in participating
annuity surplus 86,758 1,694 (78,490) (8.962) e
Guaranteed accumulation fund 34,205 168 (45,673) 11,300 o
Total plan assets $ 126,265 1,862 (128,051) {76) —

On behalf of the Plan, the Organization transacts in a variety of derivative instruments, including
exchange-traded products (ETNs and ETFs), forwards, swaps, options, and futures. Derivatives are
used for investment purposes, such as hedging, replication, completion, diversification, and tail-risk
reduction. Each instrument’s primary underlying exposure is generally interest rates, equities,
commodities, or currencies. Such contracts could involve counterparty risk to varying degrees (i.e., risk
of loss from the possible inability of counterparties to meet the terms of their contracts). In the case of
over-the-counter derivatives, collateralization and daily marks-to-market mitigate counterparty risk.

The Plan makes special use of derivatives to hedge (partially or fully) the interest rate exposure of its
pension liabilities. The liabilities are valued via a “discount rate” of investment grade corporate bonds.
Uncertainty of future discount rates adds variability to the Plan's funded status as liability valuations
shift with rates. Hedging looks to reduce that risk. During the first part of the fiscal year ended June 30,
2019, the Plan used interest rate futures to manage interest rate exposure. Management of interest
rate exposure may change over time based upon a variety of factors, such as market conditions,
perceived investment opportunities and risks, and investment goals and objectives.

The following table lists the notional/contractual amount of derivatives by contract type included in
pension plan assets at June 30, 2018 and 2018 (in thousands):

Derivative type 2019 2018
Interest rate contracts $ (10,777) 347,240
Credit default swaps (9.400) o
— 167,692

Equity contracts
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The following table lists fair value of derivatives by contract type included in pension plan assets as of
June 30, 2019 and 2018 (in thousands):

Derlvative assets Derivative liabillties
Derivative type 2018 2018 2019 2018
Interest rate contracts $ 214 7.684 386 e
Credit default swaps 203 o — —
Equity contracts e — — 264
Fair value of derivatives
Iincluded in
investments $ 417 7,684 386 264

The following table lists gains and losses on derivatives by contract type included in actual return on
plan assets available for plan benefits as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 (in thousands):

Change in
Realized gains/(losses) unrealized gains/(losses)
Derivative type 2018 2018 201¢ 2018
Interest rate contracts $ 20,433 (12,237) (7,755) 5,883
Credit default swaps ] - 21 e
Equity contracts 6,386 18,573 264 (2,066)
Total $ 35,828 6,336 (7,470) 3,817

For the valuation of the Plan’s derivative contracts at June 30, 2019, the Plan used significant other
observable inputs as of the valuation date (Level 2), including prices of instruments with similar
maturities and characteristics, interest rate yield curves, measures of interest rate volatility, and various
market indices. The value was determined and adjusted to reflect nonperformance risk of both the

counterparty and the Plan.

(b) American National Red Cross Savings Plan — 401(k) Plan

The Organization sponsors the American Red Cross Savings Plan (the Savings Pian), a
defined-contribution plan. in general, employees are eligible to participate upon hire and vest in
employer contributions on a three-year cliff schedule. Employer contributions include Red Cross match
only. There were $33.5 million and $33.7 million in Red Cross employer contributions to the Savings

Plan in 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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Receivables Securitization Program

The Organization has an asset securitization program. The program is structured to sell the eligible
biomedical hospital account receivables, without legal recourse, to a third-party investor, through a wholly
owned bankruptcy-remote special purpose entity that is consolidated for financial reporting purposes. The
Organization continues servicing the sold receivables. Proceeds received under the securitization program
are treated as secured borrowings. The maximum amount of the agreement is $125 million for years ended
June 30, 2019 and 2018 and the total cost of the program approximates the 30-day LIBOR plus 1%. At
June 30, 2019 and 2018, the amount of outstanding borrowings under the securitization program was

$111 million and $109 million, respectively, and is included in other current liabilities on the statement of
financial position.

Commitments and Contingencies
(&) Litigation

The Organization is a defendant in a number of lawsuits incidental to its operations. In the opinion of
management, the outcome of such lawsuits will not have a materially adverse effect on the
Organization's financial position.

(b} Government Grants

Costs charged to the federal government under cost-reimbursement grants and contracts are subject to
government audit. Therefore, all such costs are subject to adjustment. Management believes that
adjustments, if any, would not have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent Events

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through the date the consolidated financial statements
were issued, October 23, 2019,
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THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS
KENTUCKY REGION
Schedule of Operating Revenues and Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Operating revenues:

Contributions:
Corporate, foundation and individual giving $ 4,145,128
United Way and other Federated 1,740,793
Contracts, including federal government 6,333,652
Legacies and Bequests 920,253
Services and Materials 516,841
Products and Services 1,483,482
investment income 0
Other revenues 73,400
Support from American National Red Cross chapter network 2,348,066
Total operating revenues 17,562,615
Operating expenses:
Program sevices:
Services to the Armed Forces 1,181,681
Biomedical services 69,147
Community services 6,306,822
Domestic disaster services 4,667,978
Training services 1,443,691
international relief and development services 10,202
National disaster relief and humanitarian services 0
Total program sevices 13,679,521
Supporting services:
Fundraising 3,108,583
Management and general 774,511
Total supporting services 3,883,094
Total operating expenses 17,562,615

Excess of operating revenues and expenses $ -




THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS
KENTUCKY REGION
Operating Expenses by Account Type
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Subtotal

Travel and maintenance

Equipment maintenance and rental

Supplies and materials

Contractual services

Financial and material assistance

Depreciation and amortization

National disaster relief and humanitarian services
Total expense

8,852,206
2,465,485

11,317,691

408,858
537,689
270,416
2,580,486
1,801,504
545,971

0

$

17,562,615
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